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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIREN PRINTING
MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(A joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People's Republic of China)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 64 to 103 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and of the Group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

SRR OEE R



BB EEE
(REBAREHENER
HE==F+=A=+—ALFE
23 B8

$Vﬁﬁ*%tt%ﬁﬁ%iﬂﬁ§ﬁ“£
WERR-EE-F+-A=+t—0%
BEEEK '“72%%#&&%1&5&
FE BEEEZRERBARGERERDE
Mo WEBEBLAAEZKEEZEREER
#l o

B - MEMAEEERT
BIEE AT

—EE-FNMA+H BB

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

W B W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

10 April 2003, Hong Kong

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |

63



W B WAk
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERax CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(BRBEBARGTERFRR) (Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
BE_EE_F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
—TT_F —ZEE-F
et 2002 2001
AR¥ T ARBFT
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
] Turnover 4 938,653 699,947
SHER A Cost of sales (641,551) (487,155)
ER Gross profit 297,102 212,792
H i & WA Other operating income 6 9,908 5,419
HEEMR Distribution costs (39,801) (31,196)
EEEA Administrative expenses (155,258) (97,954)
BT HENRERIAZ Impairment losses recognised
IEREEEEPS in respect of property, plant
and equipment (6,418) (31,690)
EEIRERZRERX Impairment losses recognised
in respect of construction
in progress (1,166) (8,093)
EERH Profit from operations 7 104,367 49,278
BH%ER Finance costs 8 (17,184) (8,159)
BoMENTXE Share of results of associates (916) 7
At EF Profit before taxation 86,267 41,126
Bi1E Taxation 11 (15,057) (13,738)
Bi&EF Profit after taxation 71,210 27,388
DB RS Minority interests (1,874) 1,025
REREF Net profit for the year 69,336 28,413
BRER - &R Earnings per share - Basic 13 AR#17.3% ARE7.159
Rmb17.3 fen Rmb7.1 fen
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2002

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

k-1 ek 3 “EE-F
ftat 2002 2001
AR¥TTT AR®FT
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
ERDEE Non-current Assets
BF BBRARE Property, plant and equipment 14 595,516 492,153
EREIRE Construction in progress 15 231,920 128,786
BREE Intangible assets 16 3,888 2,812
AN Interests in associates 18 15,140 10,687
Hth&EE Other assets 19 32,727 32,727
879,191 667,165
mEEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 20 521,933 485,311
RS TEHTA& Accounts receivable, prepayments
H b e and other receivables 21 242,098 162,532
FELISZHHP%" jTAIE Amounts due from associates 10,580 —
BIEARES Bank balances and cash 22 190,474 218,066
965,085 865,909
mENAR Current Liabilities
FE{SIE X Accounts payable 23 146,288 102,827
H fth FE (33X Other payables 24 128,649 46,109
BUMEHEER Sales deposits received 55,161 32,234
T RAER QT Amount due to ultimate
holding company 25 127,668 75,473
FEHB LD R ER Amounts due to minority
Tl shareholders of subsidiaries 25 2,673 2,673
BIRER Provision for taxes and levies 26 21,200 23,252
R BRI Option payments received 27 24,209 24,209
B - —FAEH Borrowings — due within one year 28 261,734 264,050
767,582 570,827
mMENEERE Net Current Assets 197,503 295,082
1,076,694 962,247
BE R & Capital and Reserves
& Share capital 29 400,000 400,000
f&E Reserves 551,531 530,195
951,531 930,195
PHBRRES Minority Interests 49,263 30,352
FERBAR Non-current Liability
B ——FREH Borrowings — due after one year 28 75,900 1,700
1,076,694 962,247

EARTHEEE—
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BERZR LU CHANGAN

ZEZE DIRECTOR

:

EEB%E WANG GUOHUA

E % DIRECTOR

The financial statements on pages 64 to 103 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 April 2003 and
are signed on its behalf by:

:Z_ rﬁ&] ¥l

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BEEARE BALANCE SHEET

(BRBEBARGTERFRR) (Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
ZEE-FLZHA=+—H#EE At 31 December 2002

k-1 Jk 3 —EE-F
et 2002 2001
AR%TFIT ARETFT
NOTES Rmb'000 Rmb'000
ERBEE Non-current Assets
BE - BRARE Property, plant and equipment 14 388,892 395,578
FEIRE Construction in progress 15 229,963 120,940
MWEARRE Investments in subsidiaries 17 153,445 69,957
A NEIE Interests in associates 18 16,783 12,373
HitnEE Other assets 19 32,727 32,727
821,810 631,575
RENEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 20 369,342 387,083
EWER - BARK Accounts receivable, prepayments
H {th & Ut 5K and other receivables 21 137,989 131,005
FE UL BT B A B) SR I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 80,921 56,717
B = D B FR Amounts due from associates 10,580 -
RITERERES Bank balances and cash 22 139,762 195,614
738,594 770,419
MENE R Current Liabilities
FE 1 R 3K Accounts payable 23 84,538 66,878
H fth FE (33X Other payables 24 96,187 26,723
BWEEER Sales deposits received 21,791 21,337
R RAER AT Amount due to ultimate
holding company 127,601 75,599
FE 4 B8 2 B 3K 0E Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,858 -
BB Provision for taxes and levies 26 11,045 23,118
R BRI Option payments received 27 24,209 24,209
- —FREH Borrowings — due within one year 28 195,000 220,000
564,229 457,864
RBEEFE Net Current Assets 174,365 312,555
996,175 944,130
B E B G i Capital and Reserves
[N Share capital 29 400,000 400,000
E4e] Reserves 30 564,175 544,130
964,175 944,130
FEBRE Non-current liability
B - — R Borrowings - due after one year 28 32,000 =
996,175 944,130

,-Z_ fﬁ’:‘] ¥
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BERZE LU CHANGAN
Z % DIRECTOR

.

T B %¥ WANG GUOHUA
ZZE DIRECTOR
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(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

KR idR EE EE 13-
B* it i BEab X 5 3 LRe BUSE KEEE it
Statutory
Statutory public Discretionary
Share Share Capital surplus welfare surplus Retained  Dividend
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve profits reserve Total
ARBFT ARBTRT AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTR ARETT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
R-2%8-%
—-A—H 400,000 316,663 13,206 45,504 39,850 42,979 43,580 40,000 941,782
At 1 January 2001
TEFRA - - - - - - 28413 = 28,413
Net profit for the year
KEFBEDE = = = 2,508 2,508 - (5,016) - -
Appropriations
ERERE = = = = = = = (40,000)  (40,000)
Dividend paid
RRBEABREZER = = = = = - (48,000) 48,000 -
Amount set aside for
proposed final dividend
R-Z22-F
T=A=t-H 400,000 316,663 13,206 48,012 42,358 42,979 18,977 48,000 930,195
At 31 December 2001
TEFRA - - - - - - 69,336 - 69,336
Net profit for the year
KEFBEDE = = = 6,793 6,785 - (13578) = -
Appropriations
ERERE = - - - - - = (48,000)  (48,000)
Dividend paid
RRBEABRE 2R = = = = = - (42,200) 42,200 -
Amount set aside for
proposed final dividend
i &
TZA=t-H 400,000 316,663 13,206 54,805 49,143 42,979 32,535 42,200 951,531
At 31 December 2002
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDAED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

FEBeaRER
(BEBARESTELRFE)
BE_TT_F+_A=1+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2002

k- 1ok 3 —EE-F
2002 2001
ARETIT AREFT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
REXBHERERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRBL A B A Profit from operations 104,367 49,278
HE Adjustments for:
nE Depreciation 53,524 47,512
ERIREHEZEL Loss on disposal of construction
in progress 8,702 -
BF - BBANRE Impairment losses recognised
BRAZHERX in respect of property, plant
and equipment 6,418 31,690
HEIRERZAE Impairment losses recognised in
Bx respect of construction in progress 1,166 8,093
BN EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 1,086 918
FE WA Interest income (3,048) (2,150)
HERT - BEAN (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
FEZBFBE plant and equipment (466) 1,261
B EERE Intangible assets written off = 497
EEESR YKL R Operating cash flows before 171,749 137,099
movements in working capital
BEZRED (L) Decrease (increase) in inventories 15,905 (5,292)
FEWIRT - BRRR Increase in accounts receivable,

H i FE U 2 35 0 prepayments and other receivables (25,553) (47,519)
FE L Bl & N R] iR 3K 2 32 Increase in accounts due from associates (10,580) =
JE 1 iR 3R 2 48 Increase in accounts payable 22,258 29,201
HAMPERTR 2B MORD) Increase (decrease) in other payables 13,421 (1,823)
BRHEARDEHRRER Decrease in amounts due to minority

2R shareholders of subsidiaries - (3,540)
HEERZEM Increase in sales deposits received 22,927 2,221
BIEEE 2 WD (48 hn) Decrease (increase) in provision for (1,712) 17,055

taxes and levies
REEEMB2RE Cash generated from operations 208,415 127,402
B % Income tax paid (15,856) (12,018)
FEXH Interest paid (17,184) (8,159)
EERBRRARRARE NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 175,375 107,225
I (N = 3 A a7 = S A TR EFE T ER
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEBERE CONSOLIDAED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(BREBAREFTERFRR)
BE—_FF G+ -_H=1+—HALFE

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

i 1 Jamt- S —
ffzt 2002 2001
ARBTIT AREFT
NOTE Rmb'000 Rmb'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ERIEEM Additions to construction
in progress (177,339) (117,443)
BART  BENRE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (17,120) (53,669)
REBE DT Investments in associates (5,369) (10,680)
BF  BBARBEERA Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 22,253 2,444
FHBB=@ARTEIHD Decrease in bank deposits with
maturity over three months 12,737 20,893
g - P B AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 32 5,053 =
EWFE Interest received 3,048 2,150
HiEEFERA Proceeds on disposal of
other assets - 120
REZDSIHZASTHBE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (156,737) (156,185)
MR EH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEER Repayments of borrowings (524,460) =
E2RE Dividends paid (48,000) (40,000)
EEei New borrowings raised 485,560 244,750
RAERABTZERER) Advances from (repayment to)
ultimate holding company 52,195 (51,281)
WEARDHEERFIEE Contributions from minority
shareholders of a subsidiary 1,212 7,030
MEETBHIIRZRERH) NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
wmABE FINANCING ACTIVITIES (33,493) 160,499
BeRAEEEMBHELZ NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
(D)8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (14,855) 111,539
ReRA&FRYME—RA—H CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
iR AT 1 JANUARY 196,842 85,303
ReRA&FRME CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
+ZRA=t+—-RZHER AT 31 DECEMBER 181,987 196,842
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1.

GENERAL

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the "Company")
was established in Beijing, the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC") on 13 July 1993 as a joint stock limited company
in accordance with the provisions set out in the Standard
Opinion on Joint Stock Limited Companies issued as of 15
May 1992 by the State Commission for Restructuring the
Economic System of the PRC. The Company is registered
as an overseas company in Hong Kong under Part Xl of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The H Shares and A
Shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock Exchange of
the PRC, respectively.

The Company is mainly engaged in the manufacture and
sale of a variety of printing machines and related spare parts.

The ultimate holding company is Beiren Group Corporation
("BGC"), a state-owned company incorporated in the PRC.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time,
a number of new and revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice ("SSAPs") issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, which has resulted in the adoption
of the following new and revised accounting policies. The
adoption of these Standards has resulted in a change in the
format of presentation of the cash flow statement and the
statement of changes in equity, and in the adoption of the
following new and revised accounting policies but has had
no material effect on the results for the current or prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment
has been required.

(a) Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 Foreign Currency
Translation have eliminated the choice of translating
the income statements of overseas subsidiaries at
the closing rate for the year, the policy previously
followed by the Group. They are now required to be
translated at an average rate. This change in
accounting policy has not had any material effect on
the results for the current or prior accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

2. ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(CONTINUED)

(b) Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15
(Revised) Cash Flow Statements. Under SSAP 15
(Revised), cash flows are classified under three
headings - operating, investing and financing, rather
than the previous five headings. Interest and
dividends, which were previously presented under a
separate heading, are classified as operating/
investing/financing cash flows. Cash flows arising
from taxes on income are classified as operating
activities, unless they can be separately identified with
investing or financing activities.

(c) Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34
Employee Benefits, which introduces measurement
rules for employee benefits, including retirement
benefit plans. Because the Group's participates only
in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes,
the adoption of SSAP 34 has not had any material
impact on the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised and amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented
separately in the balance sheet as a separate intangible
asset.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
unamortised goodwill/goodwill previously eliminated against
reserves is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition over the
cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be credited
to income at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January
2001 is presented as deduction from assets and will be
released to income based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted.

To the extent that the negative goodwill is attributable to
losses or expenses anticipated at the date of acquisition, it
is released to income in the period in which those losses or
expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired
depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill
exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired identifiable
non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income immediately.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is deducted from the carrying value of that associate.
Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
is presented separately in the balance sheet as a deduction
from assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of its associates for the
year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in
associates are stated at the Group's share of the net assets
of the associates less any identified impairment loss.

The results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable during
the year. In the Company's balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost, as reduced by any identified
impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

BN FH

Over the term of the leases
RENFHETN T FoREE

Over the shorter of the term of the leases and 40 years
RENFHEITF2RESE

Over the shorter of the term of the leases and 50 years
7.14% - 10%

12.5% - 20%

12.5% - 20%
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress, which includes all development
expenditure and other direct costs, including interest
expenses attributable to such projects, is stated at cost.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as property,
plant and equipment, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use. Costs on completed construction
works are transferred to property, plant and equipment or
the relevant projects.

Technical knowhow

Technical knowhow, which is based on professional
appraisals of knowhow contributed in accordance with the
terms of the joint venture contracts or cost incurred in its
acquisition, is stated at cost and amortised over its estimated
useful life on a straight-line basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a clearly-
defined project will be recovered through future commercial
activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

SRR OEE R
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(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments in respect of statutory retirement funds are
charged as an expense as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Renminbi are initially
recorded at the rates prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than Renminbi are re-translated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses
arising on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation the assets and liabilities of the Group's
overseas subsidiaries which are denominated in currencies
other than Renminbi are translated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. All
translation differences arising on consolidation are dealt with
in reserves. Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the period in which the operations
is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income taxes are provided for in accordance with tax
regulations of the PRC and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Ordinance applicable to the Group.

Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes
of certain items of income and expense in a different
accounting period from that in which they are recognised in
the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences,
computed under the liability method, is recognised as
deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent
that it is probable that a liability or asset will crystallise in
the foreseeable future.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net sales value of printing machines,
spare parts, raw materials and services from other
operations. The Group's turnover analysed by principal
activity is as follows:

EXy
Turnover
k. ot “ZE-F
2002 2001
ARBTIT AE¥TR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ARl RS & Manufacture and sales of printing machines 886,922 690,569
B REEHE Manufacture and sales of spare parts 26,054 9,377
21t £ ol B 7 Provision of printing services 17,049 -
EMHEER LM ER Trading of raw materials and other operations 16,160 4,874
HERH Total sales 946,185 704,820
A SHERREMHE Less: Sales tax and other surcharges (7,532) (4,873)
938,653 699,947
db N ED R OAE BB By OB A H TR B TR E R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

SEGMENTS
rEBZWAREETERBETE All of the Group's revenue and results are substantially derived
REMENRIMEIEEEE - JREHEM from the manufacture and sale of printing machines in Mainland
(B RBRBRIZBAREEERW China, and revenue and results derived from other business
Do segments and outside Mainland China are insignificant.
W REB2EEFENRFAEK Moreover, as substantially all of the Group's assets and
o WRBIZ2EEEBEAWMYD liabilities are located in Mainland China, and assets and
It BEEREKED M o liabilities located outside Mainland China are insignificant,
no segmental analysis of financial information is presented.
6. JALERBA 6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
H&EEWADHAT : Other operating income is analysed as follows:
ot 1 kS “EE-F
2002 2001
AR¥FT ARE®TR
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BTERAE Interest on bank deposits 3,048 2,150
ST R Exchange gain 414 1,061
hEHESR Compensation received for removal of factories 3,215 -
HAgA Others 3,231 2,208
9,908 5,419

7. BENH

7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

k- 1t —E2E-F
2002 2001
AR®FT AR® T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EEFIBEMR GTA): Profit from operations has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):
EMEH Depreciation and amortisation
BT HENZE Property, plant and equipment 53,524 47,512
FEFI R i 51 Technical knowhow
(EFAEHEAY) (included in administrative expenses) 1,086 457
REER Development costs
(EFAEHEAY) (included in administrative expenses) = 461
WEREHEE: Total depreciation and amortisation 54,610 48,430
HERT  HBENRE (Gain) loss on disposal of property,

Z(BREX plant and equipment (466) 1,261
ERIBEHCEX Loss on disposal of construction in progress 8,702 =
e e Auditors' remuneration 2,795 2,041
REEEHR Allowance for slow-moving inventories 7,952 1,670
ZIRER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 13,983 1,729
IRFE2EERA Minimum lease payments paid under operating

BEES leases in respect of factory facilities 863 1,038
MARRBEL Research and development expenses 15,032 10,809
EIYHBERESEMHS Staff costs including directors' emoluments 140,216 107,019
B &R Written off of intangible assets = 497

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

Y 5 B 8. FINANCE COSTS
—¥P-F “EE-F
2002 2001
AEETFIT ARETFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
REFREEREZRT Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
ERFEZE within five years 17,184 8,159
R B 4 9. DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS'
EMOLUMENTS
BEERESMEIMAT : The directors' and supervisors' emoluments are analysed
as follows:
—¥P-F “EE-F
2002 2001
AEETFIT ARETFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
ne Fees:
HTES Executive directors - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors - -
EE Supervisors - -
Hiniis Other emoluments:
BTES Executive directors
HFeREMFIR Salaries and other benefits 367 78
REEFEMN Contributions to retirement plan 7 7
RIERBR GRS Performance related bonus = 66
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors - -
E= Supervisors
EXRFEREMFIR Salaries and other benefits - 37
REETEMN Contributions to retirement plan = 9
RIERBR GRS Performance related bonus = 30
374 2217
374 227

PREERESHMETEMSUTA
Bl

& BRT(AE®RT)
Amount HK$ (Rmb)

The emoluments of the above directors and supervisors fall

within the following bands:

0- 1,000,000 (0 - 1,061,100)

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

ut. | et —2R-F

2002 2001

HAl BAY

Number of persons Number of persons

10 12
—®E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of five highest paid individuals for the year
were as below. The five highest paid individuals for 2002
included two (2001: one) directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 9 above.

k- ok —2E-f
2002 2001
AR¥FT AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HeRHEMAR Salaries and other benefits 824 312
RANSFTBHRT Contributions to retirement plan 17 28
RIERBARG RS Performance related bonus - 257
841 597
S BRT(ARET) k- 4 ot —2E-f
Amount HK$ (Rmb) 2002 2001
BAS BAY
Number of persons Number of persons
0- 1,000,000 (0 - 1,061,100) 5 5
11. BH 11. TAXATION
—22°% “ZE-F
2002 2001
ARETT AREFT
Rmb’'000 Rmb’'000
BEAE ! The charge comprises:
REEREARLNE Provision of PRC income tax
FEHEE for the year 15,027 13,738
HEERBAGHBESEM Underprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax
in prior year 30 -
15,057 13,738

RAT 2 FEFTER T A ERT BRI
215% (ZZZE—F : 15%) B =5t
B HMBARNAMERERBHE
EREARE -

EBNEB I URFEER MG ERB
BEFz16% (ZEF—F : 16%) BiZx
FTE o

AEBEEMUNMET  WEREME
RBRBET

REERARZBEIEFTERERE 2
BIIRHIEESL

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

The Company is subject to PRC income tax levied at a rate
of 15% (2001: 15%) of the taxable income. All subsidiaries
are subject to PRC income tax levied at a rate as specified
in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2001: 16%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The Group does not incur any significant tax liability in any

other jurisdiction.

Details of the potential deferred tax assets not recognised
for the year are set out in note 31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

12. APPROPRIATIONS AND DIVIDENDS

BEEEARES (M)
BEGEELAEE ()
BRERERESRARK.L0T
(=22-% : §RARM0.127)
#%422,000,0008%
(ZZZ—# : 400,000,000%)

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve (note)
Transfer to statutory public welfare fund (note)
Amount set aside for proposed final dividend of

Rmb0.10 (2001: Rmb0.12) per share
for the 422,000,000 shares

(2001: 400,000,000 shares) in issue
as at the date of proposal

13.

EEERBEMAEBREERARE
0.107t (=ZZF—F : AR®0.12T
o RARARBRERBRRASER
miA o
Mizk : RBHPEARANBEBEAE
k#HE SEHLAREESFR
RizFEETERREREZFR
BM210% > B AR
6,650,000t (=ZZ—F : A
R#6,486,0007T) ' D BIEEE
PEEMEERAZS - BERZ
ZZT—FFE BPEETE
Alfm & = B RS SR 3k P AE H L
AIHIRAE  BYFFEFERD
EBREZRED o Eit » &4 F]
EHEREERRNZEENE
EREELHRESBEARE
3,978,0007T ° Bl ZIZENE 58
EREFEEDTEBPHR -

(i3

TEEBREBRNZFTEEDREBASE
EZR A K¥69,336,000T (—EF
— & . AR#28,413,0005T) WIZA
2 517 2400,000,0008% (= FF—
F : 400,000,0008%) 5T & °

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

13.

FEE
THE GROUP
=t L L 2
2002 2001
ARBFE ARBF7
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
6,793 2,508
6,785 2,508
42,200 48,000
55,778 53,016

The final dividend of Rmb0.10 (2001: Rmb0.12) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in general meeting.

Note:

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Company appropriated Rmb6,650,000
(2001: Rmb6,486,000), being 10% of the Company's net
profit for the year prepared under the PRC accounting
standards, from the net profit for the year to each of the
statutory surplus reserve and the statutory public welfare
fund. However, during the year 2001, certain prior year
adjustments had been made to reduce the retained
profits as reported in the financial statements prepared
under the PRC accounting standards. Accordingly, the
Company was required to reverse the previous years'
appropriations of Rmb3,978,000 from each of the
statutory surplus reserve and the statutory public welfare
fund. The amount of the reversed appropriations had
been deducted from the amount of the prior year's
appropriation.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the net profit for the year of Rmb69,336,000 (2001:
Rmb28,413,000) and on the 400,000,000 shares (2001:
400,000,000 shares) in issue during the year.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

Tk RELE
L =3 wa 24 ] RE it
Furniture,
Land and  Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
AR ARETT AREFTT ARBTT ARETRT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
%A THE GROUP
H*E COST
WZZZE-F—H—H At1January 2002 355,847 430,699 50,008 23,628 860,182
NE Additions 1,840 10,338 1,892 3,050 17,120
WEEKE A RN ES Acquired on acquisition
of a subsidiary 72,535 21,669 2,762 261 97,227
REEIREA Transfer from construction
in progress 39,482 29,487 1,610 166 70,745
RBE Disposals (29,659) (44,823) (3,858) (3,859) (82,199)
RZBEZE
+T=ZA=t-H At 31 December 2002 440,045 447,370 52,414 23,246 963,075
RERERAE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
RZZZ-F—H—H AtlJanuary 2002 85,981 241,886 27,831 12,331 368,029
RERE Charge for the year 12,461 33,749 4,825 2,489 53,524
REERX (M) Impairment losses
recognised (note) - 6,418 - 6,418
BEREH Eliminated on disposals (10,167) (44,386) (3,568) (2,291) (60,412)
R-BE_f
T=-A=t-H At 31 December 2002 88,275 237,667 29,088 12,529 367,559
#EE;SE NET BOOK VALUES
R-BE—
+=ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2002 351,770 209,703 23,326 10,717 595,516
RZBE-§
+ZA=1+—-H At 31 December 2001 269,866 188,813 22,177 11,297 492,153
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14. M5 - BRESASEH ) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
Tk RHEER
#¥ B £ RE 1)
Furniture,
Land and  Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total

ABBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETZT
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

3L THE COMPANY
BF{E CosT
R-BE_f
—A—-H At 1 January 2002 312,341 350,943 44,264 16,210 723,758
hE Additions - 94 103 712 909
REEIREA Transfer from construction
in progress 32,973 20,129 1,576 166 54,844
BE Disposals (28.252)  (40,044) (3,643) (672)  (72,611)
R-ZE_f
+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2002 317,062 331,122 42,300 16,416 706,900
RENE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
RZEE-_F—H—H At 1 January 2002 80,696 213,237 25,281 8,966 328,180
RERE Charge for the year 7,269 24,351 2,656 1,760 36,036
RERX (M) Impairment losses
recognised (note) - 6,299 - - 6,299
I B B Bl 85 Eliminated on disposals (9,731) (38,642) (3,451) (683) (52,507)
R-ZE_f
+ZH=+-H At 31 December 2002 78,234 205,245 24,486 10,043 318,008
RERE NET BOOK VALUES
R-BE_f
+ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2002 238,828 125,877 17,814 6,373 388,892
R-BE-F
+ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2001 231,645 137,706 18,983 7,244 395,578
Mzt : R AEBHETF - HEWN Note: During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying
REZIREESEETER I amounts of property, plant and equipment and identified
BRIMEF - WBENRES that certain of those property, plant and equipment are
BERBLEEE B & either idle, or have no economic value to the Group.
ST BBINRENREE Accordingly, the carrying amounts of those identified
EREZEAEENTKRE S property, plant and equipment are reduced to their
BHEENZEET  HBENR respective recoverable amounts, which represent the net
BNFEE BHRZFEED selling prices of those property, plant and equipment.
SRIZERT  KEVNREE The net selling prices were determined by reference to
FETSHNFEEREE the market value of those property, plant and equipment

in the PRC.
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14. M5 - BB ) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
REERADNTZLHRIETF ZIRE An analysis of the net book value of the Group's and of the
FEIMAT : Company's land and buildings is as follows:
*5H F4FH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—ST-F C—E2E-F —2E°F -"E2E-f
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTET ARETT AERTT AR¥Trx
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
URFAENFERY  Land use rights in the PRC under
BEzIMERRE medium-term leases 71,932 26,424 21,879 22,335
WRBELREEL  Buildings in the PRC under
HEZETF medium-term leases 265,597 228,873 216,949 209,310
MREBUREEL  Land and buildings in Hong Kong
HEz L RET under long leases 14,241 14,569 - -
351,770 269,866 238,828 231,645
15. 7E T # 15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
*5E e 3/
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
ARETFT ARETFT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
R#E COST
RZEE-F—H—H At 1 January 2002 136,879 129,033
Y| Additions 177,339 167,944
KB RNES Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary 6,408 =
HIET  BBRARE Transfer to property, plant and equipment (70,745) (54,844)
8 Disposals (9,835) (5,210)
RZBB-F+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2002 240,046 236,923
wWE IMPAIRMENT
R-ZBZ-£-8-H1 At 1 January 2002 8,093 8,093
AEERRAZEBERX () Impairment losses recognised (note) 1,166 -
ESH R Eliminated on disposals (1,133) (1,133)
R-ZBZ-_E+-A=+-H At 31 December 2002 8,126 6,960
R B E CARRYING AMOUNT
RZBB-FE+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2002 231,920 229,963
RZEB-F+ZA=1—H At 31 December 2001 128,786 120,940
Mz : FR AEEHEEIRZIE Note: During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying
EERETER  WRRFHHG amounts of construction in progress and identified
EEI&E?@\%%E_EE&E{% that certain of those construction in progress either
TRt 2SERIRMR have no economic value to the Group or have ceased

BT W FE = EEMD B T U

e construction work. Accordingly, the carrying amounts
E &5 ° gly, ying

of those identified construction in progress are
reduced to their respective negligible recoverable
amounts.
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONTINUED)

EEIFEHUTEBEMARK : The construction in progress is made up of:
%M . 3

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—SP-F C-E2T-F "BBZF -"BET-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTFT ARETn ARETT AR%Tn
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BF Buildings 208,005 11,952 206,785 11,862
BESEREM Plant and machinery and others 23,915 116,834 23,178 109,078
231,920 128,786 229,963 120,940

AR T A R B 3 DA R B SR A0 A

The buildings are located in the PRC under medium-term

g leases.
16. L& 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
FEHHE
Technical knowhow
AREFTT
Rmb'000
X5H THE GROUP
B&{E COST
R=-ZZE-£-A-H At 1 January 2002 4,568
WEHEBATKES Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary 2,162
RZEZE-_F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2002 6,730
ZHRKH ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
R-ZZ-_F—-H—H At 1 January 2002 1,756
REFH Amortised for the year 1,086
R-ZE-F+-HA=1+—H At 31 December 2002 2,842
IR R E NET BOOK VALUES
RZEZE-_F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2002 3,888
RZEZE-F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2001 2,812
17. WBA A% 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
r 3|
THE COMPANY
ZEZCf —EE-F
2002 2001
ARBFIT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FLERBRERAK Unlisted investments/shares, at cost 154,517 69,957
R EERX Less: Impairment loss (1,072) =
153,445 69,957

FREWB AR FEERRNMEEI -
de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

Details of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

SRR OEE R
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18. W84 vl BE g 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
*5H
XN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

BB "% —EZ_F —EZ-F

2002 2001 2002 2001

ARBFT AR%Trx ARBTFT ARETT

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

FLETRERAE Unlisted investments, at cost - - 16,783 12,373

BoFEE Share of net assets 15,140 10,687 - -

15,140 10,687 16,783 12,373

R-ZZ2-F+ZA=1t—R  &&

Particulars of the associates at 31 December 2002 are as

BzHBEARFBELOT : follows:
ERE 55 M8 45 2 1R
LAFER BB BELLE FEXH
Place of Percentage of
establishment registered capital
Name and operation held by the Group Principal activity
ERLAREDNRROERAE REAR 4359%  RERIRY
(25PN} #AE
Ningxia Beiren Xihua Printing Limited PRC Provision of printing services
("Ningxia Beiren")
R AEBEDRIHE 8 REAR 45%  HEDRERES
BRAR ((E=LAER]) #AE
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing PRC Sale of printing machines and
Machinery Sales Limited accessories for printing
("Beijing Beiren Hengtong") machines
BEMNEAEBDREHERA R REAR 30%  HEBETERERESF
(TEMLAERE]) fAE
Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong PRC Market of printing machines and
Printing Machinery Limited accessories for printing
("Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong") machines
BELANRRMEHEEREELT PEAR 49%  HEDRBERES
(MEZELAL) HAE
Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery PRC Sale of printing machines and
Sales Limited ("Liaoning Beiren") accessories for printing
machines
tRERBRAREBRAF REAR 49%  HEDRIBKBEHRS
(t=ER]) HAE
Beijing Monigraf Automations Co. Ltd. PRC Sale of automations of

("Beijing Monigraf")

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

printing machines
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19.

For the year ended 31 December 2002

oAb 19. OTHER ASSETS
*5H =47
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
BB C—EET-F B2 —EE-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT AR¥Trx ARBTFT ARETT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
HgE Other investment 32,727 32,727 32,727 32,727

H {ih 3% & 15 — £ 8% 30,000,000 (
AR#32,727,0007T) 2 FIE - AR
BB OB RIS ([H2E]) o
RIBEEEAEHEERNER ((HE
El) BEFEREREAQATDHEEE
ZYE  HELERBHEES 2K
=R I B NN [ =
56,478,0007C (R ZHEMF]) » %R
HWRE -—HARERR-ZZT =

TZA=THAXM c REEFTRE
EEEBBRPITAIRBESR]IE
T c BRYIEEEREETHARNL
ARZENRERE AR AT

F 7 #530,000,000 T U BB 52 M 3 2
FERRZWE RBINR ZRELR o £
—EE_F_A—H > XLAFMNER
I AEHEE > ANBEGERM
K% — B ((FED) IR R R
Y - BERADNFHEERZR-F
EZ_F+-A=+t—HiERTEK °

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

The other investment represents a payment of
HK$30,000,000 (Rmb32,727,000 equivalent) for purchase
consideration for four shops (the "Properties") located in
Macau. According to the terms of various sale and purchase
promissory agreements (the "Sales and Purchase
Promissory Agreements"), the vendor of the Properties has
the option to request the Company to waive its right to buy
the Properties if the vendor makes instalment payments
("Option Payments") totalling HK$56,478,000 to the
Company in accordance with agreed terms and schedules,
the last of which was expected to be made before 30
December 2002. The Option Payments were recorded as
"Option Payments Received" under current liabilities in the
balance sheet. During the year, the vendor of the Properties
failed to pay the total Option Payments before the expiry
date, and therefore the Company was entitled to utilise the
payment of HK$30,000,000 to acquire the Properties and
forfeit the amount of the Option Payments received. On 1
February 2002, the Company and the vendor entered into a
sale and purchase agreement for the Company to acquire
the entire floor of another property (the "New Properties")
also located in Macau in exchange for the Properties.
However, at 31 December 2002, the Company had not
completed the acquisition of the New Properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

reyl 20. INVENTORIES
E3 1. | 3
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Z$2-% -¥T-5 CEP-§ C-ET-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTFT ARETR ARETTT ARMTFT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
R Raw materials 78,966 79,078 29,418 37,863
KER Work-in-progress 256,464 240,085 183,345 194,491
ER R Finished goods 186,503 166,148 156,579 154,729
521,933 485,311 369,342 387,083
REBEz FRFEBREERISREBEZ Included in the Group's balance above are raw materials of
FE# R AR #30,169,0000T (=2 Rmb30,169,000 (2001: Rmb38,561,000), work-in-progress
— % . AK¥38,561,0007t) " EE of Rmb184,362,000 (2001: Rmb214,158,000) and finished
M A R#184,362,0007T ' (ZEZ— goods of Rmb160,147,000 (2001: Rmb161,803,000) which
F . AR#¥214,158,0007t) K E KM are carried at net realisable value.
AR#160,147,0007T (ZEZF—F :
AR#161,803,0007T) °
ARAlz Lz EREEAEHEZ Included in the Company's balance above are raw materials
FE#E AR#29,418,0007T (ZEF of Rmb29,418,000 (2001: Rmb37,863,000), work-in-
— % : A\R¥37,863,000T) * £ /& progress of Rmb183,345,000 (2001: Rmb194,491,000) and
@ A R#183,345,000T (ZBE— finished goods of Rmb156,579,000 (2001: Rmb154,729,000)
F : AR¥194,491,0007T) & E K MW which are carried at net realisable value.
AR#156,579,0007T (ZEZ—% :
AR #154,729,0007T) °
HECEL K ~ FfFk R LfbiE 21, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS

Wk

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

x50 . N

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
ZE2ZF C—EZEZ-fF k1 a3 —EE-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT ARETR ARBFT AR%Trn
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
EWERK Accounts receivable 189,297 126,124 114,872 104,065
SEENE Prepayments 19,044 16,863 5,104 14,594
Hin W Other receivables 33,757 19,545 18,013 12,346
242,098 162,532 137,989 131,005

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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21.
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Bewk )

AAR-—RETEFATEZE—ENT
REYSFRA -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

21.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Customers are normally given a credit period of 90 - 180
days.

x50 3N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—B2-§F C—ET-F —23°§ —Z2E-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT AR¥Frn ARBFTT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
I & Rk iR The aged analysis of accounts
AWWMT receivable is as follows:
REIH Amount not yet due 170,501 116,822 110,533 101,734
BHETER—F Overdue by less than one year 6,860 4,802 3,419 2,090
BHER—FE Overdue by more than one year,
TEB=F but not exceeding two years 7,186 3,699 920 =
BHER-FE Overdue by more than two years,
TEB=F but not exceeding three years 2,881 801 = 241
BHER=F Overdue by more than three years 1,869 = - =
189,297 126,124 114,872 104,065

REER  AEERAAFZHME
W R B IE R e 17 B P B & Rl AR
#Et# AR #10,000,000T (Z2F
— & : AR#¥10,000,0007t) #IE
TR ZEFRHCEH - BARE
BB NERIE - ADRREERE
REELEHEN - EESHEES
BFEEEENZEERBALPEAA
REBTHALLESRMERNTATH o

EEMEEREEEERBEESLE
HERBELIER  TEEERIEH
Z A B HE LR S AR AL A F
LR - WRERBEBAERMETR
gel B ZB 0 IR ELA K% 4,844,0007T
(ZZ2E—F : AR%4,562,0007T)
BREFBZER °

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

At the balance sheet date, included in other receivables of
the Group and the Company were certain fixed deposits
placed with financial institutions in the PRC amounting to
approximately Rmb10,000,000 (2001: Rmb10,000,000),
which have already matured. However, due to internal
problems of these institutions, the Company has been unable
to uplift these deposits. All of these financial institutions
operate under valid business licences and permits issued
by the People's Bank of China to operate as financial
institutions.

The directors are taking all reasonable measures to secure
the repayment of these deposits and ceased accruing
interest until it is established that the interest will probably
be received by the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
an allowance of Rmb4,844,000 (2001: Rmb4,562,000) has
been recognised in respect of the estimated non-recoverable
portion of these deposits.
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(REEEAREENRR)
—EE_F+_HA=+—HIFE
22. WA tER KB4

For the year ended 31 December 2002

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

=5%H XN

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—E2-F CZEE-fF —EZ_F —ET-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT ARETX ARBFT AR%TT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

FEREBEB=MAA Bank deposits with maturity

HRTER over three months 8,487 21,224 8,487 21,224
HitRTEHKRESEL  Other bank balances and cash 181,987 196,842 131,275 174,390
190,474 218,066 139,762 195,614

REER  AEERTFRRRSEE
B 413,020,000T (ZEZ—
F : #8%24,088,000w) ' ExTH
102,0005t (—=ZZ—F : %7136,0007T
) WT#1,740 (2 E—F  ®)K A
J0#923,281,0007T (—ZZ—F : At
8,715,0007m) EHHNARELN
16,276,0007T (ZEZ—F : AR
26,409,000T) °

As at the balance sheet date, the Group's bank balances
and cash included foreign currency deposits of
HK$13,020,000 (2001: HK$24,088,000), US$102,000 (2001:
US$36,000), EURO1,740 (2001: Nil) and JPY23,281,000
(2001: JPY8,715,000) equivalent to approximately an
aggregate of Rmb16,276,000 (2001: Rmb26,409,000).

23, KEATMRAX 23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
*5H F4FH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—EZ-§ —ZE-F —2T-E —EET-f
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBBFT AR®Fr ARBFTT AREFx
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
FEAS IR R IR R 2 AT The aged analysis of accounts
mr payable is as below:
BRFEB—F Due within one year 138,505 68,960 83,668 39,677
BHER—F Due more than one year, but not
BREA-F exceeding two years 4,271 33,867 870 27,201
BHER-F Due more than two years, but not
BEFREBA=F exceeding three years 3,512 = - =
146,288 102,827 84,538 66,878

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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24. I AfbHEA K 24. OTHER PAYABLES
31 ]| . I
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“E2-f C"ZTT-F C"BBE-_f _"TT-F§
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT AR®FTr ARBFT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BIER Staff welfare 19,279 11,625 12,176 8,106
Hih AT Other payables 109,370 34,484 84,011 18,617
128,649 46,109 96,187 26,723

25. MEfTRAPRIBE AW WEBA 25

AMOUNTS DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING

W) A BB B COMPANY/MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF SUBSIDIARIES
FEAEEREF REREREER Amounts are unsecured, interest free and have no
B o predetermined terms of repayment.
26. BiE 4 26. PROVISION FOR TAXES AND LEVIES
EEME L7
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“BBCF C"BR-F BB C—BR-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BEH Value added tax 16,340 17,322 6,535 15,947
HmAEERERH Urban maintenance and
construction tax 516 1,169 500 1,120
EHER Sales tax 78 27 1 9
BEH Property tax 1 - - _
HbHE Other taxes 882 552 846 535
17,817 19,070 7,892 17,611
Fris® R AIEH Income tax 3,383 4,182 3,153 5,507
21,200 23,252 11,045 23,118
27. R GREAE K 27. OPTION PAYMENTS RECEIVED

FEMFELI9ME - REEARTIEEME
B REERGHES AR ZMRAR
BRI 2 FE -

90 | db A Ep OB OME BB AR A A

The amount represents the Option Payments made by the
vendor of the Properties to the Company according to the
agreed terms and schedules of the Sale and Purchase
Promissory Agreements, details of which are set out in note
19.

SRR OEE R
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28. fii= 28. BORROWINGS
310 . N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—BB°f C—ZTT-F —EE_F —EE-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT ARETR ARBFT AR%Trn
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BREUT 28 Borrowings comprise loans
AR as follows:
WITER Bank loans 307,750 265,550 227,000 220,000
HihE® Other loans 29,884 200 - -
337,634 265,750 227,000 220,000
Eii Secured 47,500 = - -
FIE A Unsecured 290,134 265,750 227,000 220,000
337,634 265,750 227,000 220,000
TREFKEN The maturity of the above
AMBEWMT : loans is as follows:
BREREND On demand or within
R—FR one year 261,734 264,050 195,000 220,000
BRE—-F8 More than one year, but
TEB=F not exceeding two years 75,900 1,700 32,000 =
337,634 265,750 227,000 220,000
B —FAHER Less: Amounts due within
JIARBEE one year shown under
current liabilities (261,734) (264,050) (195,000) (220,000)
—ERIBPER Amounts due after one year 75,900 1,700 32,000 -

R=ZBE-_F+-A=+—0  Hf
B R EE—E AR®29,550,0007T
B—FAaNEERRIEEBEORZR
EER - ZTLABR_EENESR
—EEHFEEZERTEREAFY
EEFIAZBER -

R-ZZE—F+-_A=+—H HEfb
EREE—FHBNEERALRAT
WREER - ZERCRAFERE
= o thh 0 B AKR¥223,500,00077T (
—EZ—% : AR%20,000,0007t) iR
TERRAADARAERAT - 1
AEBRARRMER - ARY

At 31 December 2002, included in other loans was

Rmb29,500,000 non-interest bearing loan payable to 3t 3

FBENRR, a minority shareholder of a subsidiary. The subsidiary

will repay dt BB EI the loan on a monthly basis in the
period from year 2004 to 2007.

At 31 December 2001, included in other loan was a non-
interest bearing loan granted from the PRC government to
the Company. The loan has been repaid during the year.

In addition, included in borrowings is bank loans totalling

Rmb223,500,000 (2001: Rmb20,000,000) which is

47,500,0007C (= ZZ—F : ) EH
REBLMER KL ARE48,979,000
TLZWE - BREREMERR -

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

guaranteed by BGC, the Company's ultimate holding
company; and bank loans totalling Rmb47,500,000 (2001:
Nil) which is secured by the Group's properties, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately Rmb48,979,000.
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29. JBA 29. SHARE CAPITAL
k. 3 et “EE-F
2002 2001
ARBTIT AR®TFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
a2 ERTRBERAK Registered, issued and fully paid:
300,000,000/ & R E & 300,000,000 ordinary A Shares of
ARE-—T2EBRAR Rmb1 each 300,000 300,000
100,000,000/ & IR E & 100,000,000 ordinary H Shares of
ARE-—T2ERBRHE Rmb1 each 100,000 100,000
400,000 400,000
RARBMERNZEEE o There were no movements in the share capital of the

Company in either year.

30. faifli 30. RESERVES
K& R EE EE 7=
B REREE LRe -3 L2Re BUSF RERRH it
Statutory
Statutory public Discretionary
Share Capital surplus welfare surplus  Retained  Dividend
premium reserve reserve fund reserve profits reserve Total

ARBTTE ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000 ~ Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

F48
THE COMPANY
R=ZZ-%-H-H 316,663 12,779 45,460 39,806 42,979 57,161 40,000 554,848
At 1 January 2001
KEBRF - - - - - 29282 = 29,282
Net profit for the year
KERBEIE = = 2,508 2,508 = (5,016) = =
Appropriations
ERERE = = = = = = (40,000)  (40,000)
Dividend paid
RRBERARE 2 &R - - - - - (48,000) 48,000 -
Amount set aside for

proposed final dividend

R-ZZZ2-F+-HA=1+-H 316,663 12,779 47,968 42,314 42,979 33,427 43,000 544,130
At 31 December 2001
KEFEA - - - - - 68,045 - 68,045
Net profit for the year
KERBEIE = = 6,650 6,650 - (13,300 = =
Appropriations
ERERE - - - - - = (48,000)  (48,000)
Dividend paid
BRBEABREZER = = = = - (42,200) 42,200 -
Amount set aside for

proposed final dividend

RZEE-F+-A=1—H 316,663 12,779 54,618 48,964 42,979 45,972 42,200 564,175
At 31 December 2002

92 | b A Ep R OME MR AR A A ZERFES W
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BEARREARZEREFE
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AERBFEARN AEBER
HEEEARE427,000T
WEEEB (CEE—F: AR
®£427,0007T) °

(c) WREFEBEEIEREEZE &
BARESEESEIRTES T
HEFEZRBEBF 2D
Z2TEEEATES - EEHE
STEEINEMERAZESZE
TAEE - _EE—FEFEHRK
FEgTERmB A EEFHE
HE BREFEESESH
AR #3,978,0007T °

BRIEANARWEEH » TRIRDGEE
#fF - ERREBEREEARE TR
BAGRR -

RETREBEEERS
5 BEAREEED
B EPEEHETE
ZBRRERNZAD Z
THEEELHES (A&
) ZR@mTKER
REITEBMHEER - R
BRAAREMANUSR
EEF

d @O

(i) AATEBEATBER
Flz10%n (ZEZF—
F:10%) BEWAQR
& T —FFEH
RPBEETTBEmMER
RIEERERAE AR
EAFEIREREAR
#£3,978,0007C °
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For the year ended 31 December 2002
30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(©

Share premium represents the excess of proceeds
received on issue of shares over the par value of
registered share capital net of share issuing
expenses.

The excess of the net assets contributed by BGC over
the par value of shares issued thereto at the date of
establishment is credited to the capital reserve.
Included in the Group's capital reserve is negative
goodwill of Rmb427,000 (2001: Rmb427,000).

According to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
a company is required to make an appropriation at the
rate of 10 per cent of the profit after taxation of the
company, prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
account until the accumulated balance has reached
50 per cent of the registered capital of the company.
During the year 2001, certain prior year adjustments
had been made to the financial statements prepared
under the PRC accounting standards with the effect to
reduce retained profits and the Company is,
accordingly, required to reverse the previous years'
appropriations to the extent of Rmb3,978,000 from the
statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the
provisions of the PRC accounting standards.

The share premium, capital reserve and statutory surplus
reserve are non-distributable to shareholders other than
when the Company is in liquidation.

(d)

0] According to the PRC relevant laws and
regulations, a company is required to make
an appropriation at the rate of 5 to 10 per
cent of the profit after taxation of the
company, prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards, to the statutory public
welfare fund account ("PWF"). The PWF will
be utilised on capital items for employees'
collective welfare, and unutilised PWF must
be kept in cash.

(i) The appropriation to the 2002 PWF is made
at 10% (2001: 10%). During the year 2001,
certain prior year adjustments had been
made to the financial statements prepared
under the PRC accounting standards with the
effect to reduce retained profits and the
Company is, accordingly, required to reverse
the previous years' appropriations from the
PWF to the extent of Rmb3,978,000 in
accordance with the provisions of the PRC
accounting standards.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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R-BEZF+ZR=
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Eﬁﬂs 964,0007T (=
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EFELAES AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002
30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2002, the Company's
unutilised PWF was Rmb48,964,000 (2001:
Rmb42,314,000).

In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association, the Company may appropriate funds to
the discretionary surplus reserve after it discharges
its obligations on the statutory reserves.

(i)

(i)

The retained profits of the Group include
losses of Rmb909,000 (2001: profits of
Rmb7,000) retained by associates of the
Group.

According to the Company's Articles of
Association and the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, the amount of reserve
distributable to shareholders is based on the
total of the Company's discretionary surplus
reserve and retained profits, prepared under
the PRC accounting standards and prepared
under Hong Kong accounting standards,
whichever is lower. As at 31 December 2002,
the amount distributable to the Company's
shareholders is Rmb74,683,000 (2001:
Rmb76,406,000) which is the aggregrate of the
Company’s discretionary surplus reserve of
Rmb42,980,000 and retained profits of
Rmb31,703,000 prepared under the PRC
accounting standards.

Dividend reserve represents dividends proposed or
declared after the balance sheet date and is disclosed
as a separate component of equity at the balance
sheet date.
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31. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial
statements in respect of tax losses available to offset future
profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised
in the foreseeable future.

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the net
unprovided deferred tax asset (liability) were as follows:

FEEARFLF

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

k1 a3 —EE-F

2002 2001

AR®TFTT ARM T

Rmb’'000 Rmb’'000

KERZzHEFE: Tax effect of timing differences because of:

ZiREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 5,316 3,068

EEE Allowance for slow-moving inventories 3,547 2,355
HtEER% Other timing differences (120) (120)

8,743 5,303

RAFERARZIELERSHEEN

The amount of the unprovided deferred tax credit for the

T year is as follows:
FEARFLE
THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY
- -1 a3 —EE-F
2002 2001
AR®FT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BERZZHERE Tax effect of timing differences because of:
RIRER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 2,248 259
REERH Allowance for slow-moving inventories 1,192 251
3,440 510

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

32.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Company had acquired a 53.47% interest
in Shaanxi Huanggong Group Printing Machinery Company
Limited (“Shaanxi Huanggong”) from a third party, Shaanxi
Huanghe Engineering Machinery Group Company Limited
(“Shaanxi Huanghe”). Accordingly, the Company had to take
up all the employees af Shaanxi Huanggong, and the
management of the retired including the related settlement
fee and medical expenses. With reference to the regulations
issued by the Shaanxi government, the accrued expenses
for the settlement fee and medical expenses were amounted
to approximately Rmb22,184,000. This transaction has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

Subsequent to the above acquisition, the Company injected
Rmb60,770,000 capital into Shaanxi Huanggong.
Accordingly, the interest of the Company in Shaanxi
Huanggong was increased from 53.47% to 84.18%. Shaanxi
Huanggong was then renamed as Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited.

ARBF T
Rmb'000
WE2EEFRE NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
EEEE Property, plant and equipment 97,227
FERIR Construction in progress 6,408
BEEE Intangible assets 2,162
rE Inventories 52,527
BUYIRRR - FRATIRFR R Accounts receivable, prepayments and
H fih fE U 3K other receivables 54,013
RITERRES Bank balances and cash 5,053
FE S 1R K Accounts payable (21,203)
LAt & UK Other payables (46,935)
i RNETE Provision for taxes and levies (459)
ER——FREIH Borrowings - due within one year (39,155)
BR——FEE 5 Borrowings - due after one year (71,629)
DR RER Minority interests (15,825)
22,184
THREZER Satisfied by:
HRUESI M TES A Expenses accrued in relation to the acquisition 22,184
EWBERZEESRA Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
W ZSRTERRRS Bank balances and cash acquired 5,053

WEECHBARAEREEERARE
122,887,000t 2 E £ M AR
2,503,000 T Z E5 15 °

b A Bp R OB AR OB By AR & F

The subsidiary acquired during the year contributed
Rmb122,887,000 to the Group's turnover, and a loss of
Rmb2,503,000 to the Group's result.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the transactions between the Group and

T related parties are as follows:
i3 ut 1 et S
NOTES 2002 2001
ARBTT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000
REHE Sales transacted on behalf of
the Company by (@
- EHEEEOQT ((LHE]) — Beijing Yan Long Import and
(T AEEZTAR) Export Company
("Beijing Yan Long")
(a subsidiary of BGC) 1,923 1,132
—LAKE (RAERAR) — BGC (ultimate holding company) = 427,581
- LR AER BELQH) — Beijing Beiren Hengtong (an associate) 60,694 =
-BEHA (BHEAR) — Liaoning Beiren (an associate) 18,079 =
-BMEAER BELH) — Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong
(an associate) 3,413 -
SEEIR & Sale of printing machines to (d)
- L AEE (REERAF) — BGC (ultimate holding company) 15,436 11,845
-ZERLA BEQT) — Ningxia Beiren (an associate) = 6,832
HEWHE Sale of materials to (d)
- L AEE (REAERAA) — BGC (ultimate holding company) 910 1,127
- RUMBARZOBRE — Minority shareholders of certain
subsidiaries 3,042 216
fHEXH Reimbursement of expenses from (d)
—IRIEAKBE EAREZTAT) — Beijing Beiren Hotel (a subsidiary of BGC) 207 1,611
BEWH Purchase of materials from (d)
-t R&E GAAKEZTAR) — Beijing Yan Long (a subsidiary of BGC) 119 6,040
- L AR (REERAF) — BGC (ultimate holding company) 5,866 5,219
-RUMBARZPERR — Minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries 12,211 15,764
HERS Sale commission paid to (a)&(b)

~RRE (EAEE2727)
- AER (BABRAT)
-tREAER (BELT)
~EELA (BELT)

- RN AES BEAT)
AR

~§ AER BAERAT)

HAR
-HAKE BEERAF)

HRBA
-itRER

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

— Beijing Yan Long (a subsidiary of BGC) - 34

— BGC (ultimate holding company) - 11,013

— Beijing Beiren Hengtong (an associate) 364 -

— Liaoning Beiren (an associate) 194 -

— Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong (an associate) 553 -
Payment of land use right to (b)

— BGC (ultimate holding company) 1,610 2,000
Trademark fee paid to (c)

— BGC (ultimate holding company) 6,000 5,777
Rental income received from

— Beiren Monigraf (an associate) (e) 100 -

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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B ANIRE BREE
Bk - AHIS0E - HHEA
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EHMF33(a) it E/M e
bR e IZFHEMEIRAR
#£2,000,0007t » EAKEEE
[El:Z A R#2,000,000t B SH &
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EHIRE ~ B R EBERE
EEER A AEBR SR T 2
PIHFERE -
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=F+tA+MBR Lz 4t
AEBERERAQBAZERET
ARFEAMEAIEEZFERRE -
WEAEBZ AKE15,0005TE L
REBEPEAERMLAIFEE
M2 HEWE 2 1%t ECImE
BEERE)-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

33.

Note:

(@)

(b)

(©)

By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC agreed to
be the sole sales agent for the Company's products in
the PRC at a fee equal to three per cent of the domestic
sales in the PRC of the Company's products.

By an agreement dated 20 November 2001, the above
agreement with BGC dated 14 July 1993 was cancelled
and terminated.

By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, Beijing Yan Long,
a subsidiary of BGC, agreed to provide to the Company
export sales, marketing and after sales services for the
Company's products at a fee equal to three per cent of
the annual export turnover of products marketed by
Beijing Yan Long.

By an agreement dated 18 June 1994, BGC agreed to
grant to the Company the right to use the factory area,
roads and relevant facilities for a term of 50 years at a
fee of Rmb2,000,000 per annum with the term calculated
from 1 January 1993. BGC also agreed to deduct this
fee from the sole agent fee as mentioned in note 33(a).
If the annual sole agent fee receivable by BGC is less
than Rmb2,000,000, BGC agreed to refund the amount
equal to the excess of Rmb2,000,000 over the sole agent
fee to the Company. During the year, since the Company
commenced removal of factories, some of the factory
area, roads and relevant facilities could not be used,
BGC had reduced some of the land use right fee.

By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC agreed to
grant to the Company the right to use the "Beiren"
trademark for its products at a fee payable quarterly of
Rmb15,000 or at the rate of one per cent of the sale
proceeds from products using the "Beiren" trademark
during that relevant period, whichever is the higher.

SRR OEE R
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RBRPEERRE  AEEEQTE
BB HEERIELFHION (=8
Z—F 19%)NBIEREERR
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33.

34.

415

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Note: (continued)

(d) By an agreement dated 14 July 1993, BGC and the
Company agreed to sell to each other raw materials at
original purchase prices and the Company further agreed
to sell to BGC processed parts at a price equal to 115
per cent of its production cost.

Sale and purchase of materials with the minority
shareholders were carried out at terms and price agreed
between the Group and the minority shareholders.

Sale of printing machines to BGC and the associate was
carried out at terms agreed between the Group and the
parties involved, the pricing of which was determined
with reference to the market price estimated by the
directors of the Company.

Expenses were reimbursed by Beijing Beiren Hotel as
incurred by the Company.

(e) By an agreement dated 10 December 2001, the
Company agreed to lease the properties located in
Beijing to Beijing Monigraf for a terms of three years at
a fee of Rmb100,000 per annum with a term calculated
from 10 December 2001.

RETIREMENT PLAN

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
the Group has to pay a sum equal to 19 per cent (2001: 19
per cent) of the total wages and salaries to the government
of the PRC, being the Group's contribution in respect of the
statutory retirement fund in satisfaction of the Group's
obligations to the PRC employees' retirement benefits. Total
expenses for 2002 amounted to Rmb11,664,000 (2001:
Rmb14,187,000). Except for the above, the Group has no
other obligations or commitments in respect of retirement
benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2001, the Group
and the Company had no outstanding contingent liabilities.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

ARG 36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
R=BE_F+-A=+—-H &&E As at 31 December 2002, the Group and the Company had
BEEAR QT H U TEREIE : the following capital commitments:
3 4. | . 3
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—88Zf C—EZT-H§ TBBZF§ C"ET-§
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTFT ARETn ARETT AR®Tn
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BETERERR Contracted but not provided for
BHMERABE  the purchase of property,
BEET B3 plant and equipment
MRt 102,911 17,082 102,911 17,082
EREEREL L Authorised but not contracted for
BEET B3 Purchase of property,
I plant and equipment - 647 - 647
AMBARNEE Capital contribution in a subsidiary - = - 60,770
102,911 17,729 102,911 78,499
RLEARYE 37. LEASE COMMITMENTS
R-BE_F+-_A=+—HF5KHE As at 31 December 2002, the Group and the Company had
Eﬁizii AU ABUE & EHAHE A commitments for future minimum lease payments payable
NE - ERRBESREZZFEREM under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
H‘ﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁk?ﬁéﬁﬂ— 3 office, warehouse and factory facilities which fall due as
follows:
x50 3N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
—B2-§F C—ET-5 BB C-ET-§
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBFT AREFrn ARBFTT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
F-ERIH Within one year 927 913 260 260
“ZFEREREH  Inthe second to fifth years inclusive 1,076 1,679 1,040 1,040
BERFHH Over five years 580 920 580 920
2,583 3,512 1,880 2,220
BEBENEEENBREHLIF Operating leases are negotiated for terms up to 17 years.

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

38. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

According to the resolutions passed on 16 May 2001 and 11
June 2002, and the approval of the additional issue of A
Shares ("A Share Issue”) granted by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, the Company proposed to issue
not more than 22,000,000 A Shares with a nominal value of
Rmb1 per share. On 7 January 2003, 22,000,000 A Shares
were issued at a issue price of Rmb7 per share. As a result,
the net proceeds from the A Share Issue amounted to
Rmb141,342,854.65 (equivalent to approximately

HK$133,342,000).

Bk ) 2 wil 39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
13015472 FARREERES EREE/ 8
LFER BRREE BROTBRFZILA BTRE RENE IERH
Place and Percentage of
nature of registered/issued Registered/  Principal
establishment/ share capital issued place of
Name incorporation held by the Company share capital operation  Principal activities
HE M&
Directly Indirectly
EREARMDBEER o 62.5 - AK® 4,000,000 TE  EEBOREE
SRFAEH (&) M
Beijing Beiren Taihe PRC- (note) Rmb4,000,000 PRC  Manufacture of
Printing and Casting Co-operative casting parts for
Factory joint venture printing machines
REGRAT BB 100 = B3I BB AIEERUBERZRE
BERERHLT RRERTEE
Sheenlite Limited Hong Kong- HK$3 Hong Kong  Provision of Hong
Limited Kong representative
liability company office and asset
custodial service
to the Group
b I PNCET T E 50.68 - AK™%4,802,6007 hE  EERLH
R HIEE DR
Hebei Beiren Gei Zhi PRC- Rmb4,802,600 PRC  Manufacture of paper
Ji Chang Joint venture feeder machines
limited by shares
b AE T DRI e 70 - % 715,100,000 hE  EERKORB
BRAR PARELE
Beijing Beiren Fuji PRC - US$5,100,000 PRC  Manufacture of form
Printing Machinery Sino-foreign equity printing machines
Company Limited joint venture enterprise
B ADRBEER e 512 - AK%29,000,0007 wE  EEDRIEN
EEQH BERERHLT
Haimen Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb29,000,000 PRC  Manufacture of
Machinery Company Limited printing machines
Limited liability company
ETREAREDREEE  E 98.77 - AK® 4,050,000 PR EEBORTHA
R HIEE QT
Beijing Beiren Jing Yan PRC- Rmb4,050,000 PRC  Manufacture of
Printing Machinery Joint venture accessories for

Factory
Company

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

limited by shares
joint venture
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

301 FLRREERES EREE/ Ed
LFEH BEREE BRITREZLH BTRE REME IERH
Place and Percentage of
nature of registered/issued Registered/  Principal
establishment/ share capital issued  place of
Name incorporation held by the Company share capital operation  Principal activities
E& R
Directly Indirectly
EREADEBRRF g 100 - AK®3,150,000% TE B
EEfAHEE
Beijing Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb3,150,000 PRC  Transportation
Machinery Transportation ~ Co-operative business
R NERSEBE i - 100  AR#200,0007 wE  REBE
gai ERMANGE
Beijing Beiren Motor PRC- Rmb200,000 PRC  Repair and
Vehicle Repair and Co-operative maintenance of
Maintenance Centre joint venture motor vehicles
bR A DRI BB PE 94.65 - AK® 2,000,000 wE  EEORBSHE
ERAEH
Beijing Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb2,000,000 PRC  Manufacture of parts
Machinery Accessories Co-operative and components for
Factory joint venture printing machines
EREADHBOER RE 68.66 - AK®22,430,000% PE REER
NG BERERART EREDRRS
Beijing Beiren Yuxin PRC- Rmb22,430,000 PRC  Provision of magazine
Offset Printing Limited Limited and book printing
liability company service
FEz it ALt = BRI 8 85 - AR®1500,0007 hE  HEDREREA
BRAA BREAHAR
Xian Beiren Beifu PRC- Rmb1,500,000 PRC  Sale of printing
Printing Machinery Limited machines and
Sales Limited liability company accessories for
printing machines
AT I NEDRIBEE 8 RE 55 - AK® 15000007 PE  HEDRRRES
BRAH BREEHAR
Zhejiang Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb1,500,000 PRC  Sale of printing
Machinery Sales Limited  Limited machines and
liability company accessories for
printing machines
i3t 36 A ED I 4 8 e 51 - AR#1500,0007 hE  HEDREREH
BRARE BREAHAR
Hubei Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb1,500,000 PRC  Sale of printing
Machinery Sales Limited  Limited machines and
liability company accessories for
printing machines
RELADREHERAE +E 84.18 - AR¥100,000,0007T PE  HEDRRRES
BREEHAR
Shaanxi Beiren Printing PRC- Rmb100,000,000 PRC  Sale of printing
Machinery Company Limited machines and

Limited

=

liability company

E::II:E'\:U:AK?'F[]EH% BEME

B ASEEGHESZ D
m%&m%

R-BZE-F+-A=+—A - BHENH
BLARAEBRTEMABERES

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

Note: According to the joint venture agreement on Beijing
Beiren Taihe Printing and Casting Factory, the Group's

share of profit or loss is 70%.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

accessories for
printing machines
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

40. THE EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ARISING FROM THE
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN PRC
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND HONG
KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

35H
THE GROUP
22 C—2B-§ CZBBZFE C-BZ-F
BHA B8 BHA REE
Net profit Net profit ~ Net assets Net assets
for for as at as at
2002 2001 2002 2001
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BRRESHENZGEH As reported under PRC
accounting standards 68,941 64,282 979,111 951,126
REBAREHENZRE Adjustments made to conform
with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong:
- LTAKERAEEME — difference in valuation of net
ZER assets contributed to the
Company by BGC - - (60,198) (60,198)
- AKERAEEME — consequential adjustment on
EE7HBHE net assets contributed by BGC 480 - 9,570 9,090
-hE-HBAREEZERE - difference in valuation of net
HEER assets upon acquisition of
a subsidiary - - (792) -
-RAMBAREERE — difference in valuation of capital
ZER contribution to subsidiaries 31 31 (1,742) (1,773)
-CRPESHENRR —receipt of option payments
ARAZRZERH recognised as income under
PRC accounting standards - (4,092) (24,209) (24,209)
-ABREEHEIZER — difference in recognition of
liability for final dividends = = 42,200 48,000
-HittEERERAZER — difference in impairment loss in
value of other assets = 8,333 8,333 8,333
—-HET  HENRERAEE  —impairment losses in respect of
IRABNRHERL property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress - (39,783) - -
—Hftr —others (116) (358) (742) (174)
REBARGHEL As reported under accounting
ZEEY principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong 69,336 28,413 951,531 930,195

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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2002 AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

De Shi Jing (Shen) Bao Zi (03) No. 126

To the shareholders of Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings
Limited:

We were engaged to audit the Group’s and the Company’s balance
sheet as of 31 December, 2002 and the Group’s and the Company’s
profit and loss account and profits distribution and cash flow
statement, for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing
Standards for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our audit
included such test of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures as we considered necessary in the practical
circumstances of the Company.

In our opinion, such financial statements are prepared in conformity
with the “Accounting Standard”, and the “Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises” and, in all material respects, present
fairly the financial positions of the Company and the Group as at
31 December, 2002 and the results of its operations and cash flow
for the year then ended. The accounting policies adopted follow
the consistency principle.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
Chinese Certified Public Accountants

Cui Jing Jing Yiging

Shanghai, China

10 April 2003
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BALANCE SHEET

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
As at 31 December 2002

REARE
(iR4% P B B 3+ B 4R 1)
—EF-F+-f=+—F

By ARET
Unit: RMB
BE Assets BisE EHEXRH EHENH NGEF Y [FENH
Notes The Group The Group ~ The Company  The Company
2002 Closing 2001 Opening 2002 Closing 2001 Opening
balance balance balance balance
REEE : Current assets
E¥ES Cash and bank balances 7 186,886,282.11  217,447,347.74  139,762,305.41  195,614,130.48
L ES Bill receivables 8 14,352,100.00 9,265,070.28  16,665,896.19 9,265,070.28
A Account receivables 9 184,009,844.69  121,380,229.14  138,399,585.91  108,255,124.46
H iU Other receivable 10 31,666,688.88  21,089,795.18  69,319,289.64  67,451,487.68
BIRM Prepayment 12 18,002,960.10  16,863,192.44 5,103,949.21  15,594,032.64
78 Inventories 13 521,658,881.92  478,984,417.38  369,342,042.90  380,756,559.48
FHER Deferred expenses 14 1,633,528.16 892,328.08 = 5,153.86
RBEES Total current assets 958,210,285.86  865,922,380.24  783,593,069.26  776,941,558.88
REKE : Long term investment
RERERE Long term equity 15 17,460,855.80  15,470,000.38  160,484,105.87  72,463,337.67
REERRE Investment 16 24,393,800.00  24,393,800.00  24,393,800.00  24,393,800.00
REKESH Long term
investment in debts 41,854,655.80  39,863,800.38  184,877,905.87  96,857,137.67
BEEE . Fixed assets
EEEERE Fixed assets, at cost 17 1,015,615,044.76  863,137,497.74  711,236,520.29  728,094,612.20
o BRIE less; accumulated
depreciation 17 465,133,836.70  366,321,896.92  318,516,187.39  325,116,010.61
BEEEFE Fixed assets,
net book value 550,481,208.06  496,815,600.82  392,720,332.90  402,978,601.59
B EEEE less: Provision for
REEE diminution in value
of fixed assets 17 27,720,554.99  31,689,714.46  27,601,252.99  31,689,714.46
EEEEFH Fixed assets, net 522,760,653.07  465,125,886.36  365,119,079.91  371,288,887.13
EEIR Construction in progress 18 231,662,234.82  128,528,475.51  229,963,247.74  120,940,688.12
EEEES Total fixed assets 754,422,887.89  593,654,361.87  595,082,327.65  492,229,575.25
BREEREMERE ©  Intangible assets and other
assets:
BREE Intangible assets 19 76,995,335.89  29,650,982.69  21,879,447.47  22,334,516.50
ROGHER Long term deferred
expenses 20 50,788,348.53  52,239,845.19  50,628,000.00  51,108,000.00
EBREEREM Total intangible assets and
EEA other assets 127,783,684.42  81,890,827.88  72,507,447.47  73,442,516.50
EEM Total assets 1,882,271,513.97 1,581,331,370.37 1,591,060,750.25 1,439,470,788.30

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

REARE
(REFEESHERES)
—EE_F+ZHA=1—H

BALANCE SHEET
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
As at 31 December 2002

By AE¥T
Unit: RMB
BE Liabilities and i SHERE EHENH NGEF Y DRENH
shareholders’ equity ~ Notes The Group The Group ~ The Company  The Company
2002 Closing 2001 Opening 2002 Closing 2001 Opening
balance balance balance balance
RBEE Current liabilities
BHER Short term loans 21 257,000,000.00  247,100,000.00  195,000,000.00  220,000,000.00
ERRE Bills payable 22 37,722,813.36 —  37,722,813.36 =
IR Accounts payable 23 146,518,990.75  103,536,793.80  86,843,993.38  67,927,415.91
TR Receipts in advance 24 99,639,638.55  32,234,303.01  69,804,841.04  21,537,025.76
BNTIE Wages Payable 5,002,931.50 5,259,796.07 3,692,281.41 3,692,281.41
EAERNE Staff welfare 19,619,725.96  10,437,631.40  12,176,185.19 8,105,470.26
FEfS BRI Dividend payable 25 42,200,000.00  48,000,000.00  42,200,000.00  48,000,000.00
ER#E Taxes payable 26 20,330,035.29  23,251,647.27  11,045,138.80  23,117,898.36
Hitt R Sundry payable 27 1,270,516.34 523,834.26 214,651.11 487,224.75
HinEAH Other payable 28 119,170,763.32  110,360,419.30  98,314,131.77  94,289,034.50
BHEE Expected liabilities 29 22,183,713.00 —  22,183,713.00 —
HRRER Accruals 30 3,161,310.81 — 2,000,000.00 —
—EFRFAHRAERE Long term liabilities
payable within one
year 31 4,400,000.00  16,750,000.00 — —
RBEESE Total current liabilities 778,220,438.88  597,454,425.11  581,197,749.06  487,156,350.95
REEE: Long term liabilities
REEXM Long term loans 31 46,350,000.00 1,700,000.00  32,000,000.00 —
HEHEMNR Specific payable — 200,000.00 — —
REEAR Long term payable 32 29,550,000.00 — — —
HRHEE Other long term liabilities 333,600.00 — — —
REBES Total long term liabilities 76,233,600.00 1,900,000.00  32,000,000.00 —
ERLRIE Deferred tax credit
EERAER Deferred tax credit 33 242,941.38 242,941.38 242,941.38 242,941.38
BEEs Total liabilities 854,696,980.26  599,597,366.49  613,440,690.44  487,399,292.33
LERRER Minority interests 48,463,279.15  30,607,838.67 — —
RERES Shareholders’ fund
IR A Share capital 34 400,000,000.00  400,000,000.00  400,000,000.00  400,000,000.00
BEXRAE Capital reserve 35 400,755,880.29  399,511,301.04  400,755,880.29  399,511,301.04
BHLRE Surplus reserve 36 146,650,594.51  133,349,797.59  146,550,197.49  133,249,400.57
LN Including: statutory
public
welfare fund 36 49,009,267.88  42,358,869.42  48,959,069.37  42,308,670.91
ROEAE Retained profits 37 31,702,840.27  18,262,946.55  30,313,982.03  19,310,794.36
HNESRRITEES  Exchange reserve 1,939.49 2,120.03 — —
REERES Total shareholders  equity 979,111,254.56  951,126,165.21  977,620,059.81  952,071,495.97

SEKRFMEEERA Total liabilities and

shareholders’ equity 1,882,271,513.97 1,581,331,370.37 1,591,060,750.25 1,439,470,788.30

MESSHRROARDD

The notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFITS DISTRIBUTION

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

W B Bk
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Bl AR¥T
S At N N
HE i 2 FERMY LERHY FERMH LERMHB
Notes The Group The Group  The Company  The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
(Accumulated) (Accumulated) (Accumulated) (Accumulated)
— EEEBRA 1. Income from major
operations 38 926,929,279.47  699,076,375.57 689,106,919.67 643,607,681.74
W EEERRA less: operating cost 38 624,115,517.80  487,154,596.67 453,219,981.33 453,434,966.25
FEEKHSE sales tax and
R Bt surcharge 39 7,492,404.42 4,873,884.34 5,935,123.42 4,405,588.34
= FEEXBAE 2. Profit from major
operations 295,321,357.25 207,047,894.56 229,951,814.92 185,767,127.15
i EA R add: profit from other
operations 2,072,402.50 1,669,482.52 1,254,370.87 956,214.89
W EXER less: selling expenses 38,723,174.05  31,195,815.65  23,391,578.60  25,514,871.44
EEEH administrative
expenses 163,220,537.57 90,915,896.73 122,612,974.12  73,319,922.86
BHEHR financial expenses 40 14,991,256.87  5,038,213.06  10,923,728.44  4,419,787.73
= BEFE 3. Operating profit 80,458,791.26  81,567,451.64  74,277,904.63  83,468,760.01
m:REKRR add: investment income
(Of - B%) (less: loss) 41 (3,069,275.41)  (4,234,399.62) 604,875.95  (4,266,295.02)
LN subsidy income 205,874.00 — — —
=E/ T ON non-operating
income 42 5,962,656.07 1,229,275.87 1,222,338.63 1,048,259.57
BRI less: non-operating
expenses 43 (1,940,822.48) 2,810,649.56 (4,874,268.52) 1,810,609.99
M R ERsE 4. Total profits 85,498,868.40  75,751,678.33  80,979,387.73  78,440,114.57
o FREY less: income tax 44 15,034,226.51  13,738,21456  14,475,403.14  13,577,426.55
PHRFER add: minoirty interests 1,523,951.25  (2,268,211.69) = =
I FFE 5. Net profit for the year 68,940,690.64 64,281,675.46  66,503,984.59  64,862,688.02
m:EPNRDE add: retained profits at
glpd the beginning of
the year 37 18,262,946.55 14,953,808.69  19,310,794.36  15,420,643.94
A~ AEAIEMNFE 6. Distributable profits 87,203,637.19  79,235484.15  85,814,778.95  80,283,331.96
" REVETE less: transfer to
e YN statutory surplus
reserve 37 6,650,398.46 6,486,268.80 6,650,398.46 6,486,268.80
REZEARS transfer to
statutory public
welfare fund 37 6,650,398.46 6,486,268.80 6,650,398.46 6,486,268.80
t - ATHRESEHNFE 7. Profits distributable to
Shareholders 73,902,840.27  66,262,946.55  72,513,982.03  67,310,794.36
" RRERRE less: transfer to
AR discretinary
surplus reserves — = = =
P44 1 AR R A ordinary share
dividend
payable 37 42,200,000.00  48,000,000.00  42,200,000.00  48,000,000.00
N RABFE 8. Retained profits
carried forward 31,702,840.27 18,262,946.55  30,313,982.03  19,310,794.36

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED

107



108

W B WAk

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
AERHASER

(REHEEEERRES)
—EE_Ft A=t ALEE

WRER :

HE

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND PROFITS DISTRIBUTION

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002
Supplementary information

St
FERHB
The Group

2002

(Accumulated)

St
LERHB
The Group

2001

(Accumulated)

08 8
EERHB LERHB
The Company  The Company
2002 2001
(Accumulated) (Accumulated)

1. HE -EERIKRE 1. Profit from sale and
Bufigls disposal of
investee companies
2. BAKEBEMIERX2 Loss arising from
natural disaster
3. EBIHBRZEEM 3. Increase / (decrease)
(FED) FIREE in profit due to
change in
accounting policies
4. BI{EFEEEM 4. Increase / (decrease)
(FED) A EEzE in profit due to
change in
accounting estimate
5. EEBEABRX 5. Loss arising from
debt restructuring
6. Hftt 6. Others

WEAETRRNAK T

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

(5,219,182.61)

(11,813,200.00)

(5,219,182.61)  (8,333,200.00)

The notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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B Wk

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2002

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

Efr AR

Unit: RMB
ateE AGE ]
EE ltem ik FEH LEY £l LER
The Group The Company
Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
- BETHELH 1. Cash Flows from
HeRE ! Operating Activities
HERR  RUSE Cash received from sales
KENRE of goods or rendering
of services 1,093,107,023.77  751,127,009.05 757,896,764.48 688,779,870.21
KENHERE Tax refund received 1,729,897.09 — — —
KR ELE T Other cash received
BBENES 67,977,865.00  19,167,030.95  61,022,948.94  14,136,374.55
BERANG Sub-total of cash inflows 1,162,814,785.86  770,294,040.00 818,919,713.42 702,916,244.76
BEBR BEXS Cash paid for goods and
YRHNEE services 618,835,200.57  479,527,693.30  397,399,945.29  456,065,305.65
IREBINRART Cash paid to and on
YRS behalf of employees 143,341,351.04  111,233,083.00  99,314,402.23  91,379,396.96
AN EERE Taxes and surcharges paid 111,615,992.62  51,079,120.29  93,556,966.17  45,277,353.21
AN EMELSEEE Other cash paid relating to
EBNRSE operating activities 45 114,732,069.62  78,130,562.42  62,697,700.39  60,715,155.31
BEeRB Gt Sub-total of cash outflows 988,524,613.85 719,970,459.01  652,969,014.08 653,437,211.13
BETHELNRS Net cash flows from
HEEE operating activities 174,290,172.01  50,323,580.99 165,950,699.34  49,479,033.63
Z REEBDELEN 2. Cash Flow from
HeRE ! investing Activities
KEREMRZINRE Cash received relating
to investing activities 260,000.00 120,000.00 - 120,000.00
EMFLERREMNESE  Cash received from
disposal of subsidiaries 46 5,053,173.50 — — —
BEREWRFKE Cash received from
HEE investment income — — 457,400.00 —
REETEE  BF Net cash received from
EENHMRAEE disposal of fixed assets,
MU E RS FE intangible assets and
other long term assets 34,151,657.26 2,235,885.54  31,897,323.91 2,2217,899.55
BERANG Sub-total of cash inflows 39,464,830.76  2,355,885.54  32,354,723.91  2,347,899.55
BEETEE  BVE Cash paid to acquire fixed
ENEMRHEE assets, intangible assets
FixftEe and other long term assets 162,176,092.24  124579,376.61 136,438,721.90 114,438,010.87
REFMIANRS Other cash paid relating to
investing activities 3,675,000.00  10,680,000.00  64,445,000.00  26,080,000.00
REME N5t Sub-total of cash outflows 165,851,092.24  135,259,376.61  200,883,721.90  140,518,010.87
RETBELNRS Net cash flows from
FEEE investing activities (126,386,261.48) (132,903,491.07) (168,528,997.99) (138,170,111.32)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

B AR¥T
Unit: RMB
afieE BAREHE
%A Item i} XEH LEH FER LEH
The Group The Company
Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
= BEIHEAMN 3. Cash Flows from
RemE: Financing Activities
RUWREFNENES Cash received from
investment by others — 597,000.00 — —
BEEHAREANREE Cash received from loans 491,925,000.00  285,000,000.00  409,060,000.00  285,000,000.00
KENEtEEEES Other cash received relating
BENRSE to financing activities —  4,100,000.00 = =
BERANG Sub-total of cash inflows 491,925,000.00 289,697,000.00 409,060,000.00 285,000,000.00
BEEEAIANES Cash repayments of
debentures 505,040,000.00  70,000,000.00 402,060,000.00  70,000,000.00
AEBRF - FENES Cash payments for
FEFMEANES distribution of dividends
or profits and payments
of interest expenses 65,763,530.66  48,159,321.95  60,600,147.79  46,482,862.50
Hi: FRARARMADH Including; dividend from
FR R AR R subsidiaries to
minority
shareholders 196,000.00 — — —
RER M Net Sub-total of cash outflows 570,803,530.66  118,159,321.95 462,660,147.79  116,482,862.50
EETHELNES Net cash flows from
RERE financing activities (78,878,530.66) 171,537,678.05 (53,600,147.79) 168,517,137.50
- EREHUBSHNTEL 4. Effect of Foreign Exchange
Rate Changes on Cash 413,554.50 1,069,797.09 326,621.37 48,448.21
I HeRBESZEY 5. Netincrease in Cash and
FEME Cash Equivalents (30,561,065.63)  90,027,565.06  (55,851,825.07)  79,874,508.02
| | NG = U 7 A 7 i < I /N ERE O FE R
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

BenREXR (&)
(REPESTEARS)
—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

By ARET

Unit: RMB
At A
HE Item 33 | LEB FEB LEB
The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
1. BEREFAHBHLEL 1. Reconciliation of Profit after
EENRERE taxation to Cash Flow from
Operating Activities
FRE Net Profit for the year 68,940,690.64 64,281,675.46 66,503,984.59 64,862,688.02
e SREERBEERE less: Provision for diminution
in assets value 34,485,256.31 16,473,633.47 27,907,340.32 10,333,200.00
EEEERE Depreciation of fixed assets 51,815,336.79  32,703,102.14  35519,829.14  28,255,660.30
B EE#H Amortisation of intangible
assets 2,705,055.35 1,006,619.44 455,069.03 425,600.80
REGHERGH Amortisation of deferred
expenses 1,651,021.42 897,114.86 480,000.00 —
#RERRY Amortisation of deferred
(RLIZ ) expenses (less:increase) (741,200.08) (704,793.55) 5,153.86 29,789.01
BREREM Increase in accruals
(RUR2) (less: decreased) 3,161,310.81 (59,335.75) 2,000,000.00 —
REETEE Loss on disposal of fixed
BREENEM assets, intangible assets and
REEENBEX other long term assets
(Rl W ) (less: income) (3,664,327.43) 1,256,282.16 (754,128.63) 808,819.19
BBER Financial expenses 17,567,530.66 7,089,524.86  12,273,526.42 6,434,414.29
REBL(RMER) Investment loss (less: income) 3,527,973.96 — 1,676,507.35 4,374,895.02
LERREX Contributions from minority
(Rt 2R) interests 1,523,951.25 (2,268,211.69) = =
BEKR D (RIE M) Decrease in inventories (2,609,428.66) (792,142.11)  11,414516.58  25,729,738.86
KEMERER Decrease in operating
HRA (R ) receivables (less: increase) (35,596,318.58)  (55,329,024.17)  (34,455,935.76)  (50,822,940.27)
REMEMNER Increase in operating payables
#IB MORRL D) (less: decrease) 26,304,462.25  (14,230,864.13)  42,924,836.44  (40,952,831.59)
RETHELEN Net cash flows from operating
ReRngFE activities 174,290,172.01  50,323,580.99  165,950,699.34  49,479,033.63
2. BeRBEELZB/WF 2. Netincrease in Cash and Cash
EmER Equivalents
EWESWERBE  Cashat the end of the period 186,886,282.11  217,447,347.74  139,762,305.41  195,614,130.48
wERESN Less: Cash and bank balance at
FHERE the beginning of the period 217,447,347.74  127,419,782.68  195,614,130.48  115,739,622.46
ReRASEE Net increase in cash and cash
YIF I8 58 equivalents (30,561,065.63)  90,027,565.06  (55,851,825.07)  79,874,508.02

WEASTRRNARTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

1.

GENERAL

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China by Beiren Group Corporation (“BGC”) as
the sole promoter. The Company was established on 13 July
1993. The Company’s A shares and H shares have been
listed in Shanghai and Hong Kong respectively. The
Company is principally engaged in the development, design,
manufacturing and sales of printing machines, pressing
machines, packing machines and parts and components of
such machines. Other operations include technological
consultancy and technical support services related to the
major operations.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE

Accounting System and standards

The Company prepares its financial statements in
accordance with the “Accounting Standards” and the
“Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprises”.

Financial Year

The Company adopts the calendar year as its financial year
i.e. from 1 January to 31 December .

Reporting Currency

The Company’s books of accounts are maintained in
Renminbi.

Basis of accounting and valuation

It is in accordance with the accrual concept and valuation is
based on historical cost.

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated
into Renminbi at the medium exchange rate (“Market Rate”)
quoted at the market ruling on the first date of the transaction
month. Monetary accounts denominated in foreign
currencies as at year end are translated into Renminbi at
the Market Rate ruling at year end. For exchange differences
arising from specific foreign currency loans relating to
acquisition or construction of fixed assets, are included as
cost of those fixed assets before they are capable of being
put in use charged to long term deferred expense if they are
still under construction; and the remaining are charged as
financial expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents represent short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired. Cash equivalents are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provision for bad debts
(1) Basis of recognition of bad debts

A debtor who is bankrupt and makes repayment
according to legal procedure. After that, the related
account receivable is confirmed as unrecoverable.

A debtor who is dead and there is no estate for
repayment and no obligatory guarantor. The related
account receivable is confirmed as unrecoverable.

A debtor do not make repayment as agreed and there
is obvious indication that the related account
receivable is unrecoverable.

(2) Accounting for loss arising from bad debts

Provision for unrecoverable method is adopted.
Provision for bad debt is made based on the
unrecoverability of accounts receivable at the end of
the year. According to the past experience, the
financial position and cash flow of the defaulting party
and other information, analysis is made for accounts
receivable on a case-by-case basis, determining the
amount of provision for bad debt.

Inventories

Inventories are stated as actual cost upon acquisition. Actual
cost includes acquisition cost, processing cost, and other
cost of bringing inventories to their working condition and
location for its intended use. Inventories include raw
materials, work-in-progress and finished goods.

The cost of inventories sold is reviewed based on actual
cost and calculated on a weighted average basis.
Consumables are charged to profit and loss account when
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

At the end of the year, inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Whenever the net realizable
value is lower than cost, provision is made for diminution in
value of inventories based on the difference between cost
and net realizable value for each inventory.

Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less
further cost expected to be incurred to completion and
disposal and less the relevant tax in the normal course of
business.

Recognition of the recoverable

The recoverable represents the higher of the net selling price
of assets and cash flow arising from continuous use of such
assets and the disposal of such assets before the end of
useful lives.

Long term investments
(1) Long term equity investments

Long term equity investments are stated at historical
cost upon acquisition.

The investee company to which the Company is
unable to control, by itself or jointly with other parties,
or to exert significant influence is accounted for using
the cost method. The investee company to which the
Company is able to control, by itself or jointly with
other parties, or to exert significant influence is
accounted for using the equity method.

When the cost method is adopted, the amount of
investment income is limited to the attributable
amount of the accumulated net profits of the invested
company after being acquired by the Company. The
amount of profits or cash dividends declared to be
distributed by the investee company in excess of the
above should be treated as recovery of investment
cost, and reduce the carrying amount of investments
accordingly.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

2.

Long term investments (continued)

(1)

(2

Long term equity investments (continued)

When the equity method is adopted, the amount of
investment income arising from the investee
company is the share of net profit (loss) generated
by the investee company in the relevant period. In
the event that share of net loss generated by the
investee company is recognized, the carrying amount
of investment is to be deduced until zero. In the event
that the investee company recognizes net profit in
the following periods and share of income exceeds
share of unrecognized net loss, the carrying amount
of investment is recovered to be positive.

In the event the equity method is adopted for long-
term equity investment, the difference in long-term
equity investment represents the difference between
initial investment cost and percentage of equity
interest in the investee. Such difference is amortized
on a straight-line basis for the terms in investment as
stated in the contract and charged to the profit and
loss account. If there is no specific term stated in the
contract, amortization is carried out over within 10
years. In the event initial investment cost was lesser
than percentage of equity interest in the investee,
amortization is carried out over not less than 10 years.

Accounting for long term investment in debt

The initial investment cost of long-term debt
investment is stated at actual cost less due and
uncollected coupon. Premium or discount of bond
investment is arrived at the difference between the
total cost, paid, of long term debt investment upon
acquisition, less due and uncollected coupon and the
relevant tax as stated in the initial investment cost
and its book value. Premium or discount of bond is
amortized based on the straight-line method during
the effective period of bond upon recognition of
interest income arising from the relevant bond.

Interest income is recognised on its possibility of
recovery.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |

115



W B WAk
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ERME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESHEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

2. 3B e RO AL e AN 2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,

(#8)

REIRE (&)

(3) REREREZESE

R 2ERRMRENRE
LRFEEEEERBESE
% ERBRETUEDSHER
RIREEE - AREE5EG
REREKREBERES -

BEEERTE

EEEEREALEERR  RHS
% Wl KERFEEEEMSA
B ERFREBBE—F  BEUEER
BNAEREE -

[ 72 7 LU ER A MO BB FR A5 A
I 4 £ ) T 6 PR AR A8 40k B
o RAESLRNNE - S EERE
EEMEHBES « TEFRAER
EENT

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Long term investments (continued)

(3) Provision for diminution in value of long term
investment

At the end of the period, the Company determines
whether it is necessary to make provision for
impairment based on the indication of impairment for
long-term debt investment. In the event the
recoverability of long term debt investment is less than
its carrying amount, provision is made based on such
difference.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets represent production assets and intangible
assets held for provision of labor, leasing, operating or non-
operating with intended useful life exceeding one year and
higher value.

Fixed assets are stated as actual cost upon acquisition.
Following the second month after reaching its intended
working condition, fixed assets are discounted based on a
straight-line method. Estimated residual ratio, discount
period and annual discount rate of various fixed assets are
as follows:

ma fHEt R EE 7 & F R FHEF

Estimated Discount Annual
Item residual ratio period discount rate
FEREEY Buildings 3% 40 F/Years 2.425%
HIRRIE Plant and machinery 3% 8-14%F/Years  12.125%-6.929%
E7HE RARKE Electronic equipment, 3% 8 F/Years 12.125%

furniture & fixture

ERRE Transportation equipment 3% 8% /Years 12.125%
EEEEREEE Provision for diminution in value of fixed assets

HIR - AREZEEEENRETR Y
HERERETRRERERE BEETE
ENBEEREMREEER - R
HEFTREEEEREER -

At the end of the period, the Company determines whether
it is necessary to make provision for impairment based on
the indication of impairment for fixed assets. In the event
the recoverability of fixed assets is less than its carrying
amount, provision is made based on such difference.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is stated at cost of construction.

The cost of construction includes all construction,
expenditure, borrowing costs of specific loans directly related
to the construction and eligible for capitalisation and other
relevant expenses attributable to such projects. The cost of
construction in progress will be transferred to fixed assets
when the construction in progress is capable of being put in
use as planned. No depreciation is provided on construction
in progress.

Provision for diminution in value of construction
in progress

Provision for diminution in value of construction in progress
is made when construction has been suspended for a long
period of time and the works will not be recommenced within
next three years; the project is obsolete either in its physical
conditions or technology and has great uncertainty in its
economic benefit to the enterprise; or other evidence
indicates that there is diminution in value. Provision is made
based on the amount of the recoverable less than its carrying
amount.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated as actual costs upon acquisition.
The actual costs of acquired intangible assets are calculated
on the basis of the price actually paid. For intangible assets
that are internally generated and acquired by means of
application according to legal procedures, their actual costs
are calculated on the basis of the registration fees, legal
costs, etc. incurred upon acquisition according to the law.
Materials, wages and other expenses incurred during the
course of research and development are directly charged
into the profit and loss account for the current period. The
acquired intangible assets are recognized as the actual price.

Land use right acquired by the Company before the
implementation of accounting system for corporations in the
PRC or obtained by way of land grant premiums as intangible
assets which have not been recognized as construction cost
related to housing and building erected thereon is amortized
based on the following periods. Land use right acquired by
the Company after the implementation of accounting system
for corporations in the PRC or obtained by way of land grant
premiums before the development or construction of self-
use project as intangible assets is amortized based on the
following periods. Because of the construction of self-use
project, the carrying amount of land use right is transferred
to construction cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over
the estimated life of such intangible assets from the month
they are acquired, and charged to the profit and loss account
for the corresponding period. If expected useful life is longer
than the beneficial period as stipulated by the relevant
contract or the effective period as stipulated by the law, the
amortization period should not exceed the shorter of the
beneficial period or the effective period. If there are no
specific periods as stipulated by the relevant contract or the
effective period as stipulated by the law, the amortization
period should not exceed 10 years.

Provision for diminution in value of intangible
assets

At the end of the period, the Company determines whether
it is necessary to make provision for impairment based on
the indication of impairment for intangible assets. In the event
the recoverability of intangible assets is less than its carrying
amount, provision is made based on such difference.

Long term deferred expenses

Long term deferred expenses represent expenses incurred
for acquiring fixed assets. Expenses incurred during the
incorporation of the Company are included in the profit and
loss account in the first month after commencement of its
operations.

Other long term deferred expenses are amortized on a
straight-line basis for the beneficial terms.

Borrowing expenses

Borrowing expenses represent interest arising from
borrowing, amortization of discount and premium and other
auxiliary expenses, as well as difference in translation of
foreign loan. Borrowing expense by way of special borrowing
for acquiring fixed assets are capitalized based on the
principle of capitalized amount of borrowing expenses
recognized before such assets reaching their intended
working condition.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

Sales of goods are recognised at the time when the
substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has
been passed to the buyers and the Company no longer
manages or physically controls the goods and the Company
receives the payments or obtains the right to receive
payment.

Income tax

Income tax is accounted for using the tax accruing method.
Income tax for the year is provided on the assessable income
which is calculated on basis of the accounting profit adjusted
in accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations.

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

(1) Principle of determination of consolidation

Scope of consolidation includes the Company and
its subsidiaries as set out in note 6 as at 31 December
2002. Subsidiaries represent enterprises in which the
Company's direct or indirect investment amount
accounts for 50% or more of the total capital or
enterprises over which the Company has actual
control over their operations by way of other means.

(2) Accounting method adopted in consolidated
financial statements

Subsidiaries adopt the same principle accounting
policy as the Company

The operating results of subsidiaries before and after
their disposals are stated in the Group profit and loss
account.

Significant accounts and transactions between the

Company and its subsidiaries and among its
subsidiaries are eliminated upon consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

3.

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Translation of the foreign currency financial
statements

In the course of consolidation, foreign currency financial
statements are translated to RMB financial statements
according to the following:

Save as shareholders' fund as set out under the
"undistributed profit" translated into RMB at the rate ruling
on the transaction date, all of the assets and liabilities are
translated into RMB at the rate ruling on 31 December 2002.
Items as out on profit and loss account are translated into
RMB at the average rate of the consolidated accounting
period. Opening undistributed profit is the balance of closing
undistributed profit for the previous year after translation.
Closing undistributed profit is stated as other amount on the
profit and loss account after translation. Difference in the
total of assets and liabilities and shareholders' fund is stated
as "difference in foreign currency statements" which is
presented in the balance sheet.

All items as set out on the cash flow statement are translated
into RMB at the rate ruling on 31 December 2002. Effect on
cash flow from change in exchange rate is stated as "Effect
on cash flow from change in exchange rate", as an
adjustment, which is presented in the cash flow statement.

Opening balance and the actual amount in the previous year
are stated after translation at rate set out in the annual report
for the previous year.

CHANGE IN THE ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND ITS EFFECT

Accounting to the requirements of "Answers to Questions
Regarding the Implementation of the Accounting Standards
for Enterprises and the Relevant Accounting Standards "
(Cai Hui [2001] N0.18) promulgated by the Ministry of
Finance of the People's Republic of China, upon the
implementation of "the Accounting Standards for Enterprises
- fixed assets", depreciation is to be made for fixed assets
which are not subject to depreciation before. Since there is
no significant effect on profit, the financial position and
results for the previous year arising from the above change
in the accounting policy, all of the relevant adjustments are
charged to current year’s profit and loss account without
retrospective adjustment. The accumulated effect from the
said change in the accounting policy on profit of the Company
for the year of 2002 is Rmb5,219,182.61.
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5. BiH 5.  TAXATION
BE/R Value added tax
REEWANLT% » 13%sTEHH1E It is charged at 17% or 13% of sales and other operating
Bt WIRIKINE IR B VEREEHM o revenues for output value added tax and after deducting for
input value added tax.
P& Income tax
RESEE - B RREEF1997F3 In accordance with the document Cai Shui Zi (1997) No. 38
B 108 8% F[1997]385% X R E - dated 10 March 1997 issued by the Ministry of Finance and
AR EFEBHRIZEMAT BN State Tax Bureau, income tax is calculated at 15% of the
15%%t 44 o total assessable income of the Company.
BEFRRFEBREREERE - The subsidiaries have adopted the relevant applicable tax
rates.
Hh#i18 Other Tax
B IRER A 5% o Business tax is applicable to the 5% assessable income of
the Company
WEBIRE RIEEB AN EEHMNS- Urban development tax is calculated on the basis of the
TY% 4R © assessable amount of value-added tax and business tax.
The applicable tax rates are 5% and 7% respectively.
6. AAEEAPEEEIHARM - 6. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
PRI A ] BB A SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
1% 0L COMPANIES
AREHEEE FRARANERER W The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the
T Company are as follows:
AFEE BELE EE
FaneR 30k BEREF HRLH  FERE nEe REAH
%
Percentage of
Name of Registered Registered equity directly held Type of Consolidated
subsidiaries address share capital by the Company  Principal activities corporation for the year
S PN R ERE (D) AR#3,150,000.007 10000 HEERFEEEN ERFEH &
EHAT BHAT  REWA
HELEEMES
Beiren Group Chao Yang District, Rmb3,150,000.00 Transportation of Collectively owned No
Transportation Beijing (note 5) general good for the
Company Company and other

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

B @) COMPANIES (CONTINUED)
AR EHEEETFARNERER W The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the
T (&) Company are as follows: (continued)
AFEE #BELE 33
FARER i o B EREE BELA  EERE nEY REGH
%
Percentage of
Name of Registered Registered equity directly held Type of Consolidated
subsidiaries address share capital by the Company  Principal activities corporation for the year
tREAEL LTERTHEEE?) %75,100,000.007 7000 A£EORIE HE PAEELE 3
HREHER HEER
A
Beijing Beiren Chao Yang District, USD5,100,000.00 Manufacturing of Sino-joint venture Yes
Fuji Printing Beijing (note 2) printing machines and
Machinery sale of self-manufactured
Company Limited products
FREARE tRmEES AR %4,050,000.007 98.77 EEDRIBER RoyHEE R
Bl e HEHM RARE A
B A MR A
Beijing Beiren Yan Qing Xian, Rmb4,050,000.00 Manufacturing of Joint stock Yes
Jing Yan Beijing printing machines and ~ associated
Printing spare parts and
Machinery provision of technical
Factory consultancy services
ERIEART IRTARE AK%4,000,000.007 6250 Bt BHEHRE L3 L] =
DREER
Beiren Tai He Da Xing District, Rmb4,000,000.00 Manufacturing of Collectively owned Yes
Printing and Beijing casting parts for
Casting Factory printing machinery
I AR LETTAE AR#2,000,000.007 9465  ENRIRfEEE 2RAEH B
BEHE
Beijing Beiren Ping Gu District, Rmb2,000,000.00 Manufacturing of Owned by the Yes
Printing Beijing parts and components  whole people
Machinery for printing machines
Accessories
Factory
AL ALEHRE ALEARE AR#4,802,600.007 5068 NI - HELAHR ] B
RE#
Hebei Beiren Shi Jia Zhuang, Rmb4,802,600.00 Manufacturing and Associated Yes
Gei Zhi Ji Chang Hebei Province sale of paper feeder
machines and related
accessories
BP9 2 A SR B TEHEEMD AR #29,000,000.007C 5120 EEDRBHRE AREALH 2
BREEAT REZEYS
Haimen Beiren Hai Mem, Jiangsu Rmh29,000,000.00 Manufacturing of Limited Yes
Printing Province printing machines
Machinery and related accessories
Company Limited
RABRAR BB 3,007 10000 ARAFITEEEREE AHRELLT B
RERREDNAHE
Sheenlite Limited Hong Kong HK$3.00 Provision of Hong Kong  Limited Yes
representative office
and asset custodial
service to the Group
e A B R OHE B M AR A A EREFZEFE W
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED

The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the

T (&) Company are as follows: (continued)
AFEE EELR E 33
FoRER 8 BEREE BRELA FERE nEy REAH
%
Percentage of
Name of Registered Registered equity directly held Type of Consolidated
subsidiaries address share capital by the Company  Principal activities corporation for the year
EREADHE EETRAE ARH22,430,000.007 68.66  ETER % BRERLH &
HEREEAT B 2R
Beijing Beiren Dong Cheng District, Rmb22,430,000.00 Printing, Binding, Limited Yes
Yuxin Plastic Beijing typesetting and
Printing film-setting of books
Company Limited and periodicals
BF 3 A ED RIS B4 B (1) AR#100,000,000.007 8418  EIRIMM - EAKNE . EREFLT 2
ERERLH BERN - TRENR
EREREMANRE
HE B
Shaanxi Beiren Wei Na, Shaanxi Rmb100,000,000.00 Manufacturing, sales Limited Yes
Printing Province (note 1) and maintenance of
Machinery printing machines,
Company Limited compound machines,
packaging machines,
engineering machines
electromechanical
machines and parts
AT 3 A DR IERMD (E3) AR#1,500,000.007 5500 FIRRREBAHE . HREALT B
EHERAT 2% BRNRAE
Rlir#AN RS
Zhejiang Beiren Hangzhou, Zhejiang Rmb1,500,000.00 Sale, installation and Limited Yes
Printing Province (note 3) testing of printing
Machinery machines and related
Operating and accessories and provision
Sale Company and provision of technical
Limited consultancy services
i A BRI, WA R ET () AR#1,500,000.007% 5100 ERERZEAHEE. FRERLT &
EHERAT 2% BRURAE
B 4 A MR A
Hubei Beiren Wuhan, Hubei Rmb1,500,000.00 Sale, installation and Limited Yes
Printing Province (note 4) testing of printing
Machinery machines and related
Operating and accessories and provision
Sale Company and provision of technical
Limited consultancy services
F1: BRALADREBEREED Note 1: Shaanxi Beiren Printing Machinery Company Limited

Bl 5 1 A12002F E H & M #Y F
NE ARBERBESFRME
46 - ZFAREWBRRIE
ERRECBEEMRERESHA
R o

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

is a newly acquired subsidiary of the Company in the
year of 2002. Details are set out in note 46. The
operating results of this subsidiary after its disposal
are included in the Group’s profit and loss account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

6. ASEESHEEACGERE - 6.

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the

T (&) Company are as follows: (continued)

F2: EREIEAESTERIEBERA Note 2: Beijing Beiren Fuiji Printing Machinery Company Limited
A(EBIEAEL)BEEES (“Beiren Fuji”) directly owns the following subsidiary:
WFARMELRBRNT :

BEREEH
LtAETHESR
FARRE 2 BEREE FEEELE BEEE BERY RERAH
Share of
Registered capital
Name of Registered Registered contributed by  Nature Type of
subsidiary place capital Beiren Fuji of business corporation Consolidated
AR T %
(RMB) (%)
BAZEALE REBERD 1,500,000.00 51 EMRIBREEAHE EREELH B
DRIt e 25 BAUAREE
BRDE () RN R
Xian Beiren Xian Shaanxi 1,500,000.00 51 Sale, installation and Limited Yes
Beifu Printing Province testing of printing
Operating and machines and related
Sale Company accessories and
Limited provision of technical

BREVBHEFACENREHE
FTERTRAOEEE RVER) (B
ETF(1996)25KMVER - R
ST b A ED Rl #4025 85 B PR A
FAFELEHRE  HEWAR
HHETIEE WM AZETE
ARFTESENEERESR
10% @ BAREZHMA S IR
REGtEE -

REMBSETAGENREHE
FTRTRAOEERE RNVER) (B
-7 (1996) 255 MER » B
P AL b A EN Rl S5 B IR
AT MA 24 A4t = EN R
EHERATMRFLAGINE
EHE -  HEWAREEFH
BBEREXEIEEZE
SHEWAEENMAEIZELEHNE
AR HEEHHEERTELI0%
LR R EEMAEHRE
EHEE EWMRFDAE
2002F EH WA 0 REHEM
RYFAFNREREE S HIR
RPRARS EZE -

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

Note 3:

Note 4:

consultancy services

Since the calculation of the turnover ratio of Zhejiang
Beiren Printing Machinery Operation and Sale
Company Limited pursuant to the requirements of
“Reply to the Request for Classification on the Scope
of Preparing Consolidated Accounts” [Cai Hui Er Zi
(1996) No.2] issued by the Accounting Bureau of the
Ministry of Finance are more than 10%, it is included
in the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the requirements of “Reply to the Request
for Classification on the Scope of Preparing
Consolidated Accounts” [Cai Hui Er Zi (1996) No.2]
issued by the Accounting Bureau of the Ministry of
Finance, the turnover ratio of Hubei Beiren Printing
Machinery Operation and Sale Company Limited and
Xian Berien Beifu Printing Operation and Sale
Company Limited, subsidiaries of the Company, as
computed based on the formulae set out in the
document are less than 10%, these two subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
by equity method.



Bt R EE
(REFESAERRES)
—RR_F+ A=t —HIEFE

6. AEESOFEIIRREE -
BT A A RBE A
WO

REEEERFRARANESRERM
T: (&

5 ATE2002F THFEREKRE 1L
R ANKEH QT ETE
& AFETEI R 2003F ¥
FRAZFRARANBEELIE -
Eit  KEEZFATAHAEH
MRS HEE

BREEAR sESFT AR SN - Eal
EREANTRARYERAS
PR EHIEE -

BREESR ST A RSN - A HF
ENEHEABRRNGHER
BEEFE—H-
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(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

6. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the
Company are as follows: (continued)

Note 5: The Company'’s subsidiary Beiren Group Transportation
Company was liquidated in the second half of 2002. The
liquidation of the subsidiary is expected to be completed
in the second half of 2003. As such, the financial
statements of the subsidiary were not included into the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as circumstances mentioned in Notes 4 and 5,
the above directly held subsidiaries are included in the
scope of consolidation.

Save as companies mentioned in Notes 3 and 5, the
scope of consolidation of the consolidated financial
statements is consistent with that of the previous years.

Note 6: Beijing Monigraf Automatic Systems Company is a
Sino-foreign joint venture jointly established in Beijing
by the Company and Monigraf of Italy on 19 December
2001. The Company contributed Rmb3,675,000 in
cash, representing 49% of the registered capital of such
Company.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

6. SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION, PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

The particulars of subsidiaries directly owned by the

T (&) Company are as follows: (continued)
AFEE BERE
HELTER R EREE BHELA FERH nEy
Percentage of
Name of the Registered Registered equity held by Type of
associated companies place share capital the Company  Nature of Business Corporation
ARET %
RMB %
EELAFEDR EEERARE 24, 500,000.00 4359  EHNEMOR  BREE RAOERAR
RAERAE #)IIH
Ninghai Beiren Xinhua Yin Chuan 24,500,000 Printing and packing of books Joint stock
Printing Joint Stock Ningxia Huizu and other materials
Company Limited Autonomous Region
LRI AEEEG) b A 2,000,000.00 45 DRBRSEAHE 2% BRERLH
BHERERAT BAARBER I BH AR
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Beijing 2,000,000.00 Sale, installation and testing of Limited
Printing Machinery printing machinery and related
Operation and Sale accessories and provision of
Company Limited technical consultancy services
BN ABEDR ERERM® 1,500,000.00 30 HETEDRHEHRES BRERLH
BHERLA ERRE
Guangzhou Beiren Guangzhou, 1,500,000.00 Wholesale and retail of printing Limited
Hengtong Printing Guangdong machinery and related
Machinery Operation Province accessories and provision of
and Sale Company Limited after-sale services
BELADREREH EELERT 700,000.00 49 DRBRSEAHE 2% BRERLH
BRERRH BAARBER I BH AR
Liaoning Beiren Printing Shenyang, 700,000.00 Sale, installation and testing of Limited
Machinery Operation Liaoning printing machinery and related
and Sale Company Province accessories and provision of
Limited technical consultancy services
BRI AL E DRI REBERD 1,500,000.00 49 HRBRERAHE  Z%- BREMLH
EHERAT BAARBER I BH AR
Xian Berien Xian, Shaanxi 1,500,000.00 Installation and testing of Limited
Beifu Printing Province printing machines and
Operation and Sale related accessories and
Company Limited provision of technical
consultancy services
TRERBEZG R (36) 7,500,000.00 49 HRIBKEEHAGHRE FHEE
BRAF Rt~ B HE - ARIEM
HRFENE  BETEEERN
Z% - #H - &6 BWEAR
b
Beijing Monigraf Beijing (note 6) 7,500,000.00 Development, design, Sino-joint
Automatic Systems manufacturing and sale of venture
Company ink control system, printing

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

apparatus, printing

consumption production as

well as installation, testing and

of technical consultancy and
training for self-produced products
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7. BWESE 7. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
EXRBH FOGHE
Closing balance Opening halance
ShweE HE AR#®T IHESLE rE= ARET
Amount in Amount in
foreign  Exchange foreign ~ Exchange
currency rate Rmb currency rate Rmb
bk Cash
ARE Renminbi 39,905.70 18,196.39
HhE Foreign currency
-Ax — Japanese Yen 302,848.99 0.069035 20,907.18 65,351.96 0.063005 4,117.50
-Bn — Euro 1,740.00 8.636000 15,026.64
-En — U.S. dollars 7,575.00 8.277300 62,700.55 — —
- ~ Hong Kong dollars — - - 2,065.70 1.060600 2,190.88
138,540.07 24,504.77
RITER Bank balances
ARE Renminbi 170,541,646.97 212,021,438.71
s Foreign currency
-Ax — Japanese Yen 22,911,767.07 0.069035 1,581,713.84 4,084,871.78 1.060600 4,332,415.01
1 — Hong Kong dollars ~ 13,010,053.64 1.061100 13,804,967.92 36,433.94 8.276600 301,552.79
-%n — U.S. dollars 94,397.11 8.277300 781,352.21 8,649,255.46 0.063005 544,946.34
186,709,680.94 217,200,352.85
HittE%ES Other cash and bank
balances
ARE Renminbi 38,061.10 222,490.12
186,886,282.11 217,447,347.74
8. JEWmipE 8. BILLS RECEIVABLE
EXRERHE FHERER
Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR# T
Rmb Rmb
IRITEALES Bank acceptance notes 14,352,100.00 9,265,070.28
FRDAFNEREE G RMIL - As at the end of the year, the Company’s bills receivable have not

been pledged.

FE UL ZE AR 4 BE 35 A F15% A L iR 15 Outstanding bills receivable due from shareholders who hold more

BRIRBEROT : than 5% shares of the Company are as follows:
BREE FXixE FHEREE
Name of shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR T
Rmb Rmb
T AKE AT Beiren Group Corporation = 4,400,000.00
2002 ANNUAL REPORT BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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9.

10.

JEE i K
FEULIR KR B8 9 AT 20 T

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The aging of accounts receivable is analysed as follows:

EXBE ENHE
Closing balance Opening balance

&® WA HRE G BE 8 wh RiRER e

Provision for Provision for
Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount
AR#ET (%) AR#ET ARET ARET (%) AR#ET ARET
Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb
1EBA  Within 1 year 150,739,220.97  74.03 150,739,220.97 117,226,924.30  88.95 — 117,226,924.30
1Z2F  lyear-2years 37,346,716.96  18.34 10,015,955.35  27,330,761.61 4,403,845.55  3.34 1,051,386.41 3,352,459.14
2%3%  2years-3years  5,731,090.09 281 2,293,949.74 3,437,140.35 3,990,584.52  3.03 3,189,738.82 800,845.70
3FLLE  Over3years 9,815,148.58 482 7,312,426.82 2,502,721.76 6,163,074.13  4.68 6,163,074.13 —
203,632,176.60 100.00 19,622,331.91 184,009,844.69 131,784,428.50 100.00 10,404,199.36 121,380,229.14

REFHASHRB/RUOT - i :

RFEEASERERAT The five largest accounts receivable are as follows:

MAERRRER 165 FE U iR R ¥R ER LE B

Total amount of the five
largest accounts receivable

Percentage o the total value
of the accounts receivable

AR T %
Rmb %
26,477,850.79 13.00

FE IR FRER R P 5 D BI5% L £ R 43

The details of the balance of the accounts receivable due from

REXRERAOT : shareholders who hold more than 5% of the Company’s shares are
as follows:
BREE FXizH FOREE
Name of shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR
Rmb Rmb
I AEERF Beiren Group Corporation 1,298,300.00 —
H i BE ek 10. OTHER RECEIVABLES

H B IRE AT -

The aging of other receivables is analysed as follows:

EXBE FRE
Closing balance Opening balance
&8 ua IR BE &8 up BIRER EE
Provision for Provision for

Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount Amount  Ratio Bad Debt Net amount

AR¥TT (%) AR¥TT AR%T AR¥TT (%) AR¥TT AR%T

Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb Rmb (%) Rmb Rmb

1FLLA  Within 1 year 21,847,892.88 57.84 12,910.00 21,834,982.88 12,150,599.23 46.28 — 12,150,599.23
1Z2F  1year-2years 755,640.26  2.00 11,542.50 744,097.76 746,249.77  2.84  237,501.58 508,748.19
2Z3F  2vyears-3years 1,261,949.96 3.34  869,399.66 392,550.30 232,370.29 0.88 126,185.15 106,185.14
3FLLLE  Over3years 13,906,618.12 36.82 5,211,560.18 8,695,057.94 13,127,688.12 50.00 4,803,425.50 8,324,262.62

37,772,101.22 100.00 6,105,412.34 31,666,688.88 26,256,907.41 100.00 5,167,112.23 21,089,795.18

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F
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(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

10. bR 40 10. OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
NESHEAAZERNT : The five largest other receivables are as follows:
MAEBRREHR 15 FE U R R #REA LL B
Total amount of the five Percentage o the total value
largest accounts receivable of the accounts receivable
AR#T %
Rmb %
14,999,923.74 39.71
HAth FE UL R ERRE R 35 A B]5% L £ IR Other receivables due from shareholders who hold more than
BREXARBERAT : 5% of the Company’s shares are as follows:

BREEE EXRERHE FHERER

Name of shareholder Closing balance Opening balance

AR®T AR# T

Rmb Rmb

EEAKERQF Beiren Group Corporation _— 370,823.71
11, SR e A 11. PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

AE#H T

Rmb

FYEREE Balance at beginning of the year 15,571,311.59

REGTIRE Provision for the year 12,661,424.86

ARG Transfer during the year (2,504,992.20)

FREREE Balance at end of the year 25,727,744.25

12. FfHUE=% 12. PREPAYMENT
FEHIRFIREE AT 0T ¢ The aging analysis of prepayment is as follows:

FXeMN FoeRm
Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥ET % AR %
Rmb % Rmb %
1FE R Within 1 year 15,284,189.12 84.90 15,154,963.23 89.87
1224 1 year - 2 years 747,826.35 4.15 1,671,572.30 9.91
2E83F 2 years - 3 years 543,461.54 3.02 23,821.99 0.14
3FLLE Over 3 years 1,427,483.09 7.93 12,834.92 0.08

TN IRREREE P EFF A F5% U £
BRIRR R

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

18,002,960.10 100.00 16,863,192.44 100.00

The balance of prepayment does not contain any amounts
due from shareholders who hold more than 5% of the
Company’s shares.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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—EFE-F{+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
13. 1 B Bk o e A 13. INVENTORIES AND PROVISION FOR
DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF INVENTORIES
EXBE NS
Closing balance Opening balance
&F BEER 3] £ KELEE it
Provision for Provision for
diminution Net diminution Net
Amount in value balance Amount in value balance
AR AR®T AR AR AR®T AR®T
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb

B # Raw materials 81,260,691.68 3,180,386.46  78,080,305.22  81,139,550.49  2,059,191.45  79,080,359.04
EER Work in progress ~ 217,802,366.09 10,278,738.01 207,523,628.08 204,436,410.72  7,829,648.00 196,606,762.72
ERf Finished goods ~ 180,011,279.91 13,377,050.58 166,634,229.33 171,789,870.89  8,347,404.59 163,442,466.30
BHEHM  Semifinished

goods 68,458,415.15 — 68,458,416.15 41,158,371.49  1,357,016.68 39,801,354.81
KESER Lowvalue
consumables 962,304.14 — 962,304.14 53,474.51 — 53,474.51

548,495,056.97 26,836,175.05 521,658,881.92 498,577,678.10  19,593,260.72 478,984,417.38

GELEEBEZFHOT : Movement of the provision for diminution in value of
inventories is as follows:

ARETT
Rmb
FREE Balance at beginning of the year 19,593,260.72
REFHIRE Provision for the year 11,997,874.01
ARG Transfer during the year (4,754,959.68)
FREREE Balance at end of the year 26,836,175.05
4
14. fe¥EEN 14. DEFERRED EXPENSES
ECR FXH FYE BEREA
Closing Opening Reason for
Type balance balance unamortised balance
AR¥T AR T
Rmb Rmb
EEMERR 99,755.45 90,356.50  ZIHAMR B R R
Insurance on assets of enterprises The beneficial period
has not expired
HWTIFTRE 68,393.56 20,306.28  F AR ARG R
Newspaper subscription The beneficial period
has not expired
IRKAEE 212,627.96 367,009.02  Fzm AR RER
Moulds and tools The beneficial period
has not expired
Hty 1,252,751.19 414,656.28  ZzHAIRR KA R
Others The beneficial period

has not expired

1,633,528.16 892,328.08
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Fe 0B HE £t ¥ 15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS
FRIEH FEMRE
Closing balance  Opening balance
AR¥T AR¥T
Rmb Rmb
HARMAGHRE Investment in subsidiaries
NFLRIRE not included in scope of
consolidation 3,359,850.37 3,090,000.00
HEME b ERE Investment in associated companies 15,172,636.83 12,380,000.38
Hin 1R & Other equity investment 2,379,380.92 —
a5 Total 20,911,868.12 15,470,000.38
o RERERE Less: provision for impairment of
HEERE long term equity investment (3,451,012.32) —
ROREREFE Long term equity investment, net 17,460,855.80 15,470,000.38

REREREREEEZBOT -

Changes in provision for impairment of long term equity
invesent are as follows:

AR

Rmb

FHE Opening balance —
IR E B AN Addition during in the year 2,242,570.37
R F % 7 N 7 B EE A Transfer from subsidiaries acquired in the year 1,208.441.95
REEEH Transfer in the year —
FRE Closing balance 3,451,012.32

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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Bt M NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESHEA RS (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
15. RMBHEBE @) 15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(1) HERAMASHBRERHTLEH (1) Details of subsidiaries and associated companies not
BECERENFMABE R included in scope of consolidation are as follows:
T
L & ATER #RREQ S8 Rit Wi EX
BRRLATER #RE BB REMLH  HREAEE  AedA AR %6 () EERE
Increase/
decrease
Share of in equity
Names of registered interest Share  Accumulated  Provision for
invested Initial  Addition equity in invested of cash increase/ impairment  Closing book
companies investment investment  holding (%) companies bonus decrease (Note) value
ARET  ARET % AR®T ARET AR®T AR®T ARET
Rmb Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
FAF
Subsidiaries
I ADH 3,150,000.00 — 100% (3,067.92) — (2,078,368.60) (1,071,631.40) —
EHNT
Beiren Group
Transportation
Company
BZEALE 1,500,000.00 — 85% 21,387.08 — 21,387.08 — 1,521,387.08
B0l e 2 5
ARAH
Xian Beiren Beifu
Printing Operation
and Sale Company
Limited
b3 A EN Rl
HEHERAR 765,000.00 = 51% 1,831.89 = 1,831.89 —  766,831.89
Hubei Beiren Printing
Machinery Operation
and Sale Company
Limited
5,415,000.00 - 20,151.05 — (2,055,149.63) (1,071,631.40) 2,288,218.97
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(1) Details of subsidiaries and associated companies not
included in scope of consolidation are as follows:
(continued)

na & (FLATER HRREHR aB8 it Wi EX
RRRLFRR "ER REW FEFDLA HREEE  Red BRE % () RERE
Increase/
decrease
Share of in equity
Names of registered interest Share  Accumulated Provision for
invested Initial  Addition equity  ininvested of cash increase/  impairment  Closing book
companies investment investment holding (%)  companies bonus decrease (Note) value
ARBT ARET % ARBT  ARERT AR#T AR®T AE#T
Rmb Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
BT
Associated companies
BEELANE 10,680,000.00 — 4359%  (879,089.43) — (872,089.05) — 9,807,910.95
DRRHERRA
Ningxin Beiren Xinhua
Printing Joint Stock
Company Limited
ERIEAEBLR 900,000.00 = 45%  (14,184.68) = (14,184.68) —  885815.32
BHERERAT
Beijing Beiren Hengtong
Printing Machinery
Operation and
Sale Company Limited
BN AEREER 450,000.00 = 30% 3,444.12 = 3,444.12 — 45344412
BHERRA
Guangzhou Beiren
Hengtong Printing
Machinery Company
Limited
SES NG 703 343,000.00 = 49% 7,466.44 = 7,466.44 —  350,466.44
EREREALT
Liaoning Beiren Printing
Machinery Operation
and Sale Company
Limited
tREERE
FRERAA 3,675,000.00 = 49% = = = —  3,675,000.00
Beijing Monigraf
Automatic Systems
Company
16,048,000.00 — (882,363.55) —  (875,363.17) — 15,172,636.83
21,463,000.00 — (862,212.50) — (2,930,512.80) (1,071,631.40) 17,460,855.80

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |

133



134

B Wk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

B R RN
CIR 18 7 B 3T AU 5 1)
SEF-EroASt—ALEE

15. RMBHEBRYE @

For the year ended 31 December 2002

15. LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(1) HFRARANEELERENF (1) Details of subsidiaries and associated companies not

WMBERWOT - (& included in scope of consolidation are as follows:

(continued)

7 AFE2002F THEH Note: The Company’s subsidiary Beiren Group
RE b A AN ER Transportation Company was liquidated in the
NRETEE » ARE second half of 2002. The liquidation of the
28 2003F ¥ F R subsidiary is expected to be completed in the
REZFRAMNEET second half of 2003. As such, provision has been
fE - RIEBEFATT AR E & made for all impairment loss on the subsidiary’s
B O AEEZBETRT long-term investment based on the expected
REKRERBEERS recoverability of receivables.

(2) HaRERENFEMABRD (2)  Changes in the other equity investment are as follows:

T

i, {8 4 REEE
Provision for Net
impairment book value

R A NTEE RRSH )] | EXH ¥ Y |

Amount of Opening Closing Closing

Name of invested companies investment balance balance balance

AR¥T ARET AR¥T AR¥T
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb

REEZ AR 2,279,380.92 —  (2,279,380.92) —

Tianjin Jingin Printing Board Plant

R E AR 50,000.00 = (50,000.00) —

Ying Shen Associated Company

AREOB IEBSMAEDQR 50,000.00 = (50,000.00) —

Xian Printing Joint Development Company

2,379,380.92 — (2,379,380.92) —

HibRERE F RGBT BE
A ‘IR T B BRER 3E A BN
WERSEEQAAZSEAEHKE
EERNRR - FRER T
SRR A TMENREE D RIHY
®E - H5T ARKME2,379,380.92
7T o ED T E I8 E A
EEIREATE  BolEE
HEBEARNTHEME B

TRHREEES -

I b A B0 RIOBE MOy R A W

Closing balance of other equity investment included
invesment amounting to Rmb2,379,380.92 from Shaanxi
Beiren Printing Machinery Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, to Tianjin Jingin Printing
Board Plant, Ying Shen Associated Company, Xian
Printing Joint Development Company several years ago.
Since the Company had no control and influence on the
said investment, which was uncertain to be recovered,
provision was made for such the investment amount.



Bt R EE
(REFESAERRES)
—RR_F+ A=t —HIEFE

16. I B E

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

16 LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN DEBT

FRBH FHERE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR®T ARE T

Rmb Rmb

HitERERE

B REERRE

BEEE

REEERERE

RUGEEREREEBEDHNOT -

Other investment in debts

Long term investment in debts, net

32,727,000.00 32,727,000.00

Less: provision for impairment
of long term investment
in debts

8,333,200.00 8,333,200.00

24,393,800.00 24,393,800.00

Changes in provision for impairment of long term investment
in debts are as follows:

AE#¥ T

Rmb

FRRFEIAEE Opening and closing balance 8,333,200.00
HittEERERAS A RO R RS Investment in other debts was originally the deposit for

BRERRERAA([REERED
)8 B AR P #9943 55 &Y 5T
& o RE AR E#E¥30,000,000.005T
(3T& AR#32,727,000.007T) @ &
BOHR12-15% - SEKRE » B F
EERREZA  TEEERE R
EREEEWZEWER - HERNE
B ReHBBRESEABITERM
EoREDEERERRERAATE
ERZHZA - REBREXZ(SHEE
RS WEREREZIHZAFER
SHET -

REBREE - BT KREBN - EH
TR S AR - WIRAER
FIRFERE - Bt » ZELHMEE
ESAERIRE c BE1998F K » A
RN REFERE D AREF B8
#£18,750,000.00T ' i AR
20,117,692.507T °

19995 FtE » D RARBEZRAER =R
REESAE  RRARBZIENEW
HHMEFERANIEEN  Bit
THEIANE WS -

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

purchase of four flats from South-east Asia Investment and
Development Company Limited (“SEAIDCL") in Macau. The
initial investment amounted to HKD30,000,000.00
(equivalent to Rmb32,727,000.00). Return of investment is
12-15%. Pursuant to the contract, the Company does not
hold the title but the right to receive fixed income only before
the expiration of the contract. The ownership of title is
determined with reference to the execution of the contract
on the date of expiration. Before the expiration of the
contract, South-east Asia Investment and Development
Company Limited shall pay the corresponding interest as
agreed and has the obligation of refunding the deposit.

On the date of expiration of the contract, SEAIDCL did not
pay according to the contract. Both parties agreed to delay
the refund of the deposit and pay interest at agreed rate.
Therefore, the nature of the business has changed to
investment in debt. As at 31 December 1998, the
accumulated interest income received by the Company from
SEAIDCL amounted to HK$18,750,000, equivalent to
Rmb20,117,692.50.

From 1999, the Company has not received interest at the
agreed rate accordingly. The Company considered that it
was uncertain to receive the interest income. Therefore, the
interest income was not recognised.

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED |
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RUEERE @)

H > AAERERRENTE]T
— I (E R R o RIBZIHZE - R
DRENFEE2001F8 8 RPIE T
HEEEENERTE - MRERE
DIRE R E YR E MR T R AR
FEN - LEFEHREWEUE - R
FRBERE - REDREQAFRARR
AREFRRERR AR EH

RIBKFTHERER B R A F2001F
7THSHHEAEMEENGHRS  LiiE
EEEA8%23,000,000.007t @ &
& AR #24,400,000.007T A TR
B(EESFTHE)RRE » £2001F
RETZERER TR E € R AIREE
BEWERE > FHET REAREBEER
A R #8,333,200.007T ©

{BE,Z2001F12H31H 1k » REE
BEQNARPETAEEERENEE
FE - At ARHERMEREA AR
2002F 1B 1B mMIEAERET B —
@BHEE)  ARREESRERR
BRABENWREMREEES ZRE
TREERLNISEEEBHNERIKER
HHEEEE ° 20022810 - AFHE
REEREANTDERNFT T (R#HE
EENHTHRE  BEHRE  RE
DREQNTAFEHESITRLEARN
WEIRABWIE L ZFE - 6188 A
52 MEEBABR QR o BIFEKF
THEREM AR A F2002F1 4188
HENEENGRE  ZEENER
578 %24,000,000.007c ' HEAR
#£25,454,400.007c * NMERREE
HEE - ARAEEERBEZ2002F
1283181t - ZEERBEERR
{E °

HZE2002F12H8318 1k - DA R
TREEEEEENIRZFE -

b A Bp R OB AR OB By AR & F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

16

LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN DEBT
(CONTINUED)

The Company and SEAIDCL subsequently entered into a
supplementary agreement. Pursuant to the agreement,
SEAIDCL would complete the procedures for the transfer of
the title of the properties by the end of August 2001. If the
procedures for the transfer of the title cannot be completed
due to the fault of SEAIDCL, the supplementary agreement
will be cancelled and the original agreement will continue to
be effective so that SEAIDCL must be responsible for
payment of the original investment amount and the
outstanding balance of the returns.

Based on the asset valuation report issued by Yong Li Hong
Valuation Consultancy Company Limited on 8 July 2001, the
value of the above properties amounted to
HK$23,000,000.00, equivalent to Rmb24,400,000.00. In
accordance with the requirement of “Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises”, the Company made a provision
for diminution in value of long term investment amounting
to Rmb8,333,200.00 based on the difference between the
recoverable amount and the book value at the end of the
year 2001.

However, as at 31 December 2001, SEAIDCL had not
completed the procedures for the transfer of the title of
properties. Accordingly, the Company and SEAIDCL entered
into another supplementary agreement on 1 January 2002.
The Company agreed to accept the title of whole flat at 18th
Floor, South-east Asia Commercial Centre, South-east Asia
Plaza, Macau held by SEAIDCL in exchange for the title of
the original properties. On 1 February 2002, the Company
and SEAIDCL entered into an agreement for implementation
of the undertaking for sale and purchase contract. Pursuant
to the agreement, SEAIDCL will assist the Company in the
procedures of preparing title deed within 1 month after
signing the agreement and complete the procedures within
6 months. All expenses relating to the title deed will be paid
by the Company. Based on the asset valuation report issued
by Yong Li Hong Valuation Consultancy Company Limited
on 18 January 2002, the value of the properties amounted
to HK$24,000,000.00, equivalent to Rmb25,454,000.00.
which was no less than the value of the properties.
Management of the Company considered there was no
significant diminution in value for the properties as at 31
December 2002.

As at 31 December 2002, the Company has not completed
the title deed related to the properties.
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17. FIXED ASSETS, ACCUMULATED

HE fhi DEPRECIATION AND PROVISION FOR
DIMINUTION IN VALUE
EFRE
REREY BERGE RARRKE ERRfE =111
Funiture,
Plant and fixture and Motore
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
RR Cost
FAHE At beginning 32353292148 45031172255  51,612,330.11  28,680,523.60  863,137,497.74
FRETARMmEN Additions arising from 55,242,765.03 87,078,045.76 4,074,194.99 74379435  147,138,800.13
acquisition of
subsidiaries
HEfEEEEmLN Additions arising from = = 53,187.78 191,560.00 24474778
change in scope of
consolidation
HEfEEEENAY Reduction arising from = (63,000.01) (159,973.20)  (2,753,44550)  (2,976,418.71)
change in scope of
consolidation
REBE Additions 1,839,967.22 10,338,424.64 1,164,787.85  3,049,322.63  16,392,502.34
FEGRIREA Transfer from 39,482,210.51 29,486,842.79 1,609,598.46 166,250.00  70,744,901.76
construction in
progress
KERDHE Reduction (29,658,700.03)  (44,760,087.32)  (3,542,533.92)  (1,105,665.01)  (79,066,986.28)
EXRE At end of year 390,439,164.21  541,391,948.41  54,811592.07  28,972,340.07 1,015,615,044.76
RiHE Accumulated depreciation
EORE At beginning 83,147,530.39  236,342,780.79  29,757,603.19  17,073973.55  366,321,896.92
HEEFARMmEM Additions arising from 29,803,325.31 65,408,790.78 1,311,837.75 48323299  97,007,186.83
acquisition of
subsidiaries
REftsEZEmE M Additions arising from = = 4,996.95 10,318.43 15,315.38
change in scope of
consolidation
REfEEZEmHD Reduction arising from = (23,351.39) (67,534.77)  (1,355,356.61)  (1,446,242.77)
change in scope of
consolidation
REHRE Provision 10,811,017.62 33,750,347.73 476505443  2488917.01  51,815,336.79
KERIH Reduction (10,166,751.56)  (33,977,551.00)  (3,/499,101.14)  (936,252.75)  (48,579,656.45)
ERYE At end of year 113595121.76  301501,025.91  32272,856.41  17,764,832.62  465,133,836.70
WEER Provision for
dimuiution in value
ENRE (1) At beginning (Note 1) = 31,689,714.46 = —  31,689,714.46
REGRE G Provision (Note 1) = 6,417,599.25 = = 6,417,599.25
KEBEE (1) Transfer (Note 1) —  (10,386,758.72) = —  (10,386,758.72)
ERAE L) At end of year (Note 1) = 21,720,554.99 = —  27,720,554.99
BE Net book values
FAHE At beginning 240,385,391.09  191,279,21830  21,854,726.92  11,606,550.05  465,125,886.36
ERHE At end of year 276,844,042.45  212170,367.51  22538,735.66  11,207,507.45  522,760,653.07
Hep: Including:
EXRBHEMZ Net assets
BEFE (2 pledged (Note 2) 10,262,788.39 8,882,600.00 = —  19,145388.39
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ZF1: AREABREREBSEER
HETEDEME o 120025
12A318 @ MERHFREN
EEEEFERTFTARE
6,651,928.197T ° A mAl¥EZi1F
EEEEMIRBEEGBARE
3,155,317.887T ©

BREBMSFEFEEEN > 2ARIE
(CEETHE)RBRYEETE
EERBIKNE S IEEAIRT
EENEZHETERIEEEAR
#524 565,237.117T, A L@t
T ARM27,720,554.997T °

ﬁl_l’:

2: Lo ARATERELITD U
REECIRBEEBNRE
WMEE - FPEEEEEAR
#£10,386,758.72TC °

EREHFEERELS—TAF
BB IERTEEDTHEA
SHAfE Rk A B %32,500,000.00
T AREFEERRTER
DIEASEHRRBERARE
15,000,000.007T FI 3K 10 & E F
HRIFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

17.

FIXED ASSETS ,ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND PROVISION FOR
DIMINUTION IN VALUE (CONTINUED)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Due to adjustment of product mix, certain machinery
has been sealed. At 31 December 2002, the net book
value of the sealed fixed asset totalled
Rmb6,651,928.19. The Company made a provision for
diminution in value of the sealed fixed asset amounting
to Rmb3,155,317.88.

Besides the above sealed fixed assets, the Company
made a provision for diminution in value of fixed assets,
amounting to Rmb24,565,237.11 based on the
difference between the recoverable amount and the
book value in accordance with “Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises”. The total of the above
provision for diminution in value amounted to
Rmb27,720,554.99.

In addition, since the Company cancelled part of
provision for diminution in value made in the previous
year, write-back of provision amounted to
Rmb10,386,758.72.

Closing balance of outstanding debt pledged with
assets consists of a short term loan amounting to
Rmb32,500,000.00 from China Industrial and
Commercial Bank (Wei Na Branch) and a long term
loan with a five year term amounting to
Rmb15,000,000.00 from China Construction Bank (Wei
Na Branch) by a subsidiary of the Company.

SRR OEE R
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18. Tt T# 18. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
Bigm FERI FERM
£ 1] FaRmEm SEAMG A B8 FXBE (2
Addition due to Transfer Opening
Closing an acquisition Additions upon completion Others balance
balance of subsidiary during the year during the year reduction (note 2)
ARET ARBT ARET ARET ARBT
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
EEIR Construction in progress 136,621,135.48 6,408,058.99 177,339,317.36 (70,744,901.76 ) (9,835,265.51) 239,788,344.56
A AEER Less: Provision for
diminution in value (8,092,659.97) - (1,165,827.82) — 1,132,378.05 (8,126,109.74)
HRIRFE Construction in progress,
net 128,528,475.51 6,408,058.99 176,173,489.54 (70,744,901.76 ) (8,702,887.46) 231,662,234.82
%3 FERT FERM e I8
IEER LR ] ENRE By By L2 REER (23) EXRE K& EE
Transfer upon Provision for
Project name Budge Closing Additions completion Other diminution Opening Source
Amount balance  during the year during the year reductions in value (Note 3) balance  of funds Progress
ARET ARET ARET ARET AR®T ARET ARET ARE7R
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
REEH 26,000,000.00 22,673,665.45 30,333,912.74 (25,218,342.45)  (2,661,488.33) (6,143,729.78) 18,984,017.63 HE 50%
Equipment renovation Internal
resources
HHERE 258,747,882.20 62,883,925.60  135,901,568.56 (1,406,313.00) (324,712.60) —  197,054,468.56 HE 70%
Development of new Internal
plant site resources
BEBH 39,000,000.00 36,158,183.96 7,132,705.31 (39,159,952.07) - - 4,130,937.20 HE 90%
Moulding workshop Internal
resources
EfYE 15,600,000.00 14,317,754.47 9,110,167.38 (4,038,957.26)  (6,374,241.78) (1,942,379.96)  11,072,342.85 HE 92%
Workshop improvements Internal
resources
RRER 810,000.00 587,606 1,269,022.36 (921,336.98) (474,822.80) (40,000.00) 420,468.58 HE 80%
Environment protection Internal
resources

340,157,882.20 136,621,135.48  183,747,376.35 (70,744,901.76)  (9,835,265.51) (8,126,109.74)  231,662,234.82
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FECEREREEFENERT
BERETEREERBARE
1,132,378.057T °

RIB(EESFHFEINHRE » 2
AHERIRETZERE B
£2002%F 128318 It REAFEI
BT ERFIERTESEHHL
NEZEIRNEEAARYE
8,126,109.747C * AR ZFAFTIR
EERE -

©)

ERIRREERZHOT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
(CONTINUED)

Note:
(1)
(2)

©)

During the year , there was no interest capitalised.

Since the Company cancelled part of provision for
diminution in value made in the previous year, write-back
of provision amounted to Rmb1,132,378.05.

In accordance with “Accounting Regulations for Business
Enterprises”, the Company carried out a review of all
construction in progress. As at 31 December 2002, the
cost of construction in progress which has been
suspended for a long term and is not expected to restart
in three years amounted to Rmb8,126,109.74.
Accordingly, the Company made a provision for total
diminution in value.

Changes in provision for impairment of construction in
progress are as follows:

ARETT

Rmb

FHIERER Opening balance 8,092,659.97
RESHEE Provision in the year 1,165,827.82
REEHEH Transfer in the year (1,132,378.05)
FAREEE Closing balance 8,126,109.74

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F
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—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

19. P HE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
TiufE g IXER HWEEOFRE
(3%1) REBHE (52) &t
Land use Technical Imported
right knowhow  sales network
(Note 1) (Note 2)
AR¥ T AR AR AR¥T
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
E{E At cost
FHERE Opening balance 27,351,557.30 7,598,796.13  4,350,000.00  39,300,353.43
RFEF DA Addition arising from 47,975,112.00  3,486,500.00 —  51,461,612.00
g i acquisition of
subsidiaries
REZIN Addition in the year — — — —
RERDE Reduction in the year — — — —
FREREE Closing balance 75,326,669.30  11,085,296.13  4,350,000.00  90,761,965.43
RS Accumulated amortization
FHERE Opening balance 927,896.76  4,371,473.98 870,000.00  6,169,370.74
RFEF DA Addition arising from 879,543.73 532,659.72 —  1,412,203.45
g i acquisition of
subsidiaries
REFRE Provision in the year 1,587,358.54 1,117,696.81 —  2,705,055.35
RERDER Reduction in the year — — — —
FERERE Closing bnalance 3,394,799.03 6,021,830.51 870,000.00  10,286,629.54
WEER Provision for
diminution in value
ERREY Closing and opening
ERER balance - —  3,480,000.00  3,480,000.00
BE Net value
FHERE Opening balance 26,423,660.54 3,227,322.15 —  29,650,982.69
FREE Closing balance 71,931,870.27  5,063,465.62 —  76,995,335.89
Hep: Including:
FREEHAZ Net assets pledged
BEFE E3) at end of year
(Note 3) 29,833,846.90 — —  29,833,846.90

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED



142

W% Wk
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt R

(IR o B 32 U 45 )
—EF At —ALFE

19.

e E i ()
=

(1) LHERERBZNER DR
538 F 1 BIBRE b A BN Rl #E 4
ERLBFEAN T ERARE -

(2) HEEORERQAAN-—F2LH
RIUBRAL - RB(EESFHE
E)NEBRE - BRtHEERE
EREMKEERENE  Bit:
BT REVEEREER -

3) EXREHEESHBA—TFTLATEH
FREIERTEREDTEANER
&= AR #32,500,000.007T °
LR EAEZEREBITEEDTHE
ASEHRHBAEIRARS
15,000,000.007T KK & & &£
RFE -

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

19.

Notes:

@

)

©)

The additions of land use right during the period
was due to contribution of land use right arising
from acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited by the Company
during the period.

The imported sales network was contributed from
a subsidiary upon its establishment. In
accordance with “Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises”, provision for diminution
in value on the whole amount of the intangible
asset was made as the sales network was
replaced by other sales networks. Therefore, the
entire amount was provided as provision for
diminution in value of intangible asset.

Closing balance of outstanding debt pledged with
assets consists of a short term loan amounting
to Rmb32,500,000.00 from China Industrial and
Commercial Bank (Wei Na Branch) and a long
term loan with a five year term amounting to
Rmb15,000,000.00 from China Construction
Bank (Wei Na Branch) by a subsidiary of the
Company.

SRR OEE R
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R0 1 4 2 W 20. LONG TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES
b33 33 R
BN 3] b Y] Haa FXREH |
Remaining
Closing Addition Amorted Opening amortisation
Type balance during the year in the year balance period
ARET ARET ARET ARET
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
THHABE 51,108,000.00 — (480,000.00)  50,628,000.00 405 lyears
Land development cost
BEEELE 1,117,424.03 —  (1,117,424.03) — —
Repair to factory
BEARR 14,421.16 20,506.16 (15,275.58) 19,651.74 15 years
Equipment improvement
Hity 179,018.60 (38,321,81) 140,696.79 5% years
Others
52,239,845.19 199,524.76 (1,651,021.42) 50,788,348.53

THRBEERATIRFR LRGN A F
B At ASRBEQRRFEERA
B HPEERIERmEMNEHREKX
HFRYde A =7 BB RRIE A 2 B2 R L
R EAR5 & & 3R P B8 FE A 44 5% Y R
it o

RIBAEFTEHARBFHIETMEER
BIMER > ARIEREBHNNIERET
BA5 B & 2R P 5 ma Al 4455 Y AL o
2001% 78 @ t AEE A FEB K
2 SATMHBAE . BB TFAR
TMRA2000F RS F TR L I E
IREEENGEE - ALt » 2001FER
18 REITEEEE s TR EE
1THiSY - BE2002F 128318 ' A
B e AR Rk o

HRNURBMNEIL A =R L5
B MREKEETHE -
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The land development cost was contributed at valued
amount into the Company by Beiren Group Corporation upon
the Company’s reorganisation as a joint stock Company. The
properties erected on the land include Beiren No. 3 Plant
located at Xin Hua Da Street, Tong Zhou District, Beijing,
and a plant owned by the Company located at No. 44
Guangqu Road South, Chaoyang District, Beijing.

Pursuant to the request of Beijing Municipal Government
for overall plan, the Company shall move from No. 44
Guangqu Road South, Chaoyang District, Beijing. in
accordance with the overall plan of Beijing municipal. In July
2001, Beiren Group Corporation has agreed to give
compensation to the Company when the Company moves
out from the existing premises. The compensation will not
be less than the unaudited book value of land development
at 31 December 2000. Accordingly, no amortisation has been
made by the Company since 2001. As at 31 December 2002,
the Company has not moved from the existing address.

The land development cost regarding the land, Beiren No. 3

Plant erected thereon, located at Tong Zhou District is
amortized based on the straight line method.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

¥ 190 A% =K 21. SHORT TERM LOAN
ERER EXRE FHEREE
Type of loan Closing balance  Opening balance
AR®T AR® T
Rmb Rmb
EREBTER Guaranteed bank loans 223,500,000.00 246,100,000.00
EABITER Pledged bank loans 32,500,000.00 —
ERARITHER Credit bank loans 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

2002F RIERBITEFHEHILAESR
DNARBIER » FEREE4536%F
5.85% o

2002F RIKLIFRITERB TN —
FAREFEIERTBEITHEA
HERRES.84%H) — F B S Hi &
R EZEBEREUFEARE
15,613,195.23 T 1 L it AR F
BEH AR#5,653,741.30t M=% L it
FHHBEEMFEAARE
8,882,600.00 T Ay HBS SR R 1E B 3K
# o

257,000,000.00

247,100,000.00

Closing balance of guaranteed bank loans bearing annual

interest rates from 4.536% to 5.85%
Beiren Group Corporation.

was guaranteed by

Closing balance of outstanding guaranteed bank loans arose
from a short term loan, bearing annual interest rate of 5.84%,
from China Industrial and Commercial Bank (Wei Na Branch)
by a subsidiary of the Company. Such loan was guaranteed
by land use right with net value of Rmb 15,613,195.23 and
auxiliary structures erected thereon with net value of Rmb

5,653,741.30 and machinery with
8,882,600.00.

net value of Rmb

HEAY 5L 15 22. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ERER FEREHE FHEREE
Type of loan Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥TT AR#T
Rmb Rmb
RITERLES Bank bills 37,722,813.36 —

IFREBNENRE

AT R2002FE8A7HEL LR
RBTEERITEI TAH—FW
GRITAHEZEERLER) » BE
BARBIER  ZERABLEAKE
NRIRMEER o

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

Bills Payable due within one year

37,722,813.36

The Company and Shanghai Pudong

Development Bank

entered into letter of credit agreement for a term of one year.
Such facilities amounted to Rmb100 million, guaranteed by

Beiren Group Corporation on 7 August

2002.
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ErtERRME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
23, MEATWRAK 23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
EXRBEH FYEREE
Closing balance Opening balance
ARET % AR T %
Rmb % Rmb %
1FEA Within 1 year 139,090,131.26 94.93 74,233,889.17 71.70
1ZE25F 1-2 years 3,867,664.85 2.64 29,302,904.63 28.30
283F 2-3 years 3,561,194.64 2.43 — —

146,518,990.75 100.00 103,536,793.80 100.00

FE 13 1R SR R BE 35 A T 5% A kiR 15 Accounts payable to shareholders who hold more than 5%
BREXZRBERAOT : of the share capital of the Company:
BREE FXizH FEREE
Name of Shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR®TT AR T
Rmb Rmb
EEAKERQF Beiren Group Corporation 475,460.40 710,000.00
24. TOBOMRK 24. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE
TE U IR FRERBRE H 15 2 B5% A £ R 8 Receipts in advance from shareholders who hold more than
RERXRERAOT : 5% of the share capital of the Company.
KRB EXiEH FYEREE
Name of Shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR¥T
Rmb Rmb
EAKEEAF Beiren Group Corporation 47,837,247.23 —
HHBRIEAEEARWKEFEEE Such amount was the balance of compensation for removal
HIEREE > FEATE N R KIcE48 o contributed by Beiren Group Corporation. See note 48 for
details.
25. KEAT BRI 25. DIVIDENDS PAYABLE
BREARE EXRBHE FHHE
Name of Shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T ARETT
Rmb Rmb
TAEEAF Beiren Group Corporation 25,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
BALETHH Domestic listed Rmb ordinary shares
ARBEBR 7,200,000.00 6,000,000.00
B ETHNER Overseas listed foreign shares 10,000,000.00 12,000,000.00
42,200,000.00 48,000,000.00
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

26. ERBE 26. TAXES PAYABLES
FXREGHE FAEREE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR%¥T AR #T
Rmb Rmb
g st Income tax 3,419,411.60 4,181,083.49
BEH Value added tax 15,429,492.04 17,322,368.04
N Business tax 61,306.27 27,040.04
WEH Urban maintenance and
construction tax 528,641.78 1,170,103.77
Hpth Others 891,183.60 551,051.93
20,330,035.29 23,251,647.27
27. i HE A 2% 27. SUNDRY PAYABLES
M gt B FXE FENH
Nature Basis of charges Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR #T
Rmb Rmb
HBE BN 429 40 18 (B B TR & ZE R A 3% 288,943.89 516,673.47
Educational 3% of value added tax and
surcharge business tax payable
Hth Others 981,572.45 7,160.79
1,270,516.34 523,834.26
28. b HEAY K 28. OTHER PAYABLES

Hitb B FRIRE DT T -

The aging analysis of other payables is as follows:

FREGH FMEREH

Closing balance Opening balance
AR #T % AR#T %
Rmb % Rmb %
1F A Within 1 year 29,664,682.95 24.89 22,515,409.89 20.40
1825 1 year - 2 years 9,291,032.15 7.80 84,638,545.89 76.69
2Z3F 2 years - 3 years 80,057,800.15 67.18 1,538,050.63 1.40
3FLE Over 3 years 157,248.07 0.13 1,668,412.89 1.51
119,170,763.32 100.00 110,360,419.30 100.00

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F
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Name of Shareholder
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002
28. OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The balance of other payable due to shareholders who hold
more than 5% of the share capital of the Company.

FRERH FHERE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR #T AR#E T

Rmb Rmb

EAKERF

HZE2002F 128318 LA A E x4
AEBE AT UWNEELL A EE LD T 5EMED
Rl # W B ERXREFTARE
78,266,627.28 T °

29. WulAfE

Beiren Group Corporation

78,266,627.28 78,266,627.28

As at 31 December 2002, the Company had payments of
Rmb78,266,627.28 due to Beiren Group Corporation in
respect of the acquisition of assets of Beijing No. 4 Plant.

29. ACCRUED EXPENSES

FXiREE FAERE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR #T AR¥T

Rmb Rmb

BT AE

1R Y5 PR P A B BUEE PR BF 3 48 [2002]3
F(ARBIAE T EEERI%ERR
EELFEEEEEEABEN#
2 EELL2001F 118308 AR %
H #BAE T IEEREERERE
FEATR(HRAEIEE]) FEHERA
ETIEENRI#HEGREEA R (TR
¥ BB FEE23418x (He
KEMEELSI7TE L FLEMSE
ES248 T) BB EL AT c AAEE
EZPREETFEENR R AEBRE
HEIER S E2IAE - RAIERE
ERAENER -

1R IR PR H & B EE 3% (1998) 5757
RREERE M ¥R ETRILE
BN A SHERE » AREFX
T HEHRAEZEERAARYE
16,185,000.007T & B ERA B EE%E
# A R#5008,713.007T ' &3t AR
#£22,183,713.007T * D A EF A
FEtAE  c HEARERES EEF
EE ARY23,410,000.007C Y =58
AE#1,226,287.007C * 5T AEARLD
E °

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Expected liabilities

22,183,713,00 -

The document Shan Cai Ban Ci [2002] No. 3 "Reply to the
Issues in respect of the State-owned assets of Shaanxi
Huanggong Group Printing Machinery Company Limited"
issued by Shaanxi Ministry of Finance approved the
acquisition of Shaanxi Huanghe Construction Machinery
Group Company Limited (“Shaanxi Huanghe”) equity interest
in Shaanxi Huanggong Group Printing Machinery Company
Limited ("Shaanxi Printing Machinery") by the Company. With
effective date as at 30 November 2001, net asset value of
Shaanxi Printing Machinery was Rmb23,410,000 (including
operating assets of Rmb18,170,000 and non-operating
assets of Rmb5,240,000) was transferred to the Company.
When the Company acquired the equity interest in Shaanxi
Printing Machinery, the Company will be responsible for
employment of all staff and management of all resigned and
retired staff of Shaanxi Printing Machinery.

According to the relevant requirements of the document
(1998) No. 57 "Implementation Procedure of Settlement for
Employees of State Small Enterprises from Reform in
Shaanxi Province" issued by Shaanxi Ministry of Labour,
the Company was liable to pay settlement fee of
Rmb16,185,000.00 to well off employees, medical fee of
Rmb5,998,713.00 to retired employees. The total of such
two amounts was Rmb22,183,713.00, which was accrued
as the Company'’s liabilities. Such total amount and the
difference of Rmb1,226,287.00 arising from the transfer of
net assets of Rmb23,410,000.00 were transferred to capital
reserve.
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

HREN 30. ACCRUALS
FEXEEH FUREE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T ARETT
Rmb Rmb
ZRE Exhibition fee 2,000,000.00 —
Hth Others 1,161,310.81 —
3,161,310.81 —
4 2% 31. LONGTERM LOANS
fEREA EXBE ENRE ERYR FfE b4
Interest rate Terms
Name of lender Closing balance Opening balance Period of loans  per annum of loans
ARET ARETT %
Rmb Rmb %
HE I ERTEEAT 32,000,000.00 = 2002518226 £2004% 118 3R %28 GRER =1
China Industrial and Commercial 22.1.2002-3.11.2004 Interest-free  Credit loans Note 1
Bank (Wei Zhou Branch)
HEIHRITERD T 3,750,000.00 = 1998F9F 11H 22004598 10H 8.01 BRER  #2
China Industrial and Commercial 11.9.1998-10.9.2004 8.01 Guaranteed Note 2
Bank (Wei Zhou Branch) Loans
PR RTBRAT 15,000,000.00 = 2002695 26 H 22004595 26 B 6.04 BRER  H3
China Construction Bank 26.9.2002-26.9.2004 6.04 Pledged Note 3
(Wei Zhou Branch) Loans
HE T ERTRAZT = 4,700,000.00 20005 45 28 F 22004F 45 28 603  ERER w4
China Industrial and Commercial 28.4.2000-28.4.2004 6.03 Guaranteed Note 4
(Dong Cheng Branch) Loans
R THRTRAZT — 11,260,000.00 1997F 128 15A £2002F8 5 18H 6.03 BREH 4
China Industrial and Commercial 15.12.1997-18.8.2002 6.03 Guaranteed Note 4
(Dong Cheng Branch) Loans
HE T ERTRAZT = 2,490,000.00 1999%F9A27A 22001 9A 27H 621  ERER 4
China Industrial and Commercial 27.9.1999-27.9.2001 6.03 Guaranteed Note 4
(Dong Cheng Branch) Loans
50,750 ,000.00 18,450,000.00
B —FREIBRBARE (4,400,000.00) (16,750,000.00)
Less: Long term debt due
within one year
—FREERNTIE 46,350,000.00 1,700,000.00
Repayable due within one year
~FREBERERNT
Types of loans repayable
within one years:
HHED 2,000,000.00 =
Pledged loans
ERER 2,400,000.00 16,750,000.00
Guaranteed loans
db N ED R OAE BB By OB A H “ERERCEEHR
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—RR_F+ A=t —HIEFE

21 BRALEADREBERSEL
7 ([BRENHE|) ZpaBE@AL N T
B RIS TERPRIEEE[2001])F
44055 XX 14 0 R BB BN E£[97]105%
XHEBRE  AFH®KFET
EMRITBEEDITHEARKE
32,000,000.00 c B ERHE
N WHEHRAEEZSRE
PR o

520 2002F KRERFEHPE TERIT
BEITRBERARE
3,750,000.00 Tt AR A& T E
RIS B REE LD ARME
BAER-

F3: HEERRTEREITRAE
A R®15,000,000.007T % M
BEARM14,220,651.677THY
+ b 5 A E UK F E
4,609,047.09 TN EEEHIK
;»Ep o

7F4: REERARY18,450,000.00
TTRATMNFATLTILEAN
FBENARSEQTANER
AtRNRIEBERSEEAT
REIER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

31. EWE @) 31.

LONG TERM LOANS (CONTINUED)

Note 1: According to the requirements of the Document Gong
Yin Shan Ban Fa [2001] No. 440 and the Document
Guo Fa [97] No. 10, upon the transfer of Shaanxi Beiren
Printing sale and Machinery Company ("Shaanxi
Printing Machinery) to the Company, China Industrial
and Commercial Bank (Wei Zhou Branch) provided a
loan of Rmb32,000,000.00 to the Company. Such loan
was interest-free in the relevant period.

Note 2: China Industrial and Commercial Bank (Wei Zhou
Branch) provided an outstanding long term loan of
Rmb3,750,000.00 to the Company, which was
guaranteed by Shaanxi Huanggong Group Printing
Machinery Company Limited.

Note 3: China Industrial and Commercial Bank (Wei Zhou
Branch) provided an outstanding long term loan of
Rmb15,000,000.00 to the Company which was
guaranteed by land use right valued at
Rmb14,220,651.67 and properties valued at
Rmb4,609,047.09.

Note 4: The long term loans of Rmb18,450,000.00 are
borrowed by Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic Printing
Company Limited which are guaranteed by Beijing
Printing Group Company Limited.

32. I 32. LONG TERM PAYABLES
EXiEH FYEREE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR¥T AR T
Rmb Rmb
b BB ED & Beijing Plastic Printing Factory 29,550,000.00 —

I BE A 2001 F 128 HE 5 F
EEEARPERERALTILEATHE
ENEREMEAT (B : [dLADH]) -
He i A R#18,450,000.007T & 2
£ > AR%11,100,000.007T 45 B 15
X © 20024 » b AP FTEE AL B ENRRE
R i7% - At B ENRIEL IRITEE
AEWNER - L APFHENR2004F
2007 F IS HHEREREAESH AR
SHEEAFHEEZLTBENR -

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Beijing Plastic Printing Factory contributed part of its net
assets to Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic Printing Company
Limited (“Beiren Yuxin”) in December 2001 as its long term
investment therein, including a long term loan of
Rmb18,450,000.00 and a short term loan of
Rmb11,100,000.00. In 2002, Beiren Yuxin and Beijing Plastic
Printing Factory reached an agreement upon negotiations
that Beijing Plastic Printing Factory agreed to undertake the
obligations of repaying the principal and interest thereon.
Beiren Yuxin will repay the principal to Beijing Plastic Printing
Factory by equal installments on a monthly basis during 2004
to 2007.
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34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

HE %1 B 5k £ 33. DEFERRED TAX CREDIT
FXRREMEEH
Closing balance and
opening balance
AR #T
Rmb
EEFHREE Deferred tax credit 242.941.38

REVBEBEBRE - ARR1997F
LRI R S EELHIMNEE > BHE
EARBEAREIRMEBENEZRER
REXMFEBHENELHRESE o

In accordance with the relevant regulations issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the future tax payable arising from
investment in non-cash assets before 1997 in respect of the
excess of fair values over the book values of hon-cash assets
used for the purpose of investments is transferred to deferred
tax credit.

Je A 34. SHARE CAPITAL
FEXRFEMBE(K)
Closing balance and
opening balance (Share)
— EARRBERSD A.  Non-circulating shares

1. BEARG -BEEAR

MR RBRAEF
- BRERH B.

1. RALTARBEER

2. BHETHER
ERBERMBE
= RHEH C.

RO ERAMERSARKLT -

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

1. Promoter’ s shares - State-owned
legal person shares 250,000,000.00

Sub-total of non-circulating shares 250,000,000.00

Circulating shares

1. Domestic listed Renminbi

ordinary shares 50,000,000.00

2. Overseas listed foreign shares 100,000,000.00
Sub-total of circulating shares 150,000,000.00
Total number of shares 400,000,000.00

The nominal value of each of the above shares is Rmb1.00.

SRR OEE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

35. HARAR 35. CAPITAL RESERVE
A2001FE K 20024F » RRIEARATE During 2001 and 2002, changes in capital reserve are as
SEBEROT : follows:
BEEE RERRERF HUOBEFLH At
Provision
of equity  Other capital
Share Premium  investment reserve Total
ARET ARETT AR AR
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
(1) (&£2)
(note 1) (note 2)

2001F 1A 1A 885 As at 1 January 2001 398,134,633.19 1,376,667.85 — 399,511,301.04

LEEMEY Addition in previous year — — — —

2001 12H31H84%  As at 31 December 2001 398,134,633.19 1,376,667.85 — 399,511,301.04

A2 Addition in the year — 1829225 1226287.00  1,244,579.25

2002F12H31H84%  As at 31 December 2002 398,134,633.19 1,394,960.10 1,226,287.00 400,755,880.29

HF1: REEMBREARFLRER Note 1: Addition in the year was due to an increase in share
B o premiums of a subsidiary.

H2: RNREHMERABEMHARR Note 2: Other capital reserve for the year was due to the
PRENHEE R BIEA AR EEDN transfer of Shaanxi Beiren Printing Machinery
FRHIEE46 o Company to the Company. See Note 46 for details.

36. #RAR 36. SURPLUS RESERVE
A2001FE K 2002%F » DRI EBATE During 2001 and 2002, changes in surplus reserve are as
SEBEROT : follows:
EE gEERE EE
BiNEe N i N3 &t
Statutory Discretionary Statutory
surplus surplus public
reserve reserve welfare fund Total
ARE T ARE T ARE T ARE T
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb

20011810 64%E As at 1 January 2001 41,524,949.20 42,979,710.17  35,872,600.62  120,377,259.99

LEEME Addition in previous year 6,486,268.80 —  6,486,268.80  12,972,537.60

TERDE Reduction in previous year = = = =

2001F 1231 B4 % As at 31 December 2001 43,011,218.00 42,979,710.17  42,358,869.42  133,349,797.59

AEEZMEY Addition in the year 6,650,398.46 — 6,650,398.46 13,300,796.92

KERDH Reduction in the year — — — —

2002F 128 31 B 4 %E As at 31 December 2001 54,661,616.46 42,979,710.17  49,009,267.88  146,650,594.51

EELARTTARERARNGSE
BARNALEEREREREMAAE
Ko ZEAHET A ARARABINE
R o

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to cover loss
recorded before, expand production capacity and operations
and increase capital. Statutory public welfare fund can be

used for welfare of employees.
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37. R4rHLAH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

37. RETAINED PROFITS

RERTH T EEFHE
2002 2001
AR¥T AR¥T
Rmb Rmb
FANARD TR Retained profits brought forward 18,262,946.55  14,953,808.69
o AREFFE Add: Net profits for the year 68,940,690.64  64,281,675.46
B RIEERSOAE L) Less: Transfer to statutory surplus
reserve (note 1) (6,650,398.46)  (6,486,268.80)
REZEARE (72) Transfer to statutory public
welfare fund (note 2) (6,650,398.46)  (6,486,268.80)
EEBRRA (F3) Dividends payable of ordinary
shares (note 3) (42,200,000.00)  (48,000,000.00)
FERRDEFB Retained profits carried forward 31,702,840.27  18,262,946.55
F1: REGZEEERSLE Note 1: Transfer to statutory surplus reserve

BREBAREFRITIERARER
RE  AEBHRLABSRFRN
THZ10%IRE - Lt BB
BRERREHE -

RECEEDHE

REBAREFRITIRR ARER
RE BAAEE2IRE
FEERELAZESREIENE2
10%I2E - EAIEBEFRE
REHE -

FE A E B AR AR R

RIBEAT2002F4R17THESE
Rk 0 WD F]2002F6811H
RERAEREAE - DN F]20015
REAKRDEFE R 2002181
HEZEQATENBTARRKRER
RBIREFNRERFTEREL
= o 2003 1H7H A E) G0
TARRIRZE22,000,000% ° R
2003F4H 108 BRMEMESE
TREEERE  AFERER
1T 2 P& 13 422,000,0008% 5T E #F
UETREZERRIKERESA
FIARELT  WLFREDEAR
SRR ASHAE -

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

According to the Rule 177 of the Company Law and
Articles of Association of the Company, 10 % of net
profit is transferred to statutory surplus reserve, subject
to the approval of shareholders' general meeting.
Note 2: Transfer to statutory public welfare fund
According to the Rule 177 of the Company Law and
Articles of Association of the Company, 10 % of net
profit is transferred to statutory public welfare
fund as proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to
the approval of shareholders' general meeting.
Note 3: Dividends payable of ordinary shares
In accordance with the resolution passed by the Board
of Directors on 17 April 2002 and upon the approval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held
on 11 June 2002, the undistributed profit at the end of
2001 and the profit accumulated from 1 January 2002
to the date immediately before the completion of the
issue of A shares by the Company will be shared among
the existing and new shareholders. As at 7 January
2003, the Company issued 22,000,000 A shares.
According the resolutions passed in the 7th meeting
of the 4th Board held on 10 April 2003, the Company
proposed to distribute dividends of Rmb1.00 (including
tax) for the 422,000,000 shares (of par value Rmb1.00
each) in issue to shareholders for every 10 shares held,
which makes for a total of Rmb42,200,000, subject to
the approval of shareholders' general meeting.

SRR OEE R
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38. LEBBHBWA A

For the year ended 31 December 2002

38. TURNOVER AND COST OF SALES FROM

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

MAJOR OPERATIONS

FERMB TEZHE
2002 2001
A 5783 A D%
Turnover Cost of sales Turnover Cost of sales
AR %T AR%T AR AR
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
A8 Local sales
FRAENRIKEHE Sheet-fed offset
printing machines 579,187,920.71  364,646,956.32  461,240,361.05  309,642,680.31
BRKRIMEE Web-fed offset
printing machines 130,144,563.69  97,343,492.87  162,579,187.50  124,465,188.36
U1 il B ol 4 8 5 Instrusion printing
machines 109,364,631.81  84,953,752.70 = =
BEKHEE Pressing machines — — 1,958,119.66 3,617,823.94
RIEKEE Form printing machines 52,538,461.52  37,303,480.74  38,593,162.38  30,358,640.27
ERETHEE Sale of spare parts 19,971,012.48  13,860,872,35  32,994,516.35  17,992,188.65
eSS Printing operations 17,049,425.16  11,990,477.21 = =
Hfth Others 10,870,850.59 8,084,569.48 — —
919,126,865.96  618,183,601.67  697,365,346.94  486,076,521.53
She8 Export sales
EN Rl & Sale of printing
machines 6,231,906.49 5,204,443.05 1,711,028.63 1,078,075.14
EmEtEE Sale of apare parts 1,570,507.02 727,473.08 — —
7,802,413.51 5,931,916.13 1,711,028.63 1,078,075.14
926,929,279.47  624,115,517.80  699,076,375.57  487,154,596.67
AR ERBAEWA#RE 2y EU A LB
Percentage of sales to the top five customers Percentage of the total sales
AR T
Rmb

121,138,974.37

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

13.07%
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39. EBEHBLS KK m

For the year ended 31 December 2002

39. SALESTAX AND SURCHARGE FROM
PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

KBARE neE mE
Item of turnover Type of tax Tax rate
6 EN R 4 4 A0 A8 2B e 4 Bt ERIBER M EEBN5-7%

K EN Rl £ 75

Sales of printing machinery and

the related accessories

City Construction Tax

Business Tax
KB EMN

Educational surcharge

5-7% on value-added tax and
business tax paid

B A BI5%

5% on taxable income

ERIEER I E ER 3%

3% on value-added tax and
business tax paid

40. WHEM 40. FINANCE COSTS
XERMBY FERFH
2002 2001
AR ¥ AR
Rmb Rmb
FME X H Interest expenses 17,567,530.66 8,159,321.95
o RE A Less: Interest income (2,999,888.52)  (2,146,518.15)
EHBK Exchange loss — 844,595.06
R AR Less: Exchange income (413,554.50)  (1,905,566.17)
Hth Others 837,169.23 86,380.37
14,991,256.87 5,038,213.06
41. BHEW 41. INVESTMENT INCOME

XERMBY FERFH
2002 2001
AR ¥ AR
Rmb Rmb

RHBRE KRS Long term investment income

B A RR NG Income (loss) recognized using
(#82%) equity method (826,705.04) 7,000.38
REIRERERX Loss on provision for diminution

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

in value of long term investments

(2,242,570.37)

(4,241,400.00)

(3,069,275.41)

(4,234,399.62)
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

42. BIEIMBA 42. NON-OPERATING INCOME
RH EERMH EFZRFH
Item 2002 2001
AR¥T AE#H T
Rmb Rmb
BEEEEBTEFRE Net income from disposal of
fixed assets 4,814,290.78 974,853.57
SR PN Penalty income 13,129.00 21,241.30
Hty Others 1,135,236.29 233,181.00
5,962,656.07 1,229,275.87
43. BEM X 43. NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
RH EERMH EFZRFH
Item 2002 2001
AR¥T AR#H T
Rmb Rmb
EEEEREEMFED  Write-back of provision for
impairment of fixed assets (3,969,159.47) —
BEEEFEFIH Expense on disposal of fixed assets 911,344.82 2,231,153.73
FEIERBEERS Provision for impairement of
construction in progress 33,449.77 —
FERE Loss on inventories count — 199,310.66
TMZ Penalty expenses 70,376.96 32,759.37
Hith Others 1,013,165.44 347,425.80
(1,940,822.48) 2,810,649.56
A4, PRl 44. INCOME TAX
EERMH EFEZRFH
2002 2001
AR%T AR#H T
Rmb Rmb
BN R EFATEH Income tax of the Company 14,475,403.14 13,577,426.55
F A B FER PSR Income tax of subsidiaries 558,823.37 160,788.01

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

15,034,226.51

13,738,214.56
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(RIBEPESTERRES) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
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45. AT HEEHGEEHAEM 45, OTHER CASH PAID RELATING TO
F: OPERATING ACTIVITIES
&
Amount
AR #T
Rmb
REHERASIH Agency commission paid 4,737,201.15
BECHEXH Payment for trademark fee 6,000,312.73
EBitE Audit fee 2,586,704.50
ZHAHE Installation and testing fee 7,716,684.25
EEE Repairs and maintenance 6,755,133.57
T fERE Land use right expense 2,259,789.64
EEEERZRE Advertising, promotion and exhibition 5,920,224.05
BB Transportation fee 3,678,611.85
HEHEE Research and development expenses 16,247,849.06
Hith Others 58,829,558.82

114,732,069.62
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46. WEHE 1AW

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

W B Bk
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

&8
Amount
AR¥T
Rmb

BEFLAATEFRSEENEE

FREEE

FE WA R 3R

H fth F& W R

B IR

FE

REIRE
REREREER

—FIHNRMES
BlE&ERE
RETE

EEIRE

BYEE

&fE

FE A 1R 3R
H fth P& A4 5K
FER Bl &
KA R
REER
REEN

DR R E S
REEE
HEtEE
BEADE

BEER

BEFE

ZmFrRBRERE
BEFE
REEE

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Principal non-cash assets and liabilities

from acquisition of a subsidiary
Non-cash assets

Accounts receivable

Other receivable

Prepayment

Inventories

Long term investment

Provision for impairment of long term
investment

Long term bond due with one year

Fixed assets, at cost

Accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress

Intangible assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Other payable
Tax payable
Short term loan
Long term loan
Long term payable

Minority shareholders' fund
Cash assets

Accrued expenses

Capital surplus reserve

Consideration

Fully settled in cash

Cash flow from acquisition of a subsidiary

Fully settled in cash
Cash assets

14,648,361.79
15,306,765.88
24,038,293.10
52,526,807.53

1,642,868.67

(1,208,441.95)
20,000.00
147,138,800.13

(97,007,186.83)
6,408,098.98
50,049,408.55

(21,202,519.52)
(46,935,346.77)

(459,015.06)
(39,155,000.00)
(45,710,000.00)
(25,919,280.77)

34,182,613.73

(15,825,787.23)
5,053,173.50

(22,183,713.00)

(1,226,287.00)

5,053,173.50

5,053,173.50

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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47.

Wmy 2

2002518118 - B & B BUEE R B
P1E[2002]355 (AR PR A E T & B El
Rl ERETARNREEEGEM
BERHLEY - @ELL2001F11H30H
AEER > BRAENIEEHEER
BREEQATA(RAEIEER]) FE
B E TEEERIMEEREEA
A ([BREN]) MBI B FEE2,3418
TU(EHPREMEELSITEL @ LK
B EESAB ) EEEEANTL
AEEZHREOEFEEE  RRFRIERK
EEIER  BES2IAE » AE
BERIRABHNER - RIEKEE S
BBk %5 2% (1998) 5755 (B B & Bl
BEENCEREFRIZEE R
EVEHBERE  BRENEESRAED
ZEBRBEERNAENBHEBMIEL
st AR #22,183,713.007% @ A @&
Hit A\ EE  HEATBRES
FEEFE = A K®23,410,000.00
TTHEFARY1,226,287.007T * 2
ABEBABERDTE -

200218178 » ARERAEIE
BT EREEHZE - 2002F1H22
B QAAEREEIFZEARE AR
60,770,0007T ° SERK L E S F AL
% MEBHTMERZEZIAREL
Bt HAF A F1584.18% » R EE
MEEEEATH15.82%  EHA
ZHEBREBEERSEESATMSHEHMA
2002F 1 A23AEE  WHASER
F (2002) 0163558 E 3R E ° 20024F 1
H248 - BRENEE B A [BRA 1L AED
R EREEAT] °

b A Bp R OB AR OB By AR & F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

47.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 11 January 2002, Shaanxi Ministry of Finance issued
the document Shan Cai Ban Ci [2002] No. 3 “Reply to the
Issues in respect of the state-owned assets of Shaanxi
Huanggong Group Printing Machinery Company Limited”
which approved the acquisition of the equity interest held
by Shaanxi Huanghe Construction Machinery Group
Company Limited (“Shannxi Huanghe”) in Shaanxi
Huanggong Group Printing Machinery Company Limited
(“Shaanxi Printing Machinery”) by the Company. With
effective date as at 30 November 2001 and based on the
audit report Xi Hui Shen Zi (2001) No. 1208 issued by Xian
Xigema Certified Public Accountants Company Limited on
14 December 2002, the investment in Shangxi Printing
Machinery with net asset value of Rmb23,410,000 (including
operating assets of Rmb18,170,000 and non-operating
assets of Rmb5,240,000) held by Shaanxi Huanghe would
will be transferred to the Company. When the Company
acquired the equity interest in Shaanxi Printing Machinery,
the Company will be responsible for the employment of all
staff and management of all resigned and retired staff of
Shaanxi Printing Machinery. According to the relevant
requirements of the document (1998) No. 57
"Implementation Procedure of Settlement for Employees of
State Small Enterprises from Reform in Shaanxi Province"
issued by Shaanxi Ministry of Labour, the Company was
liable to pay settlement fee to well off employees, and
medical fee to retired employees. The total of such two
amounts was Rmb22,183,713.00, which was accrued for the
Company. Such total amount and the difference of
Rmb1,226,287.00 arising from the transfer of net assets of
Rmb23,410,000.00 carried forward were transferred to
capital reserve.

On 17 January 2002, the Company and Shaanxi Huanghe
Group entered into an asset transfer agreement. On 22
January 2002, the Company injected capital of
Rmb60,770,000 into Shaanxi Printing Machinery. After the
completion of the capital contribution, the registered capital
of Shaanxi Printing Machinery amounted to
Rmb100,000,000, in which the Company holds 84.18%
equity interest and China Huarong Asset Management
Company holds 15.82% equity interest. The capital
contribution were verified by Xian Xigema Certified Public
Accountants Company Limited on 23 January 2002 and
capital veritification report Xi Hui Yan Zi (2002) No. 016 was
issued. On 24 January 2002, Shaanxi Printing Machinery
changed its name to Shaanxi Beiren Printing Machinery
Company Limited.
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(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

48. iR 48. SEGMENT INFORMATION
RATNEZRARFBEIIREREE As substantially all of the Group's revenue and results are
RIVED RIS B EHE  MARRE derived from the manufacture and sale of printing machines
R R O EB WA RFESFEER in the Mainland China, and revenue and results derived from
N Bt RARERERAEER other business segments and outside the Mainland China
#il o WK o are insignificant, no segmental analysis of financial

information is presented.

49. BRI T5 B AR B HE A2 By 49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(1) KRKEFEeFIEMNF AT F (1) Related parties that have controlling relationship,
EEHBERNBEE S except subsidiaries as mentioned in note 6
BERR EE
Lkt i 1 0 B FERE RABME MK fR&A

Relations

Name of Place of with the Type of Legal
related party registration Main Business Company Corporation representative
TARERR  ERTHBE SENHEEDREM - SREN - BRRR 2RAEH KHEZ

BARZIERANES - BWHEE

BiiEA - R SERFBLE

EERENELOEYE  REHEH

HRERIEREAERARIR

Beiren Group Beijing Chaoyang ~ Manufacturing and sales of printing Holding Stated-owned Zhu Wuan
Corporation District machines, packing machines, Company Company

machine beds and parts and
components of such machines;
technology development and
services, provision of import
services related to the production
of enterprises within the Group
and sub-contracting work of
printing machinery project in
overseas and international
tendering project within the PRC.

(2) EFIERNREES W ERS (2) Changes in the Company’s share capital held by

RiERmREEL related parties

B BB EXRENY nd]

Closing and

Name of related party opening balance Ratio

AR#¥T %

Rmb %

EASKE 2T Beiren Group Corporation 25,000 62.5
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Tl Y68 5 Bl A B JE 3% B ()

3)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

T 2 B R RO BB 5 O E 3)
ERRERI
WRAEH FNY

Name of related party

Opening balance

Changes in registered capital of parties with

controlling relationship

5%
amm

Addition in the year

EAKBAF

Beiren Group Corporation

EFREADEER AR

Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery
Transportation Company

EREAZ LR
BHERDA

Beijing Beiren Fuiji Printing
Machinery Company limited

R AR R

Beijing Beiren Jing Yan Printing
Machinery Factory

LRI ARMEDEEER

Beijing Tai He Printing Casting
Factory

R KNI B

Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery
Accessories Factory

L AREHE

Hebei Beiren Gei Zhi Ji Chang

BP9 3L A B0l
BREEAA

Haimen Beiren Printing Machinery
Company Limited

RABRAA

Sheenlife Limited

ERIEADIBED
BREEAA

Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic
Printing Company Limited

BRI AL E DRI
EHERAH

Xian Beiren Beifu Printing
Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited

TSI 3t A B0l L
EHERAA

Zhejiang Beiren Printing
Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

A E#250,000,000.007%
Rmb250,000,000.00
AR#3,150,000.007
Rmb3,150,000.00
%715,100,000.007T
US$5,100,000.00

AR #4,050,000.007
Rmb4,050,000.00

AR #4,000,000.007
Rmb4,000,000.00

AR #2,000,000.007
Rmb2,000,000.00

AR #4,802,600.007
Rmb4,802,600.00

AR #2,900,000.007
Rmb2,900,000.00
B#3.007T

HK$3.00

AR #22,430,000.007
Rmb22,430,000.00

AR#1,500,000.007

Rmb1,500,000.00

AR #1,500,000.007

Rmb1,500,000.00

14
BOH £XY
Reduction
in the year Closing balance
- AR %250,000,000.007%
Rmb250,000,000.00
- AR %3,150,000.007

Rmb3,150,000.00

- 53T5,100,000.007C

US$5,100,000.00

- A E%4,050,000.007
Rmb4,050,000.00

- A E%4,000,000.007
Rmb4,000,000.00

- AE%2,000,000.007
Rmb2,000,000.00

- AE%4,802,600.007C
Rmb4,802,600.00

- AE%2,900,000.007
Rmb2,900,000.00

- ##3.00T
HK$3.00

- AR %22,430,000.007
Rmb22,430,000.00

- AE%1,500,000.007C

Rmb1,500,000.00

- AE%1,500,000.007

Rmb1,500,000.00

SRR OEE R
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(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
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49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

T3 72 422 1 AR AV BA TS 75 MO SE R (3) Changes in registered capital of parties with
BEXARERZL controlling relationship
33 33
REAaR 9% YW FXH
Reduction

Name of related party Opening balance Addition in the year in the year Closing balance

3t A ED Rl AR®1,500,000.007T - AR ®1,500,000.007%
EHERAH

Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery Rmb150,000,000.00 Rmb150,000,000.00
Operation and Sale Company Limited

PR 16 A ED il #E45 AR#100,000,000.007T - AR %100,000,000.007C
BRERAT

Shaanxi Beiren Printing Machinery Rmb100,000,000.00 Rmb100,000,000.00
Company Limited

AT B E RS TR R (4)  The Company had the following significant related

ETMTERBERS party transactions with the above related companies:

MBARE BELATHMRE

Name of related party Relations with the Company

TREREEROAT ERBRRTEAH

Beijing Yan Long Import and Export Company Fellow Subsidiary

I AKTBIE ERBRRTEAH

Beiren Hotel Fellow Subsidiary

BRI AFEDRRDERD A AN

Ningxia Beiren Xinhua Printing Joint Stock Company Limited
LRI ANEBENRIEMEHERA T
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
BMIt AEBENR#MERD A
Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
BEILADREBEHEEREE QT
Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
LTRERBEABRERAT

Beijing Monigraf Automatic Systems Company Limited

Associated Company
Bens

Associated Company

Bens

Associated Company

AN

Associated Company

B NT

Associated Company
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49. WB BB KEERS @) 49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(4) DREEMEBEERNFER (4)
ETUTERBEBRS (&)

The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:
(continued)

(a) HERKE (a)

Sales and purchases

DA EEEE T S E R R

Details of sales and purchases with related

BEYEREBMER N party are as follows:
T :
FEZRY LERFHE
2002 2001
AR¥T AR T
Rmb Rmb
HE - KEHEERA
Sales transacted on behalf of the Company
—tREEELODH 1,923,076.92 1,132,478.63

— Beijing Yan Long Import and Export Company

-t AKEAT

— Beiren Group Corporation
—AREALEHREMEHERAT

— Xian Beiren Beifu Printing Machinery Operation

and Sale Company Limited

— Mk NEI R EHEBRA A

— Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery Operation

and Sale Company Limited

-~ LtRIEANEBHREMEHERAET

— Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited

-~ BEIANREBEHEEREELT

— Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery Operation

and Sale Company Limited

-BMEANERDRERERAT
— Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited

162 | | NG = U 7 A 7 i < I /N

11,156,899.74

24,559,829.06

60,693,760.68

18,079,316.24

3,412,735.04

427,580,898.19

119,825,617.68

428,713,376.82

SRR OEE R
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—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
49. BT BIR R IER Y (1) 49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(4) Qﬁﬁtﬁ@%ﬁ@$¢%§ (4) The Company had the following significant related
ETUTERERRS (&) party transactions with the abvoe related companies:

(continued)

(a) HERRE (&) (@) Sales and purchases (continued)
/Aﬁ[ﬁ]%ﬁﬂﬁ%)‘iﬁ‘é%&ﬁé Details of sales and purchases with related
EEYRRERAERN party are as follows: (continued)

T (&)
FERMH L FRFE
2002 2001
AR®TT ARET
Rmb Rmb
kAL 10N
Sale of printing machines
-t AEERF 15,436,200.00 11,845,128.20
— Beiren Group Corporation
-~ BELARENRROERRA - 6,831,880.34

— Ningxia Beiren Xinhua Printing Joint Stock
Company Limited

15,436,200.00 18,677,008.54
$HE MR
Sale of materials
- AKEAH 909,740.08 1,126,833.64
— Beiren Group Corporation
—EAKEE 206,828.62 1,611,400.50
— Beiren Hotel
1,116,568.70 2,738,234.14
R -BEMBXH
Purchase — Purchase of materials
—LREEELOAT 119,095.00 6,040,041.01
— Beijing Yan Long Import and Export Company
-t AEERAF 5,866,347.88 5,219,450.68
— Beiren Group Corporation
5,985,442.88 11,259,491.69
A 8] (] L 2t B B R 8H Prices of goods sold to the above connected companies are
EEm  HEERKRS made with reference to those of comparative goods in the
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ:?ﬁ%TE*ﬁ%ﬂ market.
E o
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49. WHB T BFRERERY @)

(4) DREEELMBEBEEARFER
ETUTERBYMRS (&)

(b)

(c)

WERESR

RELEEHARBGE
TEmERRENE
R AR RE H AR
It mmEGEEREE
BI44553R 3k - RIBIR
mREZEE N[
AEBER TSR ERRK
BEMEIEE AT
HEBEIWHE) 2
#5 (2002) 546%%) -
TtEmREZEERR
b AEE A TR Lk
Bo Rt —E£5
HREBERME -BZE
2002F12A31HIEA
CEE €PN
ARIFEMNNRE#HEER
AR#75,914,543.37
BT HA AR
28,077,296.14T5 B &
b A EE D TR
EHMBEEEBER
95 °

ER

B ZE2002%F12A31H
It EAEERABA
AEHERARYE
223,500,000.007% * LA
FEEAAREIET
WGERITREEZRHE
ARER)EHIER o

b A Bp R OB AR OB By AR & F

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(4)

The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Removal compensation

At the request of the People's Municipal
Government of Beijing and according to city
planning of Beijing, the Company will move
out of the current address, No. 44 Guangqu
Road South, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC. According to Circular Jing Jing [2002]
No0.546 "Reply to the Feasibility Study on
Technological Innovation through Removal of
Polluting Plants by Beiren Group Corporation
" issued by Beijing Economic Committee,
Beijing Economic Committee agreed that
Beiren Group Corporation paid removal
compensation to the Company for the above
removal. As at 31 December 2002, the
Company received accumulation of removal
compensation in advance amounting to
Rmb75,914,543.37, Rmb28,077,296.14 of
such payment recognized as write-back of loss
arising from disposal of removal assets in the
ruling period.

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2002, Beiren Group
Corporation guaranteed a short term loan
amounting to Rmb223,500,000.00 and
banking facilities amounting to Rmb100 million
in respect with Letter of Credit Agreement on
behalf of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

4) The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:

(continued)

(dy Hftb (d)  Others
FERHB LFRFHE
2002 2001
AR#T AR#T
Rmb Rmb
HEME N B
Sale commission paid Note 1
— L REERELOAT = 33,974.36
— Beijing Yan Long Import and Export Company
- AKEAH —  11,013,049.20
— Beiren Group Corporation
—AZEALEEORIEMEEHERD A 558,844.30 =
— Xian Beiren Beifu Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
— ML DRI E BB R A ) 62,166.18 =
— Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
- R ANEBERIEWMEHERD A 363,700.87 =

— Beijing Beiren Hengong Printing Machinery

Operation and Sale Company Limited
—EELANRRBEHEEREE DR 194,102.58
— Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery Operation

and Sale Company Limited
- BN NMEBENRIEMAE RA B

— Guangzhou Beiren Hengong Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited

THERE N
Payment for the land use
-t AEERAF
— Beiren Group Corporation

BEEXH
Trademark fee paid
-t AEERAF
— Beiren Group Corporation

HERBEBA
Rental income

-~ LIRERBERRERLQA

— Beijing Monigraf Automatic Systems

Company Limited

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

553,108.95 -
1,731,922.88 11,047,023.56
=2
Note 2
1,610,364.44 2,000,000.00
3
Note 3
6,000,312.73 5,776,522.88
T4 100,000.00 =
Note 4
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NEE B S A A FE R
ETUTERBYMRS (&)

(d)
1.

ﬁl_l‘:

2.

3.

ﬁl_l’:

Htb ()

20015118208 » A F]
B AEBARERT T
(BERK LR RHERE
BRBmR - Bt - 2
AfFBREBLAZEEA
AREEEMEBRANLN
HE MHREENER
R - wEFZBEIA
SELRAXMNHEER

B 20025 BtR - ARE
BECSRAERAHE
EHE N INETEH
& WEHEZFHEHER
@ °

1994548188 ' AT
=S AN N A
# LtASELAFARE
ARIEABEEBGEENT
BE EEREBER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(4)

The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:
(continued)

(d)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note3:

Note4:

Others (continued)

On 20 November 2001, the Company and
Beiren Group Corporation entered into an
agreement on terminations of the domestic sale
agency contract. The Company will directly
carry out promotion and sale of its products and
is not required to carry out the sale, market
promotion and after-sale service for its products
in the PRC through the agent of Beiren Group
Corporation. The Company is also no required
to pay any sales commission to Beiren Group
Corporation.

Since 2002, the Company has been selling its
products to external parties through its invested
companies or controlled associated companies
and paying sales commission to those
companies.

On 18 April 1994, the Company and Beiren
Group Corporation entered into an agreement,
according to which the Company could lease
the factory site, road and the relevant facilities
it was then occupying for a term of 50 years
with effect from 1 January 1993, for a rent of
Rmb2,000,000.00 per year. The Company
moved during the year. Part of that factory site,
road and the relevant facilities were not used.
Beiren Group Corporation agreed to reduce
land use fee accordingly.

On 14 July 1993, the Company and Beiren
Group Corporation entered into an agreement,
according to which the Company could have
the right to use "Beiren" brand name for a
consideration of the higher of 1% of sales
revenue of good sold under "Beiren" brand
name during that year, and Rmb15,000.00 per
quarter.

The Company leased a plant to Beijing Monigraf
Automatic Systems Company Limited for a term
of 3 years with effect from December 2001, for
a rent of Rmb100,000.00 per year.
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49. BB RERERY @)

(4) DREEELMBEBAEEANFER
ETUTERBYMRS (&)

(e) EREBERRFBK

HE

Item

For the year ended 31 December 2002

W% W R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

4) The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:

(continued)

(e) Current accounts with related parties

Lkt

Name of related parties

£33

Closing balance

AR¥T
Rmb

EHRE
Opening balance
AR

Rmb

B W B 5K

Accounts receivable

BURE

Bills receivable

L B Yok

Others receivable

TR

Receipts in advance

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

ML ADBIEHEHEETRLT
Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
BRI ALZORBHEEERAT
Xian Beiren Beifu Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
BELANRRHEHEERLT
Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
ERIEAEBERIBMEHD T
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
EAKEAT
Beiren Group Corporation

R AEBERIHMEHD T
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
ML ADBIEHEHEERL T
Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company Limited
TAKERH
Beiren Group Corporation

EAKERF
Beiren Group Corporation
T REAKERE

Beiren Hotel

EREEENAQT

Beiren Yan Long Import and Export
Company

EASERE-HEREES

Beiren Group Corporation

- removal compensation

4,159,850.79

1,308,111.67

3,932,200.00

4,918,000.00

1,298,300.00

15,616,462.46

1,730,000.00

100,000.00

4,400,000.00

1,830,000.00

4,400,000.00

370,823.71

1,820,882.57

2,191,706.28

47,837,247.23

350,000.00

47,837,247.23

350,000.00

BEIREN PRINTING MACHINERY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(RIBEPESTERRES) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

49. BT AR B IL AR B (4)
49. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(4) ADEELMBEAEAEER
ETNTERBHRRS (B) (4)  The Company had the following significant related
party transactions with the above related companies:
(continued)
(e) EBEREBEHREIRER @)
(e) Current accounts with related parties
(continued)

HE WEH B8 FRBE FENRE
Item Name of related parties Closing balance  Opening balance
AE#T ARET
Rmb Rmb
B IR ETAKBRAT 475,460.40 710,000.00
Accounts payable  Beiren Group Corporation

EREEELODT 1,009,151.38 =

Beiren Yan Long Import and Export

Company

1,484,611.78 710,000.00
Hi AR EAKERH 78,266,627.28  78,266,627.28

Other receivables  Beiren Group Corporation

50. WA PH
50. CONTINGENT EVENTS
HEEAERD > ARLEEREHR
BHNEARHLESE - As at the balance sheet date, there was no significant
contingent event needs to be disclosed by the Company.
51. 7RulidH
51. COMMITMENTS
(1) EXREE
(1) Capital commitments
FXRH FHERER
Closing Opening
balance balance
AR®TFT AR#EFTT
Rmb Rmb
EEYNERKRBEDY Contracted but not executed 102,911 17,729
HIONBREEAE for purchase of assets

168 | b A B0 ORI OBE MR OB Oy R & W ZERFES W



W B Bk
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ERME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(RIEBEFESEARS) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002

51. 7RubkFHE )

(2 MHEERRE

51. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(2) Lease Commitments

FEERBEXRAL - ARHIH

BT RENEERHESYN As at the balance sheet date, irrevocable operating
BHRWTF : leases entered into with external parties are as
follows:
FXREH FHERE
Closing Opening
balance balance
AR¥TTT AREFT
Rmb Rmb
TAHEEEHEN Minimum rental payment for
RIEAENRE : irrevocable operating leases:
EEBRBRBASELTF Within 1 year after the balance sheet date 927 913
EEBERBASEF In the second year after the balance sheet date 296 863
EEBERBASEF In the third year after the balance sheet date 260 296
DBEE Subsequent years 1,055 1,440
CEl Total 2,538 3,512

52. B4 6] € 5] W Bk
52. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF THE COMPANY
1 EREE

(1) Bills receivable

FRBH F 84T
Closing balacne Opening balance
AR¥TT AR¥T
Rmb Rmb
IRITALESR Bills bills 16,665,896.19 9,265,070.28
FRD AR EE T R
# o Bills receivable are not pledged at the end of the year.
FEUR ZIEEREE P D F5%
EROBRRIRBEROT : Bills receivable from shareholders who hold more
than 5% of the share capital of the Company:
BREE FXReE FRE
Name of shareholder Closing balacne Opening balance
AR %T AR T
Rmb Rmb
It AEERF Beiren Group Corporation = 4,400,000.00
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52. B8Rl g utEaR Bk )
52. NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(2) FERIRK
(2) Accounts receivable
FEWIR FRIRER D AT T -

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:
EXBRE ENRE
Closing balance Opening balance
b ] :4:] HREG BE £8 i) RIRER e
Provision for Provision for
Amount Percentage bad debts Net amount Amount Percentage  bad debts  Net amount
AE®T (%) AE®T AE®T ARHTT (%) ARBT ARBT
Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb % Rmb Rmb
1EHR 106,349,800.43 69.60 - 106,349,800.43 97,598,816.87 84.85 - 97,598,816.87
Within 1 year
1228 29,886,158.24 1956  8,965,847.47  20,920,310.77  1,536,339.30 1.34 - 1,536,339.30
1-2 years
223F 1,394,600.00 0.91 836,760.00 557,840.00  5,260,966.20 457  364,800.00 4,896,166.20
2-3 years
SELE 15,171,935.06 9.93  4,600,300.35  10,571,634.71 10,627,270.46 9.24 6,403,468.37 4,223,802.09

More than 3 years

152,802,493.73 100.00 14,402,907.82 138,399,585.91 115,023,392.83 100.00 6,768,268.37 108,255,124.46

FE W IR TR ERBE 5 A B15%
LA E R EIRERERK © The balance of accounts receivable was not due from
shareholders holding 5% of the share capital of the
Company.
FE Y IR FRERBE R 35 A B]15% L
EROBRRIRBEROT : Accounts receivable from shareholders who hold 5%
of the share capital of the Company:
BEAHE FXiREE FAERE
Name of Shareholder Closing balance Opening balance
AR #T ARETT
Rmb Rmb
dAEERF Beiren Group Corporation 1,298,300.00 —

170 | db A B0 ORI OBE MR OB Oy R & W ZERFES W



L P
CELIEEERTIL)
—EF_F+ A=t —ALEE
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(3) EHfEWR

H b FEWCRIRE D AT A0 T -

B Wk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

52. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(3) Other receivables

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:
EXBE ENHRE
Closing balance Opening balance
&& :4:] HRER 2 £8 IRER A#E
Provision for Provision for
Amount Percentage bad debts Net amount Amount Percentage  bad debts  Net amount
AE®T (%) AE®T AE®T ARBT ARBT ARBT
Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
1EUR 13,675,908.93  18.44 - 1367590893 10,566,565.43  14.67 - 10,566,565.43
Within 1 year
1228 613,355.11 0.83 - 613,355.11 474,198.80 0.66 198,473.59 275,725.21
1-2 years
283% 298,350.00 0.40 - 298,350.00 909,424.95 1.27 116,185.15 793,239.80
2-3 years
Kj:\ 59,575,357.30  80.33  4,843,681.70  54,731,675.60 60,063542.13  83.40  4,247,584.89  55,815,957.24
More than 3 years
74,162,971.34 100.00 4,843,681.70  69,319,289.64 72,013,731.31 100.00  4,562,243.63 67,451,487.68

H At FE WORBRBE 5 2 F]5%
LERBBRRRARBRMOT :

Other receivables from shareholders who hold 5% of the

share capital of the Company:

(4) IR

BERE FXiEE FAERE

Name of Shareholder Closing balance Opening balance

AR #T AR# T

Rmb Rmb

EEAKERQF Beiren Group Corporation = 370,823.71
(4) Provision for bad debt

AR¥T

Rmb

FERER
REFTIRE
REEHEH

FRERE

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Opening balance
Provision in the year
Transfer in the year

Closing balance

11,330,512.00
9,676,714.47
(1,760,636.95)

19,246,589.52
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52. BEA ) HEtIRFE W Rk )
52. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(5) TEMNIREK
(5) Prepayment
BRI DMAOT ©

Aging analysis of prepayment is as follows:

EXE FHERE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR #T i 42 ARETT ;4]
Rmb % Rmb %
1F R Within 1 year 5,103,949.21 100.00 14,283,632.64 91.60
1ZE2F 1-2 years - - 1,310,400.00 8.40
5,103,949.21 100.00 15,594,032.64 100.00
FETIRREREE P EIF A F5%
LERMEBERR o The balance of prepayment was not due from
shareholders holding 5% of the share capital of the
Company.
(6) HFERKEREHE
(6) Inventories and provision for diminution in value of
inventories
FRBE FMERE
Closing balance Opening balance
&8 B (R 0 b3 ] Gk BKEERE R
Provision for Provision for
diminution Net diminution Net
Amount in value balance Amount in value balance
AE%T AE%T AR #T AR AR®T AR
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
R E 31,843,952.90 2,425,515.50 29,418,437.40 39,917,512.72 2,055,000.45 37,862,512.27
Raw materials
EEM 160,327,363.57  10,278,738.01 150,048,625.56  164,645,658.72  7,829,648.00 156,816,010.72
Work in progress
ERm 169,516,428.44  12,937,509.00 156,578,919.44 159,804,171.31  7,274,869.00 152,529,302.31
Finished goods
HEXM M 33,296,060.50 - 33,296,060.50  33,548,734.18 -  33548,734.18

Semi-finished goods

394,983,805.41  25,641,762.51 396,342,042.90 397,916,076.93 17,159,517.45 380,756,559.48

FEREEFSBNOT -

Movement of the provision for diminution in value of

inventories is as follows: AR T

Rmb

FHERER Opening balance 17,159,517.45
REFTIRER Provision for the year 10,860,697.20
IR Transfer during the year (2,378,452.14)
FAREREE Closing balance 25,641,762.51
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52. BAE EEHHENEE @)

(7 RERERSE

52. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(7) Long term equity investment
FRBG FHEREE
Closing balance Opening balance
AR%T ARETT
Rmb Rmb
HMABHBERN Investment in subsidiaries 143,799,157.48 57,758,337.29
FRAERE included in the scope of
consolidation
HARMASHBREN Investment in subsidiaries 2,583,942.96 2,325,000.00
FRARRE not included in the scrope
of consolidation
HEECERE Investment in associated
companies 15,172,636.83 12,380,000.38
CE Sub-total 161,555,737.27 72,463,337.67
W RERERE Less: provision for impairment
REERE of long term equity
investment (1,071,631.40) -
REREREFE Long term equity investment, net 160,484,105.87 72,463,337.67

REREREREEFEZEN

T Changes in provision for impairment of long term
equity investment are as follows:

AE#H T
Rmb
FNHH Opening balance =
REZINE Addition in the year 1,071,631.40
REHEREZ Transfer in the year —
FERE Closing balance 1,071,631.40

2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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52. B8Rl g utEaR Bk )
52. NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(7)) RERERE (&)
(7) Long term equity investment (continued)
HFYQARMBEDERENF

HERWOT - Details of investment in subsidiaries and associated
companies are as follows:
e &m 154 BRREM gL wE £X
BRRLFER #RA BRE [ 23040 RRERE ReilH REHERE % BRERE
Increase/
decrease
Share of in equity
registered/ interest Share  Accumulated  Provision for
Name of invested Initial  Addition equity in invested of cash increase/ impairment  Closing book
companies investment investment holding comanies bonus decrease (note) value
ARET  ARET % ARET ARET AR%T ARET ARET
Rmb Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
MARHERNTLH

Subsidiaries included in the scope
of consolidation
ERIEAE LERIER 29,632,699.26 = 70 585928000  (457,400.00)  5,605,050.87 - 35237,750.13
BRARA
Beijing Beiren Fuji Printing
Machinery Company Limited
53 A FIEED I 4,000,000.00 = 98.77 73,185.01 - (2,753,125.65) - 1,246,874.35
Beijing Beiren Jing Yan Printing
Machinery Factory
EREEARNENBEER 2,500,000.00 - 62.5 52,553.40
Beiren Tai He Printing and
Casting Factory
LR AR SR 1,892,913.00 = 94.65 (926,247.03) = (999,206.58) = 893,706.42
Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery
Accessories Factory

(316,167.03) - 218383297

Ak AL R BT 2,434,100.00 = 50.68 81,984.62 = 214,774.86 - 2,648,874.86
Hebei Beiren Gei Zh Ji Chang

B ADRERER 14,848,000.00 = 512 (900,049.77) - (11,992,085.53) - 285591447
ELF

Haimen Beiren Printing Machinery
Company Limited
REBRARA 351 - 100 - = (3.51) = =
Sheenlife Limited
EREATHBAER 15,400,000.00 = 68.66 99,672.92 = 99,672.92 - 15499,672.92
G
Beijing Beiren Yuxin Plastic
Printing Company Limited
HELIb A DRI 8 825,000.00 - 55 207,709.29
BRARA
Zhejiang Beiren Printing
Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited
B3 A ED Rl PR 84,180,000.00 = 84.18  (1,980,177.93) - (1,980,177.93) - 82,199,822.07
BEAA
Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Company Limited

207,709.29 = 1,032,709.29

155,712,715.77 - 2,567,919.51 (457,400.00) (11,913,558.29) = 143,799,157.48
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52. B4 W) fataaR M )
(7) LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT
(CONTINUED)
(7) RERERE (&)

(7) Long term equity investment (continued)

HYARMEECERENF

MBFRUOT - (8) Details of investment in subsidiaries and associated

companies are as follows: (continued)

Increase/
decrease
Share of in equity
registered interest Share  Accumulated  Provision for
Name of invested Initial ~ Addition equity in invested of cash increase/ impairment  Closing book
companies investment investment holding comanies bonus decrease (note) value
NN % ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Rmb Rmb % Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb

ABARHEENT AR
Subsidiaries not included in the
scope of consolidation
LREADHERLT 3,150,000.00 - 100 (3,067.92) - (2,078,368.60) (1,071,631.40) -
Beijing Beiren Printing Machinery
Transportation Company
BREALEDRIHERE S 735,000.00 = 49 10,479.67 = 10,479.67 = T45,479.67
BRAF
Xian Beiren Beifu Printing
Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited
BELADRBHEHEERAT 765,000.00 - 51 1,831.89 - 1,831.89 - 766,831.89
Hubei Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company
Limited

4,650,000.00 - 9,243.64 - (2,066,057.04) (1,071,631.40) 1,512,311.56

KBENR
Associated companies
BELAHEARRAGERAT  10,680,000.00 = 4359 (879,089.43) = (872,089.05) - 9,807,910.95
Ningxia Beiren Xinhua Printing
Joint Stock Company Limited
EREAEBERIEHE 900,000.00 - 45 (14,184.68) = (14,184.68) = 885,815.32
BRAR
Beijing Beiren Hengtong Printing
Machinery Operation and
Sale Company Limited
BMEANEERDRBEBERAR 450,000.00 = 30 3,444.12 = 3444.12 = 453,444.12
Guangzhou Beiren Hengtong
Printing Machinery Operation
and Sale Company Limited
BRI ADRIRHEH 343,000.00 = 49 7,466.44 = 7,466.44 = 350,466.44
BREEDR
Liaoning Beiren Printing Machinery
Operation and Sale Company
Limited
LREEEEZRERAT 3,675,000.00 = 49 = = = - 3,675,000.00
Beijing Monigraf Automatic Systems
Company Limited

16,048,000.00 - (882,363.55) - (875,363.17) 15,172,636.83

176,410,715.77 - 1,694,799.60 (457,400.00) (14,854,978.50) (1,071,631.40) 160,484,105.87
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52. BEA A EEHERE @)

52. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(8) EEEBKWARAE
(8) Turnover and Cost of sales from Major Operations
FERMB LEZHY
2002 2001
KA B¥ WA A
Turnover Cost of sales Turnover Cost of sales
ARRT ARBT ARET ARET
Rmb Rmb Rmb Rmb
2] Local sales
FREDREEE Sheet-fed offset printing
machines 547,097,210.81  344,630,765.19  462,951,389.68  316,722,877.65
BEEDRKEE Web-fed offset printing
machines 130,144,563.69 97,343,492.87 162,579,187.00  124,748,689.14
RERHEE Pressing machines = = 1,958,119.66  3,617,823.94
EmEHEE Sale of spare part 11,618,018.68  11,071,302.15 14,407,956.77  7,267,500.38
688,859,793.18  453,045,560.21 641,896,653.11  452,356,891.11
A Export sales
PRI E Sale of printing machines 247,126.49 174,421.12 1,711,028.63  1,078,075.14
247,126.49 174,421.12 1,711,028.63 1,078,075.14
689,106,919.67  453,219,981.33 643,607,681.74  453,434,966.25
9 BEWH
(9) Investment Income
FERHB LEFEFH
2002 2001
AR T AR T
Rmb Rmb
RHRENRE Long term investment income
BREREEAR S Income recognized using equity
method 1,676,507.35 (24,895.02)
REORERERX Loss on provision for diminution
in value of long term investments (1,071,631.40) (4,241,400.00)

de A B R OBE BRI Oy A OBR A F

604,875.95

(4,266,295.02)
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AF)RIE2001F58 16 H K% 200246
BLIEBRRAERE  KPEHFFE
BEEZESRER1TF[2002]133
FNZERE > B ARRRIGE
TiEiB2,200E KA RMEZBERA
R EREEARELT - DARZ
HIE R MR EBEESFRDERA
5] T AR HIEREERAE
PRA BIEETAERE  HAOEER
EERPTREN@REARBKRRREAM
HELARREERE L REREENA
NET BTERREABEAERA
R¥75T o

2003F1H7H » RAIRUMBEAR
B (ARR) 2,200BR - E5ES
MA2003F1H8RHEINR » EHEEE
KETEMER AR A RRE » W
BB () B3R T (03) 550015558 &
W o
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For the year ended 31 December 2002

53. NON-ADJUSTED MATTERS OF
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with the resolutions passed by shareholders
at shareholders' general meetings held on 16 May 200 and
11 June 2002 respectively, and upon the approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 11 June
2002, and Zheng Jian Fa Hang Zi Document [2002] No. 133
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the
Company issued A shares not exceeding 22,000,000 shares
of nominal value Rmb1.00 each. The Company and China
Merchants Securities Co., Ltd (BEEFKHER A7)
entered into an underwriting agreement for underwriting
those additional A shares. A shares were issued and offered
to institutional investors below the network and offered to
existing holders of A shares and public investors above the
network. The issue price was finally determined to be Rmb
7 per share.

On 7 January 2003, the Company issued 22,000,000 A
shares with proceeds deposited on 8 January 2003. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Hua Wing Certified Public Accountants
Co., Ltd. confirmed the deposit of proceed and issued the
Report De Shi (Jing )Yan Bao Zi (03) No.001.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

1. PEEwENREEGGE 1

EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FROM DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
ACCOUNTS PREPARED UNDER PRC
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND HONG
KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The financial statement was prepared under PRC accounting
standards, which was different from that prepared under
Hong Kong accounting standards.

As at 31 December 2002, the Company recorded net profit
of Rmb68,941,000 and net assets of Rmb979,111,000
according to the legal financial report, and main adjustment
on net profit and net assets prepared under Hong Kong

NEEFREMOT : accounting standards are as follows:
BHAE FRERER
Net profit Owners’ equity
TEH LEHY EXH FIH
For the For Closing Opening
current year previous year balance balance
ARBTFT AREFT ARBTET AR¥Tr
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BREEREL 68,941 64,282 979,111 951,126
Prepared under PRC accounting standards
BELREHERRE
Adjustments made to conform with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
TAEERAEEREZE = = (60,198) (60,198)
Difference in valuation of net assets contributed
to the Company by Beiren Group Corporation
TAKBRAEEGEEZRHIH 480 = 9,570 9,090
Amortization of difference in valuation
of net assets contribution to the Company
by Beiren Group Corporation
HRFRAAEENFEEBENER - = (792) =
Difference in valuation of net assets
upon acquisition of a subsidiary
BAMBAREEMEEZR 31 31 (1,742) (1,773)
Difference in valuation of capital
contribution to subsidiaries
BREWAEIARIZELR = (4,092) (24,209) (24,209)
Receipt of option payments recognized as income
BET-A=Z+T-HLABRNRADE - = 42,200 48,000
Unrecognized dividends as at 31 December
EEEERNEER = (31,690) - -
Provision for impairment of fixed assets
HitEEREER - 8,333 8,333 8,333
Provision for impairment of other assets
EEIEREERE = (8,093) - -
Provision for impairment of construction in progress
Hith (116) (358) (742) (174)
Others
REBEIEL 69,336 28,413 951,531 930,195
Prepared under Hong Kong accounting standards
e A B R OHE B M AR A A EREFZEFE W
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(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

2. ZmEBEAmErESEE#E 2. RETURNS ON NET ASSETS AND
B A R B A B e 2% EARNINGS PER SHARE ON FULLY

DILUTED BASIS AND WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BASIS

By AR¥rT
Unit: Rmb
BEELRE %) sRES (T K)
Returns on net assets (%) Earnings per share
2EHE miEFY 2ENHE miEFY
Fully diluted Weighted diluted Fully diluted Weighted diluted
BEHAA 2002%F  2001%F  2002%F  2001%F  2002%F  2001%F 2002%F  2001%F
Profit for the period 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
FTEERIH 30.16 21.77 29.96 21.41 0.74 0.52 0.74 0.52
Profit from principal
operations
BERE 8.22 8.58 8.16 8.44 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20
Operating profit
B 7.04 6.76 6.99 6.65 0.17 0.16 0.17 0.16
Net profit
MERFELEEBRE N FFE 6.28 6.90 6.24 6.79 0.15 0.16 0.15 0.16

Net profit, net of
extraordinary item
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WERH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(RIBEPESTERRES) (Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
—EFE-F{+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2002
3. 20024E12H31H%E MM 3. ANALYSIS OF PROVISION FOR
¥ {5 W) A0 % DIMINUTION VALUE AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2002
RE 2002%1A1R .33 )| £33 1 20024128 31R
Additions Transfer
Item 1.1.2002 during the year during the year 31.12.2002
At 2F At 4F At 2AF A 2AF
Group Company Group Company Group Company Group Company
- BIREESH 15571,311.59  11,330,512.00 12,661,424.86  9,676,714.47  (2,504,992.20) (1,760,636.95) 25,727,744.25  19,246,589.52
1. Total provision for
bad debts
Hep:
including:
iR 10,404,199.36  6,768,268.37  9,772,785.30  8,012,292.07 (554,652.75)  (377,652.62) 19,622,331.91  14,402,907.82
Accounts receivable
Hit 5167,112.23  4,562,243.63  2,888,639.56  1,664,422.40  (1,950,339.45) (1,382,984.33) 6,105412.34  4,843,681.70

Other receivables

© REREEMRSH 19,593,260.72  17,159,517.45  11,997,874.01  10,860,697.20  (4,754,959.68) (2,378,452.14) 26,836,175.05  25,641,762.51
Total provision for
diminution in value
of inventories
Hep:
including:
st 2,059,191.45  2,055,00045  2,540,822.58  1484251.08  (1,419,627.57) (1,113,736.03) 3,180,386.46  2,425,515.50
Raw materials
ERm 8,347,40459  7,274,869.00 574324531 566264000  (713,599.32)
Finished goods
EER 7,829,648.00 7,829,648.00 3,713,806.12 3,713,803.16  (1,264,716.11) (1,264,716,11) 10,278,738.01  10,278,738.01
Work in progress
BREYEA 1,357,016.68 = = - (1,357,016.68) - - -
Self-produced
work in progress

o

13,377,050.58  12,937,509.00

© REREABEERST 833320000 833320000  3,451,012.32  1,071,631.40 =
Total provision for
diminution in value of
long term investments
Hep:
including:
REORERE = - 345101232  1,071,631.40 -
Long term equity
investment
REOBERE 8,333,200.00  8,333,200.00 = = = - 833320000  8,333,200.00
Long term investment
in debt

11,784,212.32  9,404,831.40

@il

3,451,012.32  1,071,631.40

=

BEEEREER 31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46  6,417,599.25  6,298,297.25 (10,386,758.72) (10,386,758.72) 27,720,554.99  27,601,252.99
Provision for diminution
in value of fixed assets
Hep:
including:
KERE 31,689,714.46  31,689,714.46  6,417,599.25  6,298,297.25 (10,386,758.72) (10,386,758.72) 27,720,554.99  27,601,252.99
Plant and machinery

=

I BREENEER 3,480,000.00 = = = = - 3,480,000.00 =
5. Provision for diminution

in value of intangible

assets

v HRIBAEEE 8,092,659.97  8,092,659.97  1,165,827.82 - (1,132,378.05) (1,132,378.05) 8,126,109.74  6,960,281.92
Provision for diminution
value of construction
in progress
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(2) BT®EEIR:
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2002 ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)
For the year ended 31 December 2002

3. ANALYSIS OF PROVISION FOR
DIMINUTION VALUE AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2002 (CONTINUED)

Note: Additions during the year was due to provision for
diminution in value of equity investment amounting to
Rmb1,208,411.95 arising from Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited, which was a subsidiary
acquired during the year.

4.  ANALYSIS OF ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT WITH CHANGES OF 30% OR
ABOVE AND REPRESENTING 5% OR
ABOVE OF TOTAL ASSETS AT THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE OR 10% OR
ABOVE OF THE TOTAL PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD:

(1) Accounts receivable:

Increased by 51.60% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period principally
due to an acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited; and expansion of sales
and increase in accounts receivable within the credit
period.

(2) Construction-in-progress:

Increased by 80.24% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period principally
due to an increase in efforts in the development of
new plants, located at Yi Zhuang, of the Company.

(3) Accounts payable:

Increased by 41.51% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period principally
due to an acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren Printing
Machinery Company Limited; and change in the
external review and settlement method, leading an
increase in accounts payable.

(4) Receipts in advance:

Increased by 209.11% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren
Printing Machinery Company Limited and an increase
in receipts in advance of removal compensation.
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(Prepared under PRC accounting standards)

For the year ended 31 December 2002

ANALYSIS OF ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT WITH CHANGES OF 30% OR
ABOVE AND REPRESENTING 5% OR
ABOVE OF TOTAL ASSETS AT THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE OR 10% OR
ABOVE OF THE TOTAL PROFIT FOR THE
PERIOD:

4.

©)

(6)

(7

(8)

(9)

Accrued expenses:

Increased by 100% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren
Printing Machinery Company Limited and provision
of settlement fee and medical fee to well-off and
retired employees.

Turnover from principal business:

Increased by 32.59% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren
Printing Machinery Company Limited and an increase
in turnover of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Profit from principal business:

Increased by 42.63% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the commencement of mass production
of new products in 2002, leading to a decrease in
unit product cost and an increase in profitability of
new products for the year.

Administrative expenses:

Increased by 79.53% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Shaanxi Beiren
Printing Machinery Company Limited and an increase
in provision for bad debt and diminution in value of
inventories.

Finance costs:

Increased by 197.55% at the end of the period when
compared with the beginning of the period mainly
attributable to the bank loans due from Shaanxi
Beiren Printing Machinery Company Limited,
acquired during the year, and a significant increase
in bank loans.
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